
LOS Banos
n Ie CrosslOads of California

www.losbanos.org

AGENDA

CITY COUNCIL MEETING

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
520 J Street

Los Banos, California

JULY 15,2020 - 4:00 PM

Temporary Public Comment Email Established for the City of Los Banos
City Council Meeting of July 15, 2020 - emails must be received by 4:00 PM:

The City has established a temporary email address citizens can use to email public
comments on any agenda item, limited to 250 words or less. Any public comments

received by July 15, 2020 prior to 4:00 PM will be read aloud during the
appropriate time and agenda item.

The email address is cityclerk@losbanos.org

Public comment c:i-uring Publica:rearings wiifbe taken in real tIme via emaii:
prj9~ 1~E!P~lic_Hea~i!1.g is g.p!=l~-ch the CJ!y Qouncil yviftpause thE!rm3e1ir!gJ~~ or<!~r t~

recelv~ ~m~~~ cTf~ecteC!§!t th~ f!J_~[c He~Trrg~ful? iq g}6 worEi} 9_n~ wil~ ~~~
PQr:!!.I"D~nts into !h~ recorc!.§!.fter resumlllg_ th~ meeti!1_g, as !!Q1e Rermit§~

__ EI~a~E! I'"!illc~~_lliai9Q!'1m~12t~ ar~ Iqr ~J2aitL~I!~! Pu]i[~ H~~r(nJi ~¥ E.':!WIl9
I'Publi~ t!~aEing" i!lthei?!J.~ieQUil)e Qf 1~~~_m_ail ~Q..~ 1h~ mJe. 9f 1h~Pl:lJ~li~.H~~rlllg_·i

The Council Chambers are closed to the public, those interested in viewing the
City Council meeting can do so on the City of Los Banos' Website at:

https:/Iwww.youtube.com/watch?v=sc3NQ8A8iuE&feature=youtu.be

......................_ - _- - ~ ..
Ifyou require special assistance to attend or participate in this meeting, please call the

City Clerk's Office @ (209) 827-7000 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

The City of Los Banos complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990.
* * * * * * * ** * * * * * * *

Si requiere asistencia especial para atender 0 participar en esta junta por favor lIame a la oficina
de la Secretaria de la ciudad al (209) 827-7000 a 10 menos de 48 horas previas de la junta.

La CUidad de Los Banos cumple con la Acta de Americanos con Deshabilidad (ADA) de 1990.
JO•••- - --••- -----••••••- •••••••- ..- ••- ..-- --- -- .". •••••••_ ,,_.. •• •• ••••4

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council
regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection at the meeting

and in the City Clerk's office located at City Hall, 520 J Street, Los Banos, California
during normal business hours. In addition, such writings and documents may be posted

on the City's website at www./osbanos.oro.
,.. *' * *' *' *' *' ** * * * * *' *,..

Cualquier escritura 0 los documentos proporcionaron a una mayoria del Ayuntamiento respecto a cualquier
artIculo en este orden del dia sera hecho disponible para la

inspeccion publica en la reunion y en la oficina de la Secretaria de la ciudad en City Hall, 520 J Street, Los Banos,
California durante horas de oficina norma/es. Ademas, tales escrituras y los documentos

pueden ser anunciados en el website de la ciudad en www.losbanos.or.q.

Los Banos City Council Agenda - July 15, 2020 Page 10f4



1. CALL TO ORDER.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

3. ROLL CALL: (City Council Members)

Faria _, Johnson-Santos __, Jones __' Lewis __. ' Villalta _

4. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

4:00 PM

5. PUBLIC FORUM. (Members of the public may address the City Council Members
on any item of public interest that is within the jurisdiction of the City Council;
includes agenda and non-agenda items. No action will be taken on non-agenda
items. Speakers may submit their comments by submitting a written statement,
limited to 250 words or less, by dropping it off in the Utility Payment Box at City
Hall, 520 J Street, by mail or emailing cityclerk@losbanos.org. Comments received
will be read into the record during the City Council Meeting.)

6. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA. (Items on the
Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be voted on in one motion
unless removed from the Consent Agenda by a City Council Member.)

A. Check Register for #222771 - #222972 in the Amount of $1 ,102,831.47.

Recommendation: Approve the check register as submitted.

B. Minutes for the June 17, 2020 City Council Meeting.

Recommendation: Approve the minutes as submitted.

C. Minutes for the July 1, 2020 City Council Meeting.

Recommendation: Approve the minutes as submitted.

D. City Council Resolution No. 6236 - Approving Density Bonus Housing
Agreement between the City of Los Banos and Sunset Hills Development
LLC.

Recommendation: Adopt the resolution as submitted.

E. City Council Resolution No. 6237 - Accepting Parcel Map 2020-01 Along with
the Dedications of 10' Public Utility Easements Located South of Parcel A and
Parcel B Along East Pacheco Boulevard/State Highway 152 as Shown in
Said Parcel Map, 1420 E. Pacheco Boulevard, APN 428-140-030.

Recommendation: Adopt the resolution as submitted.

F. City Council Resolution No. 6238 - Approving and Adopting Final Tract Map
No. 2017-01 Stonecreek at Los Banos The Villages VII Phase 1B Unit 2 and
Accompanying Subdivision Improvement Agreement (Anderson Homes).

Recommendation: Adopt the resolution as submitted.

Los Banos City Council Agenda - July 15, 2020 Page 20(4



7. PUBLIC HEARING. (If you challenge the proposed action as described herein in
court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised
at the public hearing described herein or in written correspondence delivered to the
City at, or prior to, the public hearing.)

A. Public Hearing - To Receive Public Comment and Consideration of
Repealing Local Amendments Section 8-1 .18 A and Section 8-1 .18 B of the
Los Banos Municipal Code Related to 'Water Heater Prohibited Locations
and Water Heater Protection from Damage".

1) Ordinance No. 1186 - Repealing Previously Enacted Local Amendments
to the California Plumbing Code as it Pertains to Water Heaters.

(First Reading & Introduction)

Recommendation: Receive staff report, open the public hearing, receive public comment,
waive the first reading, and introduce the ordinance as submitted.

B. Public Hearing - To Receive Public Comment and Consideration of the
Proposal that the City of Los Banos Consider a Categorical Exemption from
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Pursuant to Section
15302(d) and Establish an Underground Utility District Along H Street, from
between 5th & 6th Streets to 2nd Street, in the City of Los Banos.

1) City Council Resolution No. 6239 - Establishing Underground Utility
District 7-C in the City of Los Banos.

Recommendation: Receive staff report, open the public hearing, receive public comment,
close the public hearing and adopt the resolution as submitted.

8. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 6240 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY SUPPORT OF THE LOS BANOS DOWNTOWN
ASSOCIATION IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF A CERTIFIED FARMERS' MARKET
AND AMENDING THE 2020-2021 BUDGET BY INCREASING THE COMMUNITY
AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES IN THE AMOUNT OF $900.

Recommendation: Receive staff report and adopt the resolution.

9. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 6241
APPROVING THE SR-152 INTERIM AND MIDTERM SAFETY
ENHANCING/CONGESTION RELIEVING IMPROVEMENTS AS DEVELOPED BY
THE SR-152 SAFETY TASK FORCE WORK GROUP.

Recommendation: Receive staff report and adopt the resolution.

10. COVID-19 STATUS UPDATE.

A. City Council Resolution No. 6242 - Continuing the Declaration of the
Existence of a Local Emergency within the City of Los Banos (COVID-19).

Recommendation: Receive staff report and adopt the resolution.

Los Banos City Council Agenda - July 15, 2020 Page 30f4



11. APPOINTMENT OF COMMISSIONERS TO THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ADVISORY COMMISSION - TWO (2) UNEXPIRED TERMS, EXPIRING
DECEMBER 31, 2020 & APPOINT TWO (2) CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS, TERMS
EXPIRING DECEMBER 31, 2021.

Recommendation: Appoint Commissioners and Council Members to fill the vacancies.

12. ADVISEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICES. (One report)

13. CITY MANAGER REPORT.

A. Report Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(c)(3) Executive
Compensation: Community & Economic Development Director.

14. REPORT/UPDATE ON MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS
(MCAG) AND MEASURE V COMMITTEE.

Recommendation: Informational item only, no action to be taken.

15. CITY COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS.

A. Deborah Lewis

B. Tom Faria

C. Daronica Johnson-Santos

D. Brett Jones

E. Mayor Mike VillaIta

16. CLOSED SESSION - Conference with Labor Negotiators, Pursuant to
Government Code Section 54957.6, Agency Designated Representatives: City
Manager Terrazas, City Attorney Vaughn, City Clerk/Human Resources Director
Mallonee, Finance Director Williams, Legal Counsel Tuffo; Employee
Organizations: Los Banos Police Officers Association (LBPOA), Los Banos Police
Sergeants Association (LBPSA), Los Banos Fire Fighters Association (LBFFA),
Los Banos Police Dispatchers/Community Services Officers Association
(LBPDCSOA), Los Banos Public Employees Union (Public Works) Local
1/AFSCME and Unrepresented Miscellaneous Employees.

17. ADJOURNMENT.

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
agenda was posted 0 e City Hall bulletin board not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting.

Los Banos City Council Agenda - July 15, 2020

Dated this 9th day of July 2020

Page 4 of4



LOS Banos
07/15/2020

Amount
422.41

386.00

210.00

420.00

770.00

1,297.09

3,727.50

3,207.50

720.00

1,016.48

2,365.50

894.65

3,850.00

283.29

443.61

154.29

417.19

428.18

1,378.49

110.95

1,404.79

2,358.50

2,407.98

2,081.52

2,575.00

930.40

2,406.99

1,100.00

8,393.30

360.00

192.21

176.14

122.08

1,021.55

120.00

13,139.90

487.05

150.00

394.70

329.00

11,768.80

14,642.1 I

612.50

4,686.96

316.70

Void

$ 1,102,831.47

Module
AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

CK # 222771 - # 222972
Bank Reconciliation
Checks by Date
User: jcanchola

Printed: 07/07/2020 - 3:24PM

Cleared and Not Cleared Checks

Print Void Checks

Check Check Date Name
22277 I 6/19/2020 Aflac-Customer Service

222772 6119/2020 Los Banos Fitness &

222773 6/19/2020 Los Banos Police Assn

222774 611912020 Los Banos Police Assn

222775 6/19/2020 Los Banos Police Assn

222776 6/19/2020 MassMutual

222777 611912020 MassMutual

222778 6/19/2020 Nationwide Retirement Solutions

222779 6119/2020 Professional Fire Fighter

222780 611912020 Public Employees Union, Local One

222781 611912020 State Disbursement Unit

222782 6119/2020 Vantagepont Transfer Agents - 306797

222783 611912020 VantagepointTransfer Agents - 801838

222784 6/26/2020 Gregory Almeida

222785 6/2612020 Altec Industries Inc

222786 6/2612020 Ameripride Services

222787 6/26/2020 Aramark Uniform Ser Inc

222788 6/26/2020 AT&T Mobility

222789 6/26/2020 AT&T

222790 6/2612020 AT&T

222791 6/26/2020 Battery Systems, Inc.

222792 6/2612020 Bartel Associates, LLC

222793 6/2612020 Brenntag Pacific Inc

222794 6/2612020 Bruce's Tire Inc

222795 6/2612020 BSK Associates

222796 6/26/2020 Burton's Fire Inc.

222797 6/26/2020 Caliber Bodyworks, Inc.

222798 6/26/2020 California Air Resources Board Portable Equipment

222799 6/26/2020 Cardio Partner Inc.

222800 6126/2020 Central Valley Cardiovascular Group Inc.

222801 6/26/2020 Manuel A Avila

222802 6/26/2020 Central Sanitary Supply

222803 6/2612020 Comcast

222804 6/26/2020 Cook's Communications Corp.

222805 6/26/2020 David Cummins

222806 6/26/2020 LN Curtis & Sons

222807 6/26/2020 Cummins Inc.

222808 6/26/2020 Double D Towing, LLC

222809 6/26/2020 Fastenal Company

2228 I0 6/26/2020 Fast Track Car Wash

222811 6/26/2020 Fields Outdoor Adventures LLP

222812 6/26/2020 Golden State Flow Measurement

222813 6/2612020 Goodwin Consulting Group

2228 14 6/2612020 Gouveia Engineering Inc.

222815 6/26/2020 Hach Company



222816 6/2612020 Heppner Precision Machine Shop, Inc. AP 117.47

222817 6/26/2020 Holt of California AP 2,674.92

222818 6/26/2020 Home Depot AP 5,560.25

222819 6/2612020 KD Medical Group, Inc. AP 330.00

222820 6/2612020 Laboratory Corporation of America Holdings AP 125.00

222821 6/2612020 Marfab Inc AP 114.79

222822 6/26/2020 Susana Mendoza AP 750.00

222823 6/2612020 Merced Chevrolet Inc. AP 2,260.83

222824 6/26/2020 Merced County Auditor Controller AP 225.00

222825 6/26/2020 Merced Truck & Trailer Inc AP 1,048.23

222826 6/26/2020 MOO, Inc. AP 356.30

222827 6/26/2020 NDN International LLC AP 8,860.82

222828 6/26/2020 The Office City AP 1,075.60

222829 6/26/2020 OSE AP 144.09

222830 6/26/2020 O'Reilly Auto Parts AP 2,531.31

222831 6/26/2020 PlaceWorks, Inc. AP 2,657.10

222832 6/26/2020 Provost and Pritchard Engineering, Inc. AP 3,304.90

222833 6/26/2020 Randik Paper Co AP 80.84

222834 6/26/2020 Ronny's Inc. AP 6.40

222835 6/2612020 SNAPCD AP 2,004.00

222836 6126/2020 Santos Ford Inc. AP 632.45

222837 6/26/2020 Save Mart Supermarkets AP 70.15

222838 6/26/2020 Sensus USA Inc AP 17,121.80

222839 6/2612020 Michael Bartholomew AP 252.14

222840 6/26/2020 Sherwin Williams Co AP 736.78

222841 6/26/2020 Robert & Susan Hansen AP 701.44

222842 6/26/2020 Sorensens True Value AP 1,522.74

222843 6/2612020 Sprint Solutions, Inc. AP 987.74

222844 6/2612020 T & T Pavernent Markings and Products, Inc. AP 683.13

222845 6/26/2020 o C Tanner Recognition Company AP 1,073.81

222846 6/26/2020 Terryberry Company LLC AP 407.48

222847 6/26/2020 Terminix Processing Center AP 60.00

222848 6126/2020 Triangle Rock Products AP 71,811.99

222849 6/26/2020 Desiree Rodriguez AP 19.77

222850 6/26/2020 Jacqueline Craig AP 158.22

222851 6/2612020 Victor Hernandez Guzman AP 152.25

222852 6126/2020 Vernon Hovannisian AP 110.46

222853 6/2612020 Westhill Property Mgmt AP 167.17

222854 6/26/2020 RB Construction AP 78.01

222855 6/26/2020 RB Construction AP 78.01

222856 6/26/2020 RB Construction AP 78.01

222857 6/26/2020 D.R. Horton AP 178.01

222858 6126/2020 Breckenridge Property Fund 2016 LLC AP 75.44

222859 6/26/2020 Donald Peterson AP 71.66

222860 6/26/2020 RB Construction AP 78.01

222861 6/26/2020 RB Construction AP 78.01

222862 6/26/2020 RB Construction AP 78.01

222863 6/26/2020 Valley Critter Care, Inc. AP 14.50

222864 6/26/2020 Verizon Wireless AP 926.68

222865 6/26/2020 Violation Processing Department AP 6.00

222866 6/26/2020 Walmart AP 515.33

222867 6/26/2020 Westside Water Conditioning AP 173.50

222868 6/26/2020 Windecker Inc AP 2,811.29

222869 6/26/2020 Diana Zendejas AP 2,300.00



222870 6126/2020 Allied Waste Services #917 AP 288,757.41

222871 6/26/2020 Clark Pest Control Inc AP 186.00

222872 6/26/2020 City of Los Banos Utility AP 45,148.67

222873 6/26/2020 Liebert Cassidy Whitmore AP 2,483.00

222874 6/2612020 Pet Partners AP 681.00

222875 6/26/2020 CaleNelson AP 170.45

222876 6/26/2020 State Water Resources Control Board AP 130.00

222877 6126/2020 US Bank Corp Pymt System AP 10,002.18

222878 6/26/2020 Michael G. Villalta AP 589.86

222881 7/2/2020 American Planning Association, CA Chapter AP 360.00

222882 712/2020 American Self Storage AP 1,320.00

222883 7/2/2020 Animal Damage Management, Inc. AP 3,890.00

222884 7/2/2020 Aramark Uniform Ser Inc AP 51.42

222885 7/2/2020 AT&T AP 33.47

222886 7/212020 Bruce's Tire Inc AP 9,032.13

222887 7/2/2020 BSK Associates AP 8,594.50

222888 7/2/2020 Comcast AP 106.16

222889 7/2/2020 Cook's Communications Corp. AP 1,411.94

222890 7/2/2020 CPCA AP 145.00

222891 7/2/2020 LN Curtis & Sons AP 3,395.28

222892 7/2/2020 Custom Locksmith & Alarm Inc. AP 832.50

222893 7/2/2020 Duncan Printing Co. Inc. AP 477.30

222894 7/2/2020 Ebix, Inc. AP 1,311.42

222895 7/2/2020 Education Specialty Publishing, LLC AP 550.00

222896 7/2/2020 Environmental Systems Research Inst. AP 1,000.00

222897 7/2/2020 Farmer Brothers Coffee AP 131.96

222898 7/2/2020 Fastenal Company AP 751.45

222899 7/2/2020 Federal Express Corporation AP 5.44

222900 7/2/2020 Ferguson Enterprises Inc DBA Groeniger & Company AP 174.33

222901 712/2020 Golden State Flow Measurement AP 19,274.56

222902 7/2/2020 Government Finance Officers Association AP 250.00

222903 7/2/2020 Governmentjobs.com, Inc. AP 9,440.71

222904 7/2/2020 Govlnvest, Inc. AP 3,713.00

222905 7/2/2020 Grainger Parts Operations AP 164.66

222906 7/2/2020 Hach Company AP 176.83

222907 7/212020 Halcyon Creek Inc. AP 440.89

222908 7/2/2020 Hi Tech Emergency Vehicle Services, Inc AP 4,522.66

222909 7/2/2020 David A Jones AP 2,060.00

222910 7/2/2020 Jorgensen & Sons Inc. AP 164.80

222911 7/2/2020 Key Seal Products, Inc. AP 427.19

222912 7/2/2020 Kimball Midwest AP 210.83

222913 7/2/2020 Laboratory Corporation of America Holdings AP 434.00

222914 7/2/2020 Lincoln Equipment Inc AP 2,481.36

222915 7/2/2020 Los Banos Enterprise AP 75.04

222916 712/2020 Lucas Business Systems AP 102.14

222917 7/2/2020 Mark Thomas & company. Inc. AP 33,521.97

222918 7/2/2020 Marfab Inc AP 679.10

222919 7/2/2020 Matson Alarm Co Inc AP 181.00

222920 7/2/2020 Merced Chevrolet Inc. AP 2,300.70

222921 712/2020 Merced Sun Star AP 175.31

222922 712/2020 Monterey Auto Services Inc. AP 615.41

222923 7/2/2020 MOO, Inc. AP 43.16

222924 7/2/2020 The Office City AP 215.55

222925 7/2/2020 George Oliveira AP 11,000.00



222926 7/2/2020 O'Reilly Auto Parts AP 412.46

222927 7/2/2020 PG&E Company AP Void 157,652.54

222928 7/2/2020 PG&E Company AP 5,775.45

222929 7/2/2020 Pacific Landscape Supply, Inc. AP 7,462.25

222930 7/2/2020 The Phone Connection Inc AP 337.44

222931 7/2/2020 P H & S Products LLC AP 687.50

222932 7/2/2020 Provost and Pritchard Engineering, Inc. AP 194.00

222933 7/2/2020 Quad Knopf, Inc. AP 1,249.60

222934 7/2/2020 Randik Paper Co AP 378.18

222935 7/2/2020 Razzari Dodge Chrysler Jeep AP 152.90

222936 7/2/2020 Santos Ford Inc. AP 304.76

222937 7/2/2020 Sherwin Williams Co AP 661.05

222938 7/2/2020 Robert & Susan Hansen AP 69.17

222939 7/2/2020 Sorensens True Value AP 1,982.18

222940 7/2/2020 Stommel, Inc. AP Void 108,906.96

222941 7/2/2020 Siemens Industry, inc. AP 103.29

222942 7/2/2020 T & T Pavement Markings and Products, Inc. AP 288.19

222943 7/2/2020 Triangle Rock Products AP 1,852.23

222944 7/2/2020 United Rotary Brush Corp. AP 4,688.79

222945 7/2/2020 Verizon Wireless AP 310.52

222946 7/2/2020 VFW & American Legion AP 60.00

222947 7/2/2020 Western Pacific Signal, LLC AP 1,398.51

222948 7/2/2020 Windecker Inc AP 5,477.90

222949 7/2/2020 Young's Air Conditioning AP 14,644.34

222950 7/2/2020 Aflac-Customer Service AP 422.41

222951 7/2/2020 In Shape Health Clubs Inc AP 543.65

222952 7/2/2020 Los Banos Police Assn AP 420.00

222953 7/2/2020 Los Banos Police Assn AP 245.00

222954 7/2/2020 Los Banos Police Assn AP 735.00

222955 7/2/2020 MassMutual AP 1,297.09

222956 7/2/2020 MassMutual AP 3,727.50

222957 7/2/2020 Nationwide Retirement Solutions AP 3,207.50

222958 7/2/2020 Professional Fire Fighter AP 720.00

222959 7/2/2020 Public Employees Union, Local One AP 1,016.48

222960 7/2/2020 State Disbursement Unit AP 2,365.50

222961 7/2/2020 Vantagepont Transfer Agents - 306797 AP 894.65

222962 7/2/2020 Vantagepoint Transfer Agents - 801838 AP 3,375.00

222963 7/2/2020 Ford Motor Credit Company LLC AP 3,689.59

222964 7/2/2020 Ford Motor Credit Company LLC AP 1,307.85

222965 7/2/2020 Merced County Clerk AP 2,456.75

222966 7/2/2020 Gerald "Obie" O'Brien AP 77.14

222967 7/2/2020 Robert Wiens AP 1,391.19

222968 7/2/2020 Halcyon Creek Inc. AP 11,500.00

222969 7/2/2020 Los Banos Volunteer AP 2,416.67

222970 7/2/2020 Premier Access Insurance Co. AP 19,582.83

222971 7/2/2020 Sun Life Financial AP 6,276.57

222972 7/2/2020 Law Offices of William A Vaughn AP 12,600.00

Break in check sequence due to the following: Total Void Check Count: 2

Check #222879 - #222880 (Payroll) Total Void Check Amount: 266,559.50

Total Valid Check Count: 198

Total Valid Check Amount: 816,984.84

Total Check Count: 200

Total Check Amount: 1,102,831.47



CITY OF LOS BANOS
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

JUNE 17, 2020

ACTION MINUTES - These minutes are prepared to depict action
taken for agenda items presented to the City Council. For detail of
this meeting refer to the electronic media (CD and/or audio) kept as
a permanent record.

SPECIAL NOTE: This meeting was held by teleconference due to
the COVID-19 Pandemic.

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Villalta called the City Council Meeting to order at the hour
of 4:02 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Police Chief Brizzee led the pledge of allegiance.

ROLL CALL - MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL PRESENT: Council Members
Tom Faria, Daronica Johnson-Santos (left at 5:24 pm), Brett Jones, Deborah Lewis,
Mayor Michael Villalta.

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: City Manager Terrazas, City Attorney Vaughn, City
Clerk/Human Resources Director Mallonee, Police Chief Brizzee, Fire Chief Hurley,
Finance Director Williams, Community & Economic Development Director Elms, Public
Works Director/City Engineer Fachin.

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Motion by Johnson-Santos,
seconded by Jones to approve the City Council Meeting agenda as submitted. The
motion carried by the affirmative action of all Council Member present.

PUBLIC FORUM: MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ADDRESS THE CITY COUNCIL
MEMBERS ON ANY ITEM OF PUBLIC INTEREST THAT IS WITHIN THE
JURISDICTION OF THE CITY; INCLUDES AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS.
NO ACTION WILL BE TAKEN ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS. SPEAKERS ARE
LIMITED TO A FIVE (5) MINUTE PRESENTATION. DETAILED GUIDELINES ARE
POSTED ON THE COUNCIL CHAMBER INFORMATIONAL TABLE. Mayor Villalta
asked the City Clerk if she had received any comments by email, for which City Clerk
Mallonee stated she has received many comments by email regarding Agenda Item 7 
COVID-19 Status Update. City Clerk Mallonee read the following comments into the
record: SHELLIE HOSKINS wrote in support of Los Banos Little League being able to
have their season this year; YVONNE EAGLETON wrote in support of Los Banos Little
League being able to have their season this year; ALLISEN DIAS wrote in support of
Los Banos Little League being able to have their season this year; MICHAEL LOPEZ
wrote in support of Los Banos Little League being able to have their season this year.
No other comments were received or read into the record and the public forum was
closed. Mayor Villalta requested that staff reach out to those who made comments
during the public forum regarding Los Banos Little League.



CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA. Motion by Lewis,
seconded by Faria to approve the consent agenda as follows: Check Register for
#222430 - #222570 in the Amount of $542,823.13; Minutes for the June 3, 2020 City
Council Meeting; Minutes for the June 4, 2020 Adjourned City Council Meeting; Minutes
for the June 9, 2020 Adjourned City Council Meeting; City Council Resolution No. 6226
- Authorizing the City Manager to Sign an Agreement with the Los Banos Unfied School
District for School Resource Officer Services for the 2020-2023 School Years; City
Council Resolution No. 6227 - Accepting Grant Deed for Parcel Dedications of Lot A as
Shown on that Certain Map Entitled "Shaunessy Village Phase No.3", and Lots C, D,
and E as Shown on that Certain Map Entitled "Shaunessy Village Phase No.1"; City
Council Resolution No. 6228 - Amending the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget by
Increasing Revenues in the Amount of $56,211 and Expenditures in the Amount of
$22,000 for the Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund (SLESF); City Council
Resolution No. 6229 - Authorizing Application For, and Receipt of, Local Government
Planning Support Grant Program Funds. The motion carried by the affirmative action of
all Council Members present.

COVID-19 STATUS UPDATE; CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 6223 
RATIFYING, IN PART, AMENDING, IN PART, AND RESCINDING IN PART, THAT
CERTAIN EXECUTIVE ORDER 2020-01, ORDER OF THE CITY MANAGER OF THE
CITY OF LOS BANOS IN HIS CAPACITY AS DIRECTOR OF EMERGENCY
SERVICES, DATE OF ORDER: APRIL 14, 2020. City Clerk Mallonee read the many
public comments received by email into the record: LARRY HERNANDEZ wrote in
opposition of the facemask requirement; JEAN SAGOUSPE wrote in opposition of the
facemask requirement; BAILEY WILLIAMS wrote in opposition of the facemask
requirement; RICHARD BARTON wrote in opposition of the facemask requirement;
LARRY AND RHONDA BORELLI wrote in opposition of the facemask requirement;
PATRICIA MCCOY wrote in opposition of the facemask requirement; ERICA MEZA
wrote in opposition of the facemask requirement; [unnamed email wrote in support of
the facemask requirement; LISA SOUZA wrote in opposition of the facemask
requirement; TRACI MARQUES wrote in opposition of the facemask requirement;
BROOKE LOPEZ inquired as to what the end game is, where is the medical science
that supports wearing masks, and how much money has the city received from the
State and Federal Government related to Covid-19; TRICIA CAMPOS wrote in
opposition of the facemask requirement; LEO GILARDI wrote in opposition of the
facemask requirement; JENNIFER CORREIA & GRACIANO RUBIO wrote in opposition
of the facemask requirement; ALICIA ROJAS wrote in opposition of the facemask
requirement; MARK VIERRA wrote in opposition of the facemask requirement; CYNDI
ROELOFS wrote in support of the facemask requirement.

City Manager Terrazas presented the staff report.

The Council spoke to their views and opinions on the masks and how the mask order
was put into place in order to protect the members of the community. From the
comments received from the public in the prior weeks, it appears as though most
members of the community would like the mask order to be rescinded, however Council
is torn between making a decision in favor of what the community wants versus what is
best for the health of the community.



Motion by Faria, seconded by Lewis to require face coverings in order to enter City Hall
and all City public buildings. The motion carried by the affirmative action of all Council
Members present, Jones voting NO.

Motion by Faria, seconded by Lewis to make face coverings mandatory in the Council
Chambers. The motion carried by the affirmative action of all Council Members present,
Johnson-Santos and Jones voting NO.

Motion by Jones, seconded by Johnson-Santos to RESCIND Executive Order 2020-01,
Order of the City Manager of the City of Los Banos in His Capacity as Director of
Emergency Services, Date of Order: April 14, 2020. The motion carried by the
affirmative action of all Council Members present, Faria and Lewis voting NO.

Mayor Villalta called for a short recess. The meeting reconvened and Mayor VillaIta
announced that Council Member Johnson-Santos left the meeting during the recess.

PUBLIC HEARING - TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION OF
THE APPROPRIATION LIMITATION FOR THE 2020-2021 FISCAL YEAR (FY); CITY
COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 6230 SETTING THE TAX RELATED
APPROPRIATION LIMIT IN COMPLIANCE WITH PROPOSITION 4 AND
PROPOSITION 111 FOR THE 2020-2021 FISCAL. Finance Director Williams
presented the staff report.

Mayor Villalta opened the public hearing. No one came forward to speak and the public
hearing was closed.

Motion by Lewis, seconded by Faria to adopt City Council Resolution No. 6230 
Setting the Tax Related Appropriation Limit in Compliance with Proposition 4 and
Proposition 111 for the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year. The motion carried by the affirmative
action of all Council Members present, Johnson-Santos absent.

Council Member Johnson-Santos left the meeting at 5:24 p.m.

PUBLIC HEARING - TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION OF
THE 2020-2021 FISCAL YEAR (FY) BUDGET; CITY ,COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO.
6231 - ADOPTING THE 2020-2021 FY BUDGET, INCLUDING EMPLOYEE SALARY
SCHEDULE (DIVISION 4) OF THE LOS BANOS POLICY & PROCEDURES MANUAL
AND THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN SUMMARY. Finance Director Williams
presented the staff report, which included a PowerPoint presentation.

Mayor Villalta opened the public hearing. No one came forward to speak and the public
hearing was closed.

There was Council Member and staff discussion pertaining to the fiscal responsibility of
the City and the Finance staff was congratulated on the work they do.



Motion by Lewis, seconded by Jones to adopt City Council Resolution No. 6231 
Adopting the 2020-2021 FY Budget, Including Employee Salary Schedule (Division 4) of
the Los Banos Policy & Procedures Manual and the Capital Improvement Plan
Summary. The motion carried by the affirmative action of all Council Members present,
Johnson-Santos absent.

CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 6232 
ALLOWING TEMPORARY OUTDOOR DINING IN PRIVATE PARKING LOTS AND
THE USE OF CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY TO EXPAND RESTAURANT SEATING
CAPACITY. Community & Economic Development Director Elms presented the staff
report, which included a PowerPoint presentation.

Motion by Jones, seconded by Faria to adopt City Council Resolution No. 6232 
Allowing Temporary Outdoor Dining in Private Parking Lots and the Use of City Right
of-Way to Expand Restaurant Seating Capacity. The motion carried by the affirmative
action of all Council Members present, Johnson-Santos absent.

ILLEGAL FIREWORKS PRESENTATION. Fire Chief Hurley presented the staff report,
which included a PowerPoint presentation.

No action taken, informational item only.

ADVISEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICES (One Report). Community & Economic
Development Director Elms stated that there is one item to be considered at the next
Planning Commission meeting on Wednesday, June 24, 2020 regarding a Mobile Food
Vendor Permit #2020-03 for Botanas EI Canchanilla to allow the operation of a mobile
food vending vehicle on private property located at 330 West Pacheco.

CITY MANAGER REPORT. No report

REPORT/UPDATE ON MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS
(MCAG) AND MEASURE V COMMITTEE. Mayor Villalta gave an update regarding the
continuing expansion efforts of the Billy Wright disposal site. Public Works Director/City
Engineer Fachin spoke to federal funds received that would be going towards the
synchronization project of the traffic lights on SR-152 and how the funds would be
spread over two fiscal years.

DARONICA JOHNSON-SANTOS: Absent (left the meeting at 5:24 PM)

BRETT JONES: No report.

DEBORAH LEWIS: No report.

TOM FARIA: Council Member Faria spoke regarding how modified graduation
ceremonies would be held for high school seniors in July.

MAYOR MICHAEL VILLALTA: Mayor Villalta requested that an updated report on City
parks be provided so that the public is aware of what they can and cannot partake in at



the parks. He additionally requested that staff be in touch with the little league
organizations so they are made aware of what activities are and are not allowed.

ADJOURNMENT. The meeting was adjourned at 6:34 PM.

APPROVED:

Michael VillaIta, Mayor

ATTEST:

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk



CITY OF LOS BANOS
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

JULY 1, 2020

ACTION MINUTES - These minutes are prepared to depict action
taken for agenda items presented to the City Council. For detail of
this meeting refer to the electronic media (CD and/or audio) kept as
a permanent record.

SPECIAL NOTE: This meeting was held by teleconference due to
the COVID-19 Pandemic.

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Villalta called the City Council Meeting to order at the hour
of 4:01 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Police Chief Brizzee led the pledge of allegiance.

ROLL CALL - MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL PRESENT: Council Members
Daronica Johnson-Santos, Brett Jones, Deborah Lewis, Mayor Michael Villalta;
ABSENT: Tom Faria.

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: City Manager Terrazas, City Attorney Vaughn, City
Clerk/Human Resources Director Mallonee, Police Chief Brizzee, Fire Chief Hurley,
Finance Director Williams, Community & Economic Development Director Elms, Public
Works Director/City Engineer Fachin.

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mayor VillaIta stated that staff is
requesting an item to be added to the agenda regarding Coronavirus Relief Funding.
He noted that there is an immediate need to take action, the need arose after the
posting of the agenda and the action needs to be taken and submitted no later than July
10,2020.

Motion by Lewis, seconded by Johnson-Santos to add City Council Resolution No. 6235
- Designating the City Manager to Execute the Certification for Receipt of Funds
Pursuant to Paragraphs (2) or (3) of Subdivision (D) of Control Section 11.90 of the
Budget Act of 2020 for the Purpose of Obtaining the City's Allocation of the Coronavirus
Relief Fund to the agenda as Agenda Item No. 6B. The motion carried by the following
roll call vote: AYES: Johnson-Santos, Jones, Lewis, Mayor Villalta; NOES: None;
ABSENT: Faria.

Motion by Lewis seconded by Johnson-Santos to approve the City Council Meeting
agenda as submitted with the addition of City Council Resolution No. 6235 
Designating the City Manager to Execute the Certification for Receipt of Funds Pursuant
to Paragraphs (2) or (3) of Subdivision (D) of Control Section 11.90 of the Budget Act of
2020 for the Purpose of Obtaining the City's Allocation of the Coronavirus Relief Fund to
the agenda as Agenda Item No. 6B. The motion carried by the following roll call vote:
AYES: Johnson-Santos, Jones, Lewis, Mayor Villalta; NOES: None; ABSENT: Faria.



PUBLIC FORUM: MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ADDRESS THE CITY COUNCIL
MEMBERS ON ANY ITEM OF PUBLIC INTEREST THAT IS WITHIN THE
JURISDICTION OF THE CITY; INCLUDES AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS.
NO ACTION WILL BE TAKEN ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS. SPEAKERS ARE
LIMITED TO A FIVE (5) MINUTE PRESENTATION. DETAILED GUIDELINES ARE
POSTED ON THE COUNCIL CHAMBER INFORMATIONAL TABLE. Mayor Villalta
asked the City Clerk if she had received any comments by email, for which City Clerk
Mallonee read an email from STEPHANIE GONZALEZ, Program Manager of the
California Health Collaborative with the Merced County Tobacco Control Program,
speaking about tobacco littering and noting that 6-year old Jocelyn Gomez from Los
Banos was the first place winner of their "Shoe Box Challenge". Mayor Villalta
congratulated Miss Gomez and asked that we prepare a Certificate of Appreciation for
the next Council Meeting to be presented to her.

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA. There was Council
Member and staff discussion regarding City Council Resolution No. 6235 - Designating
the City Manager to Execute the Certification for Receipt of Funds Pursuant to
Paragraphs (2) or (3) of Subdivision (D) of Control Section 11.90 of the Budget Act of
2020 for the Purpose of Obtaining the City's Allocation of the Coronavirus Relief Fund
for which City Manager Terrazas explained that staff is currently researching expenses
that these funds would be eligible for. Once a list is compiled, it will be brought to
Council for further discussion and consideration.

Motion by Johnson-Santos, seconded by Lewis to approve the consent agenda as
follows: Check Register for #222571 - #222770 in the Amount of $1,802,002.86; City
Council Resolution No. 6235 - Designating the City Manager to Execute the
Certification for Receipt of Funds Pursuant to Paragraphs (2) or (3) of Subdivision (D) of
Control Section 11.90 of the Budget Act of 2020 for the Purpose of Obtaining the City's
Allocation of the Coronavirus Relief Fund. The motion carried by the following roll call
vote: AYES: Johnson-Santos, Jones, Lewis, Mayor Villalta; NOES: None; ABSENT:
Faria.

PUBLIC HEARING - TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION OF
REPEALING LOCAL AMENDMENT AMENDMENTS SECTION 8-1.18 A AND
SECTION 8-1.18 B OF THE LOS BANOS MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO "WATER
HEATER PROHIBITED LOCATIONS AND WATER HEATER PROTECTION FROM
DAMAGE"; ORDINANCE NO. 1086 - REPEALING PREVIOUSLY ENACTED LOCAL
AMENDMENT TO THE CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE AS IT PERTAINS TO
WATER HEATERS. Fire Chief Hurley presented the staff report.

There was Council Member and staff discussion regarding the water heaters, location
requirements outlined in these amendments, and how the older homes and the
plumbing inside of these homes would be affected.

Mayor Villalta opened the public hearing. City Clerk Mallonee stated she received no
public comments by email.



Motion by Lewis, seconded by Johnson-Santos to waive the first reading of Ordinance
No. 1086 - Repealing Previously Enacted Local Amendment to the California Plumbing
Code as it Pertains to Water Heaters. The motion carried by the following roll call vote:
AYES: Johnson-Santos, Jones, Lewis, Mayor Villalta; NOES: None; ABSENT: Faria.

Motion by Lewis, seconded by Johnson-Santos to introduce Ordinance No. 1086 
Repealing Previously Enacted Local Amendment to the California Plumbing Code as it
Pertains to Water Heaters. . The motion carried by the following roll call vote: AYES:
Johnson-Santos, Jones, Lewis, Mayor Villalta; NOES: None; ABSENT: Faria.

PUBLIC HEARING - TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION OF
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT #2020-03 FOR THE ALLOWANCE OF THE OFF-SALE
OF ALCOHOL THROUGH A TYPE 20 BEER AND WINE ABC LICENSE FOR TODD
REAL ESTATE SOLUTIONS, INC. (ARCO AM PM) LOCATED AT 2027 E. PACHECO
BOULEVARD, APN 083-140-031; CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 6233 
APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT #2020-03 TO ALLOWANCE FOR THE
OFF-SALE OF BEER AND WINE UNDER A TYPE 20 ALCOHOL LICENSE FOR
TODD REAL ESTATE SOLUTIONS, INC. (ARCO AM PM) LOCATED AT 2027 E.
PACHECO BOULEVARD, APN 083-140-031. Community & Economic Development
Director Elms presented the staff report, which included a PowerPoint presentation.

Mayor Villalta opened the public hearing. City Clerk Mallonee stated she received no
public comments by email.

Motion by Jones, seconded by Johnson-Santos to adopt City Council Resolution No.
6233 - Approving Conditional Use Permit #2020-03 to Allowance for the Off-Sale of
Beer and Wine Under a Type 20 Alcohol License for Todd Real Estate Solutions, Inc.
(Arco AM PM) Located at 2027 E. Pacheco Boulevard, APN 083-140-031. The motion
carried by the following roll call vote: AYES: Johnson-Santos, Jones, Lewis, Mayor
Villalta; NOES: None; ABSENT: Faria.

CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 6234 
APPROVING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR MUNICIPAL CODE
ENFORCEMENT SERVICES [CSG CONSULTANTS. INC.) AND AMENDING THE
2020-2021 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET AS IT PERTAINS TO REVENUES AND
EXPENDITURES IN THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)
FUND. Community & Economic Development Director Elms presented the staff report,
which included a PowerPoint presentation.

There was Council Member and staff discussion regarding the grant amount and
approximately how much of that funding will be spent each fiscal year until 2023, the
scope of services CSG and the single Code Enforcement Officer will be providing, and
who would be the keepers of the records relating to these services.

Motion by Jones, seconded by Johnson-Santos to adopt City Council Resolution No.
6234 - Approving Professional Services Agreement for Municipal Code Enforcement



Services. The motion carried by the following roll call vote: AYES: Johnson-Santos,
Jones, Lewis, Mayor Villalta; NOES: None; ABSENT: Faria.

COVID-19 STATUS UPDATE. City Manager Terrazas presented the staff report and
referred to the Merced County Coronavirus Dashboard site which shows Coronavirus
statistics for cities in Merced County. He spoke to the new testing site opened in Los
Banos and provided direction on how to schedule an appointment. Earlier in the day
Governor Newsom amended California's Health Order for the 19 counties - Merced
County included - on the State's watch list which called for the closure of various indoor
services including indoor dining, indoor wineries/tasting rooms, indoor family
entertainment centers including movie theaters, indoor zoos/museums, and indoor card
rooms.

City Clerk Mallonee read the public comments received by email into the record:
TRICIA CAMPOS wrote in support of wearing facemasks.

Mayor Villalta read comments from Dr. Yu, Sutter Health Memorial Hospital Los Banos
Administrator, which stated that Los Banos' early efforts regarding the wearing of masks
were helpful in delaying a spike in cases and that these efforts need to continue in order
to keep the number of cases down and to not overwhelm the hospital's capacity.
Hospital staff are ready to provide care and their supply levels are sufficient.

There was Council Member and staff discussion pertaining to how the City is currently
pushing COVID-19 information out to the public and other options that may be more
efficient and user friendly. There was further discussion about the testing site here in
Los Banos and what the costs associated are with the testing. Ultimately, no one would
be turned away for being unable to pay.

No action taken, informational item only.

ADVISEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICES (One Report). Community & Economic
Development Director Elms stated that there is one item to be considered at the next
Planning Commission meeting on Wednesday, July 8, 2020 regarding a Vesting
Tentative Tract Map #020-02 for Mission Village South Phase 5B, a project that consists
of the subdivisions of approximately 7.81 acres into forty (40) Medium Density
residential lots and one (1) High Density Residential lot for 16 multi-family units and
Final Development Plan, located east of Merced Springs Road and south of Mission
Drive and north of Willmott Avenue, APN 428-280-012

CITY MANAGER REPORT. No report.

REPORT/UPDATE ON MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS
(MCAG) AND MEASURE V COMMITTEE. Mayor VillaIta stated that the land
acquisition for the Billy Wright disposal site is continuing on as well as the CMAQ funds
for the synchronization of the traffic lights on Highway 152. Extensions of the recycling
contracts will be brought forth for Council discussion due to the tremendous increase in
costs.



BRETT JONES: No report.

DEBORAH LEWIS: Council Member Lewis spoke to how she was driving downtown
the other day and noticed a building that had boarded up windows and that it has been
that way for a long time. She expressed her frustration with the fact that downtown
improvements are not being done and that not much progress has been made over the
years. There was supposed to be a group of people participating in improvements and
these improvements need to move forward. City Manager Terrazas stated that an
update for the Downtown Strategic Plan will be brought to Council at the first Council
Meeting in August.

Council Member Lewis wished everyone a happy 4th of July and encouraged all to not
set off illegal fireworks as there is a lot of dry brush around and there is a hefty fine
associated if you are caught. Purchase safe and sane fireworks only. She additionally
suggested that pets be microchipped in case they escape from home due to being
frightened.

TOM FARIA: Absent.

DARONICA JOHNSON-SANTOS: Council Member Johnson-Santos wished all a
happy and safe 4th of July.

MAYOR MICHAEL VILLALTA: Mayor Villalta wished all a happy and safe 4th of July.
He encouraged all to wear their masks as cases are growing. We all need to do our
part.

ADJOURNMENT. The meeting was adjourned at 5:34 PM.

APPROVED:

Michael Villalta, Mayor

ATIEST:

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk



LOS Banos
At lite C10~SIl)ad5of Cc _ . Iill

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

Agenda Staff Report

Mayor Villalta and City Council Members

Stacy Souza Elms, Community and Economic Development Director

July 15, 2020

TYPE OF REPORT: Consent

SUBJECT: Adopt a Resolution Approving Density Bonus Housing Agreement
Between the City of Los Banos and Sunset Hills Development LLC

Recommendation

Approve Resolution 2020-_

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS
APPROVING DENSITY BONUS HOUSING AGREEMENT BElWEEN
THE CITY OF LOS BANOS AND SUNSET HILLS DEVELOPMENT LLC

Background

Sunset Hills Development LLC ("Developer") is the developer and owner of
approximately .57 acres of real property in the City of Los Banos, consisting of two (2)
parcels generally located at 649 and 661 E Street, Los Banos, California. The two
parcels are currently improved with one duplex each for a total of four residential units.

On September 7, 2018, Developer submitted an application to City for approval
of a site plan to construct an additional four (4) residential structures, which consist of:
one (1) two (2) story triplex, two (2) two (2) story duplexes, and one (1) single story
single family structure, for a total of eight additional housing units (twelve (12) housing
units in total) including a request for a density bonus.



On December 12,2018 the Los Banos Planning Commission conducted a public
hearing and conditionally approved the Site Plan Review and the Density Bonus request
for the project. As a condition of granting the Density Bonus the applicant is required to
enter into a Density Bonus Housing Agreement with the City.

Discussion

Pursuant to California Law (Government Code sections 65915-65918), projects
that include specified levels of affordable housing are entitled to apply for and receive
certain density bonuses, concessions, and incentives in order to facilitate the economic
feasibility of those projects. Since Developer is proposing to restrict one (1) residential
unit to a Lower Income Household at an Affordable Rent, Developer is entitled to a
twenty percent (20%) density bonus above the otherwise maximum allowable
residential density, pursuant to Government Code section 65915(f).

The Los Banos Zoning Code permits a maximum density of ten (10) residential
units for the Site. In accordance with Density Bonus Law, by reserving one (1) Housing
Unit for Lower Income Households, Developer is entitled to develop the Site with an
additional density of twenty percent (20%) above the allowable residential density, for a
total of twelve (12) Housing Units.

The Conditions of Approval to Site Plan No. 2018-04 provide for City's granting of
a density bonus to the Project pursuant to California Government Code Section 65915,
et seq., and Los Banos Municipal Code Section 9-3.3401 through 9-3.3415, in
exchange for Developer's agreement to restrict one of the Project Housing Units to
rental and occupancy by Lower Income Households at an Affordable Rent.

The proposed project will help the City meet its Regional Housing Needs
Allocation (RHNA) obligations and will be required to comply with all of the City's
adopted design requirements. The housing units and bonus unit are permitted by-right
in the zone and are not subject to discretionary review.

In connection with the density bonus granted to the Project, the Density Bonus
Law and the Conditions of Approval require Developer to enter into a Density Bonus
Housing Agreement with City to implement Developer's affordable housing obligations for
the Project. Pursuant to the Density Bonus Law and the Conditions of Approval, the
Density Bonus Housing Agreement must be executed and recorded against the Property
in the Official Records of Merced County, California prior to City's issuance of building
permits for the Project. The required Covenant will place a restriction that runs upon the
subject property to restrict one (1) housing unit as affordable to a lower income
household for a period of fifty-five (55) years. The Agreement provides for: Occupancy
Limits; Ongoing maintenance of the property; a Management Plan; and Annual Income
Verification and Certification; Monitoring & Recertification.



The major provisions of the Agreement are as follows:

• Fifty-five year term.
• Developer shall make available, restrict occupancy to, and rent one (1) of the

Housing Units at the Project to Lower Income Households at an Affordable
Rent.

• Each year, Owner shall submit to the City's Director of Community and
Economic Development a maximum rent schedule for the Affordable Unit(s),
not to exceed the Affordable Rent for Lower Income Households as annually
determined pursuant to California Health &Safety Code Section 50053(b)(3).

• The maximum occupancy for each of the Housing Units shall not exceed two
persons per bedroom, plus one additional person.

• Owner shall maintain or cause to be maintained the Property and all
improvements on the Property in good condition or repair (and, as to
landscaping, in healthy condition).

• The Owner, shall conduct an annual self-inspection of all the residential rental
dwelling units, including exterior conditions and site conditions, and certify
under penalty of pe~ury that the conditions at the property are in good
condition or repair as listed on the self-certification program checklist.

• Owner shall annually certify the income eligibility of the occupants of the
Affordable Unit.

"Lower income households" means persons and families whose income does not
exceed the qualifying limits for lower income families as established and amended from
time to time pursuant to Section 8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937. The lower
income limits are based upon "Area Median Income" for Merced County, adjusted by
household size appropriate to the unit, as periodically published by the State of
California Department of Housing and Community Development in section 6932 of Title
25 of the California Code of Regulations, or successor regulation

Fiscal Impact:

Approval of this item will not result in net city cost.

CEQA

This Resolution is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act
("CEQA") pursuant to Section 15060(c)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines (Title 14, Chapter 3
of the California Code of Regulations) because the activity will not result in a direct or
reasonable foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment, and Section
15060(c)(3) because the activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the
CEQA Guidelines because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to the
environment, directly or indirectly.



Conclusion:

Staff is available to answer any questions.

ReViewed~

II 1\-==
Alex Terrazas, City Manager



RESOLUTION NO. _

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF LOS BANOS APPROVING DENSITY
BONUS HOUSING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
CITY OF LOS BANOS AND SUNSET HILLS
DEVELOPMENT LLC

WHEREAS, Sunset Hills Development LLC ("Developer") submitted an
application to City for approval of a site plan to construct an additional four (4)
residential structures, which consist of: one (1) two (2) story triplex, two (2) two (2) story
duplexes, and one (1) single story single family structure, totaling 12,124 square feet.
The proposed development would provide eight (8) additional residential units to the
Site, inclusive of a 20% density bonus ("Project");

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Law (Government Code sections 65915
65918), projects that include specified levels of affordable housing are entitled to apply
for and receive certain density bonuses, concessions, and incentives in order to
facilitate the economic feasibility of those projects;

WHEREAS, since Developer is proposing to restrict one (1) residential unit to a
Lower Income Household at an Affordable Rent, Developer is entitled to a twenty (20%)
percent density bonus above the otherwise maximum allowable residential density,
pursuant to Government Code section 65915(f);

WHEREAS, in response to Developer's application, the Los Banos Planning
Commission adopted Resolution No. 2018-37 approving Site Plan No. 2018-04 for the
Project, subject to certain Conditions of Approval;

WHEREAS, the Conditions of Approval to Site Plan No. 2018-04 provide for
City's granting of a density bonus to the Project pursuant to California Government
Code Section 65915, et seq., and Los Banos Municipal Code Section 9-3.3401
through 9-3.3415 in exchange for Developer's agreement to restrict one of the Project
Residential Housing Units to rental and occupancy by Lower Income Households at an
Affordable Rent;

WHEREAS, in connection with the density bonus granted to the Project, the
Density Bonus Law and the Conditions of Approval require Developer to enter into a
Density Bonus Housing Agreement with City to implement Developer's affordable
housing obligations for the Project. Pursuant to the Density Bonus Law and the
Conditions of Approval, the Density Bonus Housing Agreement must be executed and
recorded against the Property in the Official Records of Merced County, California prior
to City's issuance of building permits for the Project;

1



WHEREAS, the development of the Project on the Property pursuant to the
Density Bonus Housing Agreement, and the fulfillment generally of the terms of the
Agreement, are in the vital and best interests of the City and the welfare of its residents,
and in accordance with the public purposes and provisions of applicable federal, state,
and local laws and requirements;

WHEREAS, the City of Los Banos Housing Element 2014-2023 calls for the City
to U[E]nsure that all residents have access to housing";

WHEREAS, the City of Los Banos Housing Element 2014-2023 calls for the City
to "[M]aintain an adequate percentage of affordable rental units within the City to
accommodate all income groups and family types";

WHEREAS, the proposed Density Bonus Housing Agreement (Exhibit A) meets
the criteria as set forth by Section 9-3.3414 (Density Bonus Housing Agreement
Required) of the Los Banos Municipal Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS,
CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The City Council, pursuant to the facts noted above, does hereby
approve Density Bonus Housing Agreement between the City Of Los Banos and Sunset
Hills Development LLC. The density bonus housing agreement describes the density
bonus, incentives, and affordability restrictions. The Agreement will be recorded against
the entire residential development. The approval and execution of the density bonus
housing agreement shall take place prior to the issuance of building permits. The
affordable housing agreement shall bind all future owners and successors in interest for
the term of 55 years.

SECTION 2. The adoption of Density Bonus Housing Agreement for the Project
is consistent with the goals and objectives of the adopted City of Los Banos Housing
Element 2014-2023.

SECTION 3. The foregoing Density Bonus Housing Agreement is exempt from
the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") under Section 15061(b)(3) of the
CEQA Guidelines, which provides that CEQA only applies to projects that have the
potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Where, as here, it can be
seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a
significant effect on the environment and is not subject to CEQA.

SECTION 4. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution is for
any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of any
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portions of this resolution. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed
this Resolution, and each and every section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase

2



thereof not declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to whether any portion of
the ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 5. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution which
shall be effective upon its adoption.

The foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council
of the City of Los Banos held on the _ day of 2020, by Council
Member who moved its adoption, which motion was duly seconded by Council
Member and the Resolution adopted by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Michael Villalta, Mayor

ATTEST:

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk

3



RECORDING REQUESTED BY
AND WHEN RECORDED, MAIL TO:

City of Los Banos
520 J Street
Los Banos, CA 93635
Attn: City Clerk

APN: 025-063-018 & 025-063-019

(Space Above This Line Is for Recorder's Use Only)

This docwnent is recorded at the request and for the
benefit of the City of Los Banos and is exempt from the
payment of a recording fee pursuant to Government Code
section 27383.

DENSITY BONUS HOUSING AGREEMENT AND
DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

July_, 2020

BY AND BETWEEN

THE CITY OF LOS BANOS

and

SUNSET HILLS DEVELOPMENT LLC

THIS DOCUMENT, INCLUDING EXHIBITS, TOTALS __ PAGES.
EACH PAGE IS "BATES STAMPED" SEQUENTIALLY IN THE LOWER RIGHT HAND CORNER.



DENSITY BONUS HOUSING AGREEMENT AND
DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

(649 and 661 E Street; APN: 025-063-018 & 025-063-019)

[THIS AGREEMENT CONTAINS SUBORDINATION REQUIREMENTS TO
PRESERVE PRIORITY OF LAND USE AND REGULATORY COVENANTS]

This DENSITY BONUS HOUSING AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), dated for
identification purposes only as of July _, 2020 ("Effective Date"), is entered into by and
between the CITY OF LOS BANOS, a California municipal corporation ("City"), and Sunset
Hills Development LLC, a California limited liability company (hereinafter referred to as
"Developer" or "Owner").

RECITALS

A. As of the Effective Date, Sunset Hills Development LLC is the developer and
owner of approximately .57 acres of real property in the City of Los Banos, consisting of two (2)
parcels generally located at 649 and 661 E Street, Los Banos, California, as more particularly
described in the Legal Description attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Site"
or "Property"). The Property is located within the Medium Residential Zoning District (R-2),
which pennits construction of multi-family residential housing. The Property is currently
improved with two (2) existing duplexes totaling four (4) residential units.

B. Developer submitted an application to City for approval of a site plan to
construct an additional four (4) residential structures, which consist of: one (1) two (2) story
triplex, two (2) two (2) story duplexes, and one (1) single story single family structure, totaling
12,124 square feet. The proposed development would provide eight (8) additional residential
units to the Site, inclusive ofa 20% density bonus. ("Project").

C. Pursuant to California Law (Government Code sections 65915-65918), projects
that include specified levels of affordable housing are entitled to apply for and receive certain
density bonuses, concessions, and incentives in order to facilitate the economic feasibility of
those projects.

D. Since Developer is proposing to restrict one (1) residential unit to a Lower
Income Household at an Affordable Rent, Developer is entitled to a twenty (20) percent density
bonus above the otherwise maximum allowable residential density, pursuant to Government
Code section 65915(f).

E. In response to Developer's application, the Los Banos Planning Commission
adopted Resolution No. 2018-37 approving Site Plan No. 2018-04 for the Project, subject to
certain Conditions ofApproval.

F. The Conditions ofApproval to site Plan No. 2018-04 provide for City's granting
of a density bonus to the Project pursuant to California Government Code Section 65915, et seq.,



and Los Banos Municipal Code Section 9-3.3401 through 9-3.3415 (collectively, "Density
Bonus Law"), in exchange for Developer's agreement to restrict one of the Project Housing
Units to rental and occupancy by Lower Income Households at an Affordable Rent.

G. In connection with the density bonus granted to the Project, the Density Bonus
Law and the Conditions of Approval require Developer to enter into a Density Bonus Housing
Agreement with City to implement Developer's affordable housing obligations fur the Project.
Pursuant to the Density Bonus Law and the Conditions of Approval, the Density Bonus Housing
Agreement must be executed and recorded against the Property in the Official Records ofMerced
County, California prior to City's issuance ofbuilding permits for the Project.

H. The development of the Project on the Property pursuant to this Agreement, and
the fulfillment generally of this Agreement, are in the vital and best interests of the City and the
welfare of its residents, and in accordance with the public purposes and provisions of applicable
federal, state, and local laws and requirements.

I. This Agreement shall be recorded, prior to the issuance of building permits for
the Project, in the Official Records of Merced County, California, as senior, non-subordinate
covenants and as an encumbrance running with the land for the full Term (defined below) of this
Agreement. In no event shall this Agreement be made junior or subordinate to any deed of trust
or other documents providing financing for the construction or operation of the Project, or any
other lien or encumbrance whatsoever for the entire Term of this Agreement. Nor shall this
Agreement be made junior or subordinate to any extension, amendment, or modification of any
lien or encumbrance recorded against the Site prior to the date hereof.

J. The foregoing Recitals are true and correct and constitute a substantive part of
this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained
herein, the City and Developer agree as follows:

Section 1. Def"mitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms, phrases and
words shall have the meanings and be interpreted as set forth in this Section.

(a) Adjusted for family size appropriate to the unit has the same meaning as in Health
and Safety Code Section 50052.5(h).

(b) Affordable Rent means the maximum monthly rental rates for the Affordable Unit,
calculated as set forth in this Agreement, not to exceed the Affordable Rent for Lower Income
Households as annually determined pursuant to California Health & Safety Code Section
50053(b)(3).

(c) Affordable Unit/Target Unit means one floating housing unit at the Project which is
required to be made available for, rented to, and occupied by Lower Income Households paying
an Affordable Rent, as set forth in more detail below.



(d) Agreement means this Density Bonus Housing Agreement and Declaration of
Restrictive Covenants between City and Developer.

(e) Area Median Income means the Merced County area median income, adjusted by
household size appropriate to the unit, as determined and published annually for each county in
California by the California Department ofHousing and Community Development.

(f) City means the City of Los Banos, a California municipal corporation.

(g) Conditions of Approval means the conditions imposed by the City in connection
with the approval of Developer's Site Plan No. 2018-04 pursuant to Planning Commission
Resolution No. 2018-37.

(h) Effective Date of Agreement means the date set forth in the first paragraph of this
Agreement.

(i) Density Bonus Law means California Government Code Section 65915, et seq., and
Los Banos Municipal Code Section 9-3.3401 through 9-3.3415. In the event of a conflict
between State and City law, Government Code Section 65915 et seq. shall control.

G) Developer or Owner means Sunset Hills Development LLC, a California limited
liability company and all successors and assigns.

(k) Eligible Household means a person or family that meets the definition of Lower
Income Household.

(1) Housing Units means each of the twelve (12) total residential units including those to
be constructed by Developer at the Site. The Housing Units consist of one (1) triplex, four (4)
duplexes, one (1) single family residence and are a mix of2-3 bedroom units.

(m) Lower Income Household has the meaning set forth in California Health and Safety
Code section 50079.5.

(n) Project means the multi-family use complex existing on and to be constructed by
Developer on the Property, which includes two (2) existing structures and four (4) new structures
for a total of six (6) structures incorporating twelve (12) residential Housing Units and associated
parking, all in accordance with Site Plan No. 2018-04 and this Agreement.

(m) Site or Property means that certain approximately .51 acres of real property
consisting oftwo (2) parcels generally located at 649 and 661 E Street, Los Banos, California, as
more particularly described in the Legal Description attached hereto as Exhibit A and
incorporated herein.

(n) Term means the term of effectiveness of this Agreement, which shall continue for
fifty-five (55) years from the date the final certificate ofoccupancy is issued for the Project.



Section 2. Density Bonus and Development Concessions and Incentives. Developer
requested and was granted the following density bonus and development concessions and
incentives as part ofthe approval of Developer's Site Plan No. 2018-04 for the Project:

(a) Density Bonus. The Los Banos Zoning Code permits a maximum density often (10)
residential units for the Site. In accordance with Density Bonus Law, by reserving one (1)
Housing Unit for Lower Income Households, Developer is entitled to develop the Site with an
additional density of twenty percent (20%) above the allowable residential density, for a total of
twelve (12) Housing Units.

(b) Concessions, Incentives, and Waivers. None requested by the Developer.

Section 3. No Further Concessions, Incentives or Waivers. Developer acknowledges
and agrees that the concessions, incentives, and waivers set forth in Section 2 above fully satisfy
any duty City may have under Density Bonus Law, or any other law or regulation applicable to
the Project, to provide any development concession, incentive or to waive any building, zoning,
or other requirement. By this Agreement, Developer releases any and all claims Developer may
have against City in any way relating to or arising from City's obligation to waive requirements
of or provide development concessions or incentives pursuant to any state, federal, or local law,
rule, or regulation applicable to the Project.

Section 4. Affordable Unit/Target Unit. Developer hereby agrees to make available,
restrict occupancy to, and rent one (1) of the Housing Units at the Project to Lower Income
Households at an Affordable Rent. The Affordable Unit/Target Unit shall be a floating unit that
is not permanently designated.

(a) Except as expressly provided herein, throughout the term of this Agreement, the
Affordable Unites) shall be rented only to, and occupied only by, Eligible Households at
Affordable Rent. Owner shall not increase Affordable Unit's rent more than one (1) time per
twelve (12) month period and any increase shall not exceed the permitted Affordable Rent at the
time of increase.

(b) Prior to the City's issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the Housing Project, and
annually thereafter, and on each anniversary date thereafter, or if preferred by Owner and
approved in writing by City, within sixty (60) days prior to January 1 of each year, Owner shall
submit to the City's Director of Community and Economic Development a maximum rent
schedule for the Affordable Unites). Maximum rents for the Affordable Unites) set forth in such
schedule shall not exceed the Affordable Rent. Owner shall rent the Affordable Units to Eligible
Households at no more than the allowable Affordable Rents for a household size appropriate to
the unit, in accordance with the Affordable Housing Covenant. The rental rates for the
Affordable Units shall be adjusted annually based upon annual updates of the applicable income
and rent standards, including but not limited to updates published by the California Housing and
Community Development Department and the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. In no event shall any of the Affordable Units be rented at a rate greater than the
applicable Affordable Rent. Failure to comply with the affordability requirements of this
Agreement is an event of default.



Section 5. Use of the Site - Restrictions. All uses conducted on the Site, including,
without limitation, all activities undertaken by the Developer pursuant to this Agreement shall
conform to all applicable provisions of the Los Banos Municipal Code and other applicable
federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations. The Project shall at all times during the term
of this Agreement be used as an residential complex and none of the Housing Units in the Project
shall at any time be utilized on a transient basis, nor shall the Site or any portion thereof ever be
used as a hotel, motel, donnitory, fraternity or sorority house, rooming house, hospital, nursing
home, sanitarium or rest home, short- term or vacation rental, or be converted to condominium
ownership. All of the community facilities, if any, to the Project's residents shall be available at
all times on an equal, non-discriminatory basis to residents of all Housing Units at the Project.

Section 6. Duration of Affordability Requirements. The Housing Units and Project
shall be subject to the requirements, restrictions, and covenants of this Agreement throughout the
entire Term of this Agreement.

Section 7. Schedule of Completion. The Affordable Unit shall be constructed and
completed concurrently with the non-restricted Housing Units in the Project on or before twenty
four (24) months from the Effective Date subject to one (1) twelve (12) month extension.

Section 8. Occupancy Limits. The maximum occupancy for each of the Housing Units
shall not exceed two persons per bedroom, plus one additional person. The minimum occupancy
for the Affordable Unit shall be no less than one (1) person per bedroom.

Section 9. Maintenance. For the Term of the Agreement, Owner shall maintain or
cause to be maintained the Property and all improvements on the Property in good condition or
repair (and, as to landscaping, in healthy condition) and in accordance with all applicable laws,
rules, ordinances, and regulations of all federal, state, county, and municipal, and other
governmental agencies or bodies having jurisdiction over the Property.

City places prime importance on quality maintenance to ensure that residential
developments which include affordable units are not allowed to deteriorate due to substandard
maintenance or otherwise maintained in a manner constituting a public nuisance. In addition,
Owner shall keep the Property free from all graffiti and any accumulation of debris or waste
material. Owner shall make all repairs and replacements necessary to keep the improvements in
first class condition and repair and shall promptly eliminate all graffiti and replace dead and
diseased plants and landscaping with comparable materials.

The Owner, shall conduct an annual self-inspection of all the residential rental dwelling
units, including exterior conditions and site conditions, and certify under penalty of perjury that
the conditions at the property are in good condition or repair as listed on the self-certification
program' checklist. All information on said self-certification checklist shall be submitted under
penalty of perjury. The owner shall not be in violation of this section if a tenant or occupant
refuses to allow the inspection of the housing unit,

Upon forty-eight (48) hours' notice, during normal business hours and as often as may be



deemed necessary, City and its authorized agents and representatives shall be permitted access to
and the right to inspect the Property for the purpose of verifying compliance with applicable
regulations and compliance with the conditions of this Agreement. The Owner agrees to
cooperate with the City in making the said Property available for such inspection. The Owner
shall not be in violation of this section if a tenant or occupant refuses to allow the inspection of
the housing unit.

In the event that Owner breaches any of the covenants contained under this Section 9 and
such default continues for a period of five (5) calendar days after written notice from City is
given to Owner (or such longer time as specified by the City), then City, in addition to whatever
other remedy it may have at law or in equity, shall have the right to enter upon the Property and
perform all acts and work necessary to protect, maintain, and preserve the improvements and
landscaped areas of the Property, and to attach a lien on the Property, or to assess the Property, in
the amount of the expenditures arising from such acts or work of protection, maintenance, and
preservation by City andlor cost of such cure, including a ten percent (10%) administrative
charge, which amount shall be promptly paid by Owner to City upon demand.

Section 10. Management Plan. Developer shall submit to the Community and Economic
Development Department for approval, a Management Plan which sets forth in detail
Developer's property management duties, a tenant selection process in accordance with this
Agreement, a security system and crime prevention program, the procedures for the collection of
rent, the procedures for eviction of tenants, the rules and regulations of the Site and manner of
enforcement, a standard lease form, an operating budget, the identity of the Property Manager,
and other matters relevant to the management of the Site. The management of the Site shall be in
compliance with the Management Plan as approved by City.

If City determines that the performance of the Property Manager is deficient based upon
the standards set forth in the approved Management Plan and in this Agreement, City shall
provide notice to Developer of such deficiencies and Developer shall use its best efforts to
correct such deficiencies.

Section 11. Selection of Tenants. Developer shall be responsible for the selection of
tenants for the Housing Units in compliance with lawful and reasonable criteria and the
requirements of this Agreement.

Prior to the rental or lease of an Affordable Unit to a tenant(s), Developer shall require
the tenant(s) to execute a Tenant Income Verification Form (in substantially the form attached
hereto as Exhibit B) certifying that the tenant(s) occupying the Affordable Unit islare a Lower
Income Household and otherwise meet(s) the eligibility requirements established for the
Affordable Unit. Developer shall verify the income of the tenant(s) as set forth in Section 12
below.

III
III
III



Section 12. Income Verification and Certification; Monitoring & Recertification;
City Monitoring Fee; Recordkeeping.

(a) During the Term of this Agreement, Owner shall, at Owner's sole cost and expense,
determine and verify the eligibility of a Lower Income Household for the rental of the
Affordable Unit in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.
Immediately prior to a prospective tenant's occupancy of an Affordable Unit, and annually
thereafter, Owner shall obtain and maintain on file an income computation and certification form
from such prospective tenant dated immediately prior to the date of initial occupancy of an
Affordable Unit by such prospective tenant. Owner shall verify that the income information
provided by an applicant is accurate by taking one or more of the following steps as a part of the
verification process: (i) obtain two (2) pay stubs from the most recent pay periods; (ii) obtain a
written verification of income and employment from applicant's current employer; (iii) obtain an
income verification form from the Social Security Administration and/or California Department
of Social Services if the applicant receives assistance from either agency; (iv) if an applicant is
unemployed or did not file a tax return for the previous calendar year, obtain other verification of
such applicant's income as is reasonably satisfactory; or (v) obtain such other information as
may be reasonably required. Owner shall retain the records described in this Section for a period
ofthree (3) years after the date the respective records were created.

(b) Within sixty (60) days prior to the first anniversary date of the occupancy of an
Affordable Unit by an Eligible Household, and on each anniversary date thereafter, or if
preferred by Owner and approved in writing by City, within sixty (60) days prior to January 1 of
each year, Owner shall recertify the income of such Eligible Household by obtaining a
completed Income Computation and Certification Form based upon the current income of each
occupant of the Affordable Unit in substantially the same form as attached hereto as Exhibit B.
In the event that recertification demonstrates that a Household's income exceeds the income
permitted for Eligible Household, status, Owner shall perform either of the following: (1) To the
extent permitted by applicable law, the occupants' lease shall not be renewed and said occupants
shall be required to vacate the unit within one hundred and eighty (180) days after the
recertification; or (2) the next available Unrestricted Unit in the Project shall be leased as an
Affordable Unit at Affordable Rent to an Eligible Household in accordance with this Agreement.

(c) For purposes of defraying the monitoring activities required to ensure compliance
with the State Density Bonus law and the covenants set forth herein, Owner shall pay the City
Monitoring Fee no later than December 31 of each year during the Term of this Agreement. The
City shall deliver to Owner an invoice for the City Monitoring Fee no later than November 30 of
the same year for which payment will be due. In the event that City fails to deliver an invoice for
the applicable year, Owner shall have no obligation to pay the City Monitoring Fee for that year
only, and Owner shall not be relived of the payment obligation for any future City Monitoring
Fees for which City timely delivers an invoice. The City Monitoring Fee shall be used to monitor
compliance with the State Density Bonus and covenants set forth herein.

(d) Representatives of the City shall be entitled to enter the Project, upon at least forty
eight (48) hour notice, to monitor compliance with this Agreement, to inspect the records of the
Project, including, but not limited to, those records pertaining to tenant eligibility and occupancy



of the Affordable Unit, and to conduct an independent audit or inspection of such records. The
Owner agrees to cooperate with the City in making the said records available for such inspection
or audit. Owner agrees to maintain records in businesslike manner, and to maintain such records
for at least three (3) years.

Section 13. Non-discrimination Covenants. The Owner herein covenants by and for
itself, its successors or assigns, and all persons claiming under or through them, that there shall
be no discrimination against or segregation of, any person or group of persons on account of any
basis listed in subdivision (a) or (d) of Section 12955 ofthe Government Code, as those bases are
defined in Sections 12926, 12926.1, subdivision (m) and paragraph (1) of subdivision (P) of
Section 12955, and Section 12955.2 of the Government Code, in the sale, lease, sublease,
transfer, use, occupancy, tenure, or enjoyment of the Units, nor shall the Owner or any person
claiming under or through him or her, establish or permit any practice or practices of
discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, number, use or occupancy
of tenants, lessees, subtenants, sublessees, or vendees in the Project. The foregoing covenants
shall run with the land.

Section 14. Indemnity. Developer shall, at its expense, defend (with counsel acceptable
to City and subject to approval by Developer), indemnify, and hold harmless City, and their
officers, agents, employees and representatives from any and all losses, liabilities, claims,
lawsuits, causes of action, judgments, settlements, court costs, attorneys' fees, expert witness
fees, and other legal expenses, costs of evidence of title, costs of evidence of value, and other
damages ofwhatsoever nature arising out of or in connection with Developer's failure to perform
Developer's obligations under this Agreement, Developer's ownership or operation of the Site,
or the development of the Project, except for such liability arising from the gross negligence or
willful misconduct ofCity.

Section 15. Agreement to be Recorded; Covenants Run with the Land; Priority. This
Agreement shall be recorded, prior to the issuance of building permits for the Project, in the
Official Records of Merced County, California, as senior, non-subordinate covenants and as an
encumbrance running with the land for the full Term of this Agreement. In no event shall this
Agreement be made junior or subordinate to any deed of trust or other documents providing
financing for the construction or operation of the Project, or any other lien or encumbrance
whatsoever for the entire Term of this Agreement. Nor shall this Agreement be made junior or
subordinate to any extension, amendment, or modification of any lien or encumbrance recorded
against the Site prior to the date hereof Prior to recordation of this Agreement, Developer shall
provide City with evidence satisfactory to the City that all deeds of trust, liens, encumbrances, or
other documents recorded against the Site, if any, have been or will be subordinated to this
Agreement, at Developer's sole cost and expense.

Section 16. Mortgage Protection. No breach or default under this Agreement shall
defeat, terminate, extinguish, render invalid or otherwise affect the lien of any junior mortgage or
deed oftrust encumbering the Site, the Project, or any part thereof or interest therein.

Section 17. Default. An event of default occurs under this Agreement when: (a) there is a
breach of any condition, covenant or promise set forth herein; (b) written notice thereof has been



given to the defaulting party; and (c) such breach has not been cured within thirty (30) days after
such notice was given to the defaulting party or, if such breach cannot reasonably be cured
within such thirty (30) day period, the defaulting party fails to commence to cure the breach and/or
fails thereafter to diligently proceed to complete such cure. A waiver by either party of any such
breach shall not be construed as a waiver of any succeeding breach of the same or other
condition, covenant or promise.

Section 18. Remedies. The occurrence of an event of default hereunder shall give the
non- defaulting party the right to proceed with any and all remedies available at law or equity.
Such remedies may include an action for damages, an action or proceeding for specific
performance, and/or an action or proceeding for injunctive relief. Such actions or proceedings
may require the defaulting party to pay damages, to perform its obligations and covenants under
this Agreement, and to enjoin or cease and desist from acts which may be unlawful or in
violation ofthe provisions ofthis Agreement.

Section 19. Additional Remedies for Certain Defaults; Remedy For Excessive Rent
Charge.

(a) It shall constitute a default for the Developer to charge or accept for any Affordable
Unit rent amounts in excess of the Affordable Rent. In the event that the Developer charges or
receives such higher rental amounts, in addition to any other legal or equitable remedy that the
City shall have for such default, the Developer shall be required to pay to the City an amount
equal to the difference between the Affordable Rent that should have been charged and the
amount of the rent received from the tenant, plus interest compounded at the maximum rate
allowable for judgments.

(b) It shall also constitute a default for the Developer to fail to rent any of the required
Affordable Units to a Lower Income Household, or to knowingly (or without investigation as
required herein) initially rent any Affordable Unit to a tenant who is not a Lower Income
Household. In the event the Developer violates this provision, in addition to any other remedy at
law or equity that the City shall have for such default, the Developer, for each separate violation,
shall be required to pay to the City an amount equal to the total rent the Developer received from
such ineligible tenant, plus interest compounded at the maximum rate allowable for judgments.

Section 20. Attorneys' Fees and Costs. In addition to any other remedies provided
hereunder or available pursuant to law, if either party to this Agreement commences an action
against the other party to this Agreement arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys' fees, expert witness fees, costs
of investigation, and costs of suit from the losing party.

Section 21. Rights and Remedies Cumulative. The rights and remedies of the parties
are cumulative, and the exercise by either party of one or more of its rights or remedies shall not
preclude the exercise by it, at the same or different times, of any other rights or remedies for the
same default or any other default by the other party.



Section 22. Time of Essence. Time is expressly made of the essence with respect to the
performance by City and Developer of each and every obligation and condition of this
Agreement.

Section 23. Third Party Beneficiaries. No persons or entities other than the parties and
their successors and assigns shall have any right of action under this Agreement.

Section 24. City Approvals and Actions. City shall maintain authority of this
Agreement and the authority to implement this Agreement through City Manager (or his duly
authorized representative). City Manager (or his designee) shall have the authority to make
approvals, issue interpretations, waive provisions, make and execute further agreements and/or
enter into amendments of this Agreement on behalf of City so long as such actions do not
materially or substantially change the uses or development permitted on the Site, or materially or
substantially add to the costs incurred or to be incurred by City as specified herein, and such
interpretations, waivers and/or amendments may include extensions of time to perform. All other
material and/or substantive interpretations, waivers, or amendments shall require the
consideration, action and written consent of the City.

Section 25. Successor and Assigns. This Agreement shall run with the land, and all of
the terms, conditions, restrictions, and covenants contained in this Agreement shall be binding
upon Developer, City, their permitted successors and assigns, and all successors in interest to all
or any portion of the Site or the Project. Whenever the terms "Developer" or "City" are used in
this Agreement, such terms shall include any other successors and assigns as herein provided.
Not later than thirty (30) days prior to a transfer of any interest in the Site or the Project or any
interest in Developer, Developer shall provide written notice to the City of such transfer.

Section 26. Notices. Any approval, disapproval, demand, document or other notice which
either party may desire to give to the other party under this Agreement must be in writing and
may be given either by (i) personal service, (ii) delivery by reputable document delivery service
such as Federal Express that provides a receipt showing date and time of delivery, (iii) mailing in
the United States first-class mail, postage prepaid, or (iv) by email, with confirmation ofreceipt to
the intended recipient, addressed to the address of the party as set forth below, or at any other
address as that party may later designate by notice:

If to the City:
City of Los Banos
520 J Street
Los Banos, CA 93635
Attention: Community & Economic
Development Director

If to the Developer:
Sunset Hills Development LLC
575 Southside Drive, Suite C
Gilroy, CA 95020
Attention: Joe Rocha



Section 27. Amendment. Any alteration, change or modification of or to this Agreement,
in order to become effective, shall be made in writing and in each instance signed on behalf of
each party. Each alteration, change, or modification to this Agreement shall be recorded against
the Site in the Official Records ofMerced County, California.

Section 28. Legal Advice. Each party represents and warrants to the other the following:
they have carefully read this Agreement, and in signing this Agreement, they do so with full
knowledge of any right which they may have; they have received independent legal advice from
their respective legal counsel as to the matters set forth in this Agreement, or have knowingly
chosen not to consult legal counsel as to the matters set forth in this Agreement, and they have
freely signed this Agreement without any reliance upon any agreement, promise, statement or
representation by or on behalf of the other party, or their respective agents, employees or
attorneys, except as specifically set forth in this Agreement, and without duress or coercion,
whether economic or otherwise.

Section 29. Project as a Private Undertaking. It is specifically understood and agreed
by and between the parties hereto that the development ofthe Project is a private development, that
neither party is acting as the agent of the other in any respect hereunder, and that each party is an
independent contracting entity with respect to the terms, covenants and conditions contained in
this Agreement. No partnership, joint venture or other association of any kind is formed by this
Agreement. The only relationship between City and Developer is that of a government entity
regulating the development ofprivate property and the owner of such property.

Section 30. Exhibits. This Agreement includes the following exhibits, each of which is
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference:

III
III
III
/II
/II
III
III
/II
III
III
III
III
III
III

Exhibit A:

Exhibit B:

Legal Description ofSite

Tenant Income Verification Form



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement was executed by the parties thereto on the
dates set forth below.

CITY OF LOS BANOS
A municipal corporation

By: _
Mayor

ArrEST:

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney

SUNSET HILLS DEVELOPMENT LLC

By: _

Its:-----------

Dated----------

Dated----------

Dated----------

Dated:---------

SIGNATURES MUST BE NOTARIZED



ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness,
accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California )
County of )

On ,2020, before me, , a Notary Public,
personally appeared ,
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same
in hislher/their authorized capacity, and that by hislher/their signature(s) on the instrument the
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that
the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature _
[SEAL]



ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness,
accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California )
County of )

On , 2020, before me, , a Notary Public,
personally appeared ,
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same
in hislher/their authorized capacity, and that by hislher/their signature(s) on the instrument the
person(s), or the entity upon behalfof which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that
the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature _
[SEAL]



EXHmITA

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF SITE

To Be Inserted by Staff



EXHIBIT B

SAMPLE
TENANT INCOME VERIFICATION FORM

Part I -- General Infonnation

1. Project Location:

2. Landlord's Name:

Part II -- Unit Infonnation

3. Unit
Number

4. Number of
Bedrooms

5. Monthly
Rent

$----

6. Number of
Occupants

Part III -- Affidavit ofTenant

7. I, , and I, as applicants for rental of an
apartment unit at the above described location, do hereby represent and warrant that (my/our)
gross household income (anticipated total annual income from all household members over
age 18) does not exceed the maximum income set forth for a lower income household in
Merced County, adjusted for a household size appropriate to the Housing Unit, as published
from time to time by the State Department of Housing and Community Development in the
California Code of Regulations.

(I/We) understand that the current maximum household income for a lower income household
occupying a [two-bedroom/three-bedroom/four- bedroom] unit in Merced Countyis $ ...,-- _
The following computation includes all household income (I/we) anticipate receiving for the 12
month period beginning on the date (I/we) execute a rental agreement for a housing unit or the date
on which (I/we) will initially occupy such unit, whichever is earlier.

Tenant Initials



8. Tenants qualifying above must complete the following:

Monthly Gross Household Income
(All Sources of Income of All Household Members Over Age 18 Must be Listed. Use

Separate Sheet of Paper if Necessary.)

Source Head of Co-Tenant #1 Monthly Total
Household

'Name

Gross amount, before payroll
deductions, of wages, salaries,
overtime pay, commissions, fees, tips
and bonuses

Interest and/or dividends

Net income from business or from
ental property

Social security, annuities, insurance
policies, pension/retirement funds,
disability or death benefits received
!periodically

lPayment in lieu of earnings, such as
tunemployment and disability
~ompensation, worker's
~ompensationand severance pay

Alimony, child support, other
periodic allowances

Public assistance, welfare payments

Regular pay, special pay and
allowances of members of Armed
Porces

Other

Total:

Total x 12 = Gross Annual Household Income



Note: The following items are not considered income: casual, sporadic or irregular gifts;
amounts specifically for or in reimbursement of medical expenses; lump sum payments such as
inheritances, insurance payments (including payments under health and accident insurance and
worker's compensation), capital gains and settlement for personal or property losses; educational
scholarships paid directly to the student or educational institution; government benefits to a
veteran for education; special pay to a serviceman head of family away from home and under
hostile fire; foster child care payments; value of coupon allotments for purpose of food under
Food Stamp Act of 1964 which is in excess of amount actually charged the eligible household;
relocation payments under federal, state, or local relocation law; payments received pursuant to
participation in the following programs: VISTA, Service Learning Programs, and Special
Volunteer Programs, SCORE, ACE, Retired Senior Volunteer Program, Foster Grandparent
Program, Older American Community Services Program, and National Volunteer Program to
Assist Small Business Experience.

9. This affidavit is made with the knowledge that it will be relied upon by the Landlord to
determine gross household income for eligibility and (I/we) warrant that all information set forth
in this document is true, correct and complete and based upon information (I/we) deem reliable
and that the statement contained in paragraph 1 and the information contained in paragraph 2 of
this Part III is reasonable and based upon such investigation as the undersigned deemed
necessary.

10. (IIWe) will assist the Landlord in obtaining any information or documents required to verify
the statements made in this Part III and have attached hereto copies of (my/our) federal income
tax return(s) for the most recent tax year in which a return was filed (past two years federal
income tax returns for self-employed persons).

11. (IIWe) acknowledge that (I/we) have been advised that the making of any misrepresentation
or misstatement in this affidavit will constitute a material breach of (my/our) agreement with the
Landlord to rent the unit and will additionally enable the Landlord and/or the City of Los Banos
to initiate and pursue all applicable legal and equitable remedies with respect to the unit and to
me/us.

(IIWe) do hereby swear under penalty of peIjury that the foregoing statements are true and
correct.

Date

Date

Tenant

Tenant



INCOME VERIFICATION
(for employed persons)

The undersigned employee has applied for a rental unit located in a project subject to a Density
Bonus Housing Agreement approved by the City of Los Banos providing for rental ofunits to lower
income households. Every income statement of a prospective tenant must be stringently verified.
Please indicate below the employee's current annual income from wages, overtime, bonuses,
commissions or any other form of compensation received on a regular basis.

Annual wages

Overtime

Bonuses

Commissions

Total current income

I hereby certify that the statements above are true and complete to the best ofmy knowledge.

Business Narne: --------------

Signature Date Title

Employee: I hereby grant you permission to disclose my income to _
in order that they may determine my income eligibility for rental of an apartment located in their
project which has been financed under a density bonus housing project of the City of Los Banos.

Signature

Please send to:

Date Title



INCOME VERIFICATION
(for self-employed persons)

I hereby attach copies of my individual federal and state income tax returns for the immediately
preceding calendar year and certify that the information shown in such income tax returns is true
and complete to the best ofmy knowledge.

Signature Date



LOS Banos
AI tlte Crossroads of Cali ornia

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

Agenda Staff Report

Mayor & City Council Members

Mark Fachin, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer

July 15, 2020

TYPE OF REPORT: Consent Item

SUBJECT: Accepting Parcel Map 2020-01 along with the dedications of 10' public
utility easements located south of Parcel A and Parcel B along East
Pacheco Boulevard/State Highway 152 as shown in said Parcel Map.

Recommendation:
That the City Council of the City of Los Banos adopts the Resolution accepting Parcel
Map 2020-01 along with the dedication of 10' public utility easements located south of
Parcel A and Parcel B along East Pacheco Boulevard/State Highway 152 as shown in
said Parcel Map.

Background:
The Tentative Parcel Map 2020-01 was approved by the City of Los Banos Planning
Commission on April 22, 2020 by Resolution No. 2020-08. In May 2020, the Public
Works staff was contacted by the developer, OA Holdings No.1, LLC for Parcel Map
approval. The Parcel Map was reviewed and approved by the City's Consulting
Professional Land Surveyor in June 2020.

Discussion:
The commercial project for Dutch Bros/Chipotle, located at 1420 E. Pacheco Blvd.,
more specifically identified as Assessor's Parcel Number 428-140-030, is being divided
per Parcel Map 2020-01. This division also includes dedications to the City of Los



Banos of 10' public utility easements located south of Parcel A and Parcel B along East
Pacheco Boulevard/State Highway 152 as shown in Parcel Map 2020-01.

Fiscal Impact:
There is no further fiscal impact.

Reviewed by:

&.City Manager

Attachments:
Resolution
Legal Descriptions - Exhibit A
Parcel Map - Exhibit B
Site Map



RESOLUTION NO. __

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF LOS BANOS ACCEPTING PARCEL
MAP 2020-01 ALONG WITH THE DEDICATIONS
OF 10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS LOCATED
SOUTH OF PARCEL A AND PARCEL B ALONG
EAST PACHECO BLVD/STATE HIGHWAY 152
AS SHOWN IN SAID PARCEL MAP.

WHEREAS, the Tentative Parcel map 2020-01 was approved by the City of Los
Banos Planning Commission on April 22, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the Parcel Map 2020-01 along with public utility easements, as
presented has been reviewed and approved by a Consulting Professional Land
Surveyor for the City of Los Banos; and

WHEREAS, the parcel map along with public utility easements, as presented,
has been reviewed and approved by the City Engineer of the City of Los Banos; and

WHEREAS, the parcel map along with public utility easements, as presented,
has been reviewed and examined by the City Council of the City of Los Banos; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Los
Banos does hereby accept Parcel Map 2020-01 along with the dedications of 10' Public
Utility Easements located south of Parcel A and Parcel B along East Pacheco
Blvd/State Highway 152 as shown in said parcel map.

The foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of
the City of Los Banos held on the 15th day of July, 2020, by Council Member __
who moved its adoption, which motion was duly seconded by Council Member __
and the Resolution adopted by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ATIEST:

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk

APPROVED:

Michael Villalta, Mayor



Legal Description
Exhibit A

ORDER NO. : 0724019546

The land referred to is situated in the County of Merced, City of Los Banos, State of california,
and is described as follows:

PARCEL ONE:

THAT PORTION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 10 SOUTH,
RANGE 10 EAST, M.D.B.&M., ACCORDING TO THE OFFICIAL PLAT THEREOF, DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A POINT WHICH BEARS NORTH 40.00 FEET AND NORTH 88° 34' EAST, 578.21
FEET FROM THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 10 SOUTH, RANGE 10
EAST, M.D.B.&M.; THENCE NORTH 0° 48 1/2' WEST 340.47 FEET; THENCE EAST 160.20 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 10 07 1/2' EAST 336.43 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF STATE
HIGHWAY, SOUTH 880 34' WEST, 161.94 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION DESCRIBED IN THE GRANT DEED FROM EDWARD W.
HOSTETLER AND MERRY BELLE HOSTETLER AS CO-TRUSTEES OF THE HOSTETLER LIVING
TRUST DATED JANUARY 20, 1978 TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA; RECORDED JULY 05,2001,
IN BOOK 4218, PAGE 500, SERIES NO. 28152, OFFICIAL RECORDS.

PARCEL TWO:

A NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR VEHICULAR INGRESS AND EGRESS, APPURTENANT TO
PARCEL ONE HEREINABOVE DESCRIBED, AS SAID EASEMENT IS FURTHER DESCRIBED IN
THAT CERTAIN INSTRUMENT ENTITLED "SHARED ACCESS AGREEMENT', EXECUTED BY
EDWARD W. AND MERRY BELLE HOSTETLER AND LOS BANOS MARKETPLACE, LLC, A
CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, RECORDED MARCH 01, 2001, IN BOOK 4137,
PAGE 192, SERIES NO, 8022, OFFICIAL RECORDS AND RE-RECORDED OCTOBER 17, 2002, AS
SERIES NO. 2002-051499, OFFICIAL RECORDS.

PARCEL THREE:

A NON-EXCLUSIVE PERPETUAL EASEMENT FOR VEHICULAR PARKING AND PEDESTRIAN
INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER AND ACROSS THAT PORTION OF SAID LAND DESCRIBED AS
"AMABILE TRACT", IN THAT CERTAIN "PARKING EASEMENT AND RECIPROCAL ACCESS
EASEMENT AGREEMENT" RECORDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 2015
034270, OF OFFICIAL RECORDS.

APN: 428-140-030

Page 1 of 1

Dutch Bros/Chipotle - Parcel Map 2020-01



Parcel Map:
ExhibitB

PAGE__

PRlNlID NAN[

~ - ..=S1S::,"'AHT=/DE=P\JTY=-::.:=:,CORll<=:=:.:-

BARBARA J, LEVEY
COUNTY RECORDER, MERCEO COUNTY

fll..[D lMIS DAY OF' 2OZ0 ...T __ .... IN
Wl.UI.lE OF PARCEl NAPS, AT PAGE(S) AT THE
RECUEST OF lARS AND£R$£N AND ASSOCtAl[S, INC.

FEE: __

INSTRUWENT NO. _

RECOFlDER'S STATEMENT.

VOL.. _

~COHRS, P.LS. 5096
R~w:v.tHG CITY SURW:'rOR

SIGNED: ""'O"'AN""'''EL""'',-''''O'''LD''AK''".---
P.l.s. 1i1279 EXP\RtS 0i/30/20

DATED 'THIS__ DAY OF 20----,

I HEREBY STAlE lHAT AT THE REQUEST fE lH£ CITY ENClHfiR or THE aTY
f'I LOS BANOS, I HAI,4£ ElCANHED 'MS FlMAl "AF' AND TNAT I AN SATlSflED
THAT THIS MAP IS lECI-fNICALLY ~RECT AHD COLlPl£S 'MTH APPUCABLL
PRO..,SlONS OF THE SUBDI\1SION MAP ACT.

cnoH AND JS BASte UPON
or TlIE

EST or OA
. TAlE THAT THIS

PARco.. I.lAP SUBSTANTIALLY CONFORI.lS TO THE APPROVED OR CONOITIONALLY
APPRO\'tD TENTATWE MAP, IF' ANY, AND lJol..,' AU. I.lONUMENTS SHO~ HEREON
H...w: ElEEN SET AND ARE: OF THE CHARACTER AND occupy THE POSillONS
lNOlCATED AfrrlD ARE SUfflClENT TO [NABL.E JHE SURVEY TO BE RtTRACtD.
OA'I[1), _

CITY SlJ'lVEYOR'S STATEMBlT.

SUlYEYOR'S STA1EMENT:

1m.ILARS ANDERSEN & ASSOCIATES, INC.
'" CIVIL ENGINEERS - LAND SURVEYORS - PLANNERS

4694 WEST JACQUelYN AVENUE FRESNO CALIFORNIA 93722
TEL: 559 27~2790 FAX: 559276-0850 \'VWW.LARSANOERSEN.COM
JOB NO. 19181.00 DATE: JUNE 25, 2020 SHEET 1 OF 2

STACY SOUZAElMS. DiRECTOR FOR THE Dry OF LOSB-ANOS
COWUUNlY AND ECONotMC OE\'UOf'WENl OEPARTKNT

I, ST...cy SOUZA ElUS" DIRECTOR FOR THE CITY <F LOS BAIlOS COMhiUNITY
AND ECONOMICS DE\'EU)PMEHT DEPARTMENT, 00 HEREBY STATE THAT THE aTY
PlAHNING ca.lMlSSlON HAS APPAO\I£D THE PARCEL MAP NO. 2020-01 ON THE
_ DAY Of 2020 AND THAT lIiE SUBOI\'rSlON SHOYltl
HEREON IS SUBSTAHllAU.Y THE $A/rIE AS SHO¥lN ON THE TENTAl1l1t: YAP.

Pl..ANIINCl COIo&4ISSION STAlEMENT.

,,1m lltS__ DAO( OF' 20_

LLJCll.1.E L "'ALLONEE, CITY Q.ERK
QTY or lOS BANOS

I, WCl.l.E L. MAllONEE. 0lY Q.ERl( Of 11-£ aTY Of lOS BANOS, STAlE or
C,wFORNIA, DO HERES'f STATE THAT AT THE RElOIJ\..AR WE!T1NC ~ TN£: aTY
COUNCIL or lHE CITY Of LOS BANOS, STATE: OF CALIFORNIA, HELD ON THIS
_ 0...'1' Of , 20_ THE ACCOMPAN'l'ING PARCEL. YAP rI
·PARca NAP NO, 2020-01- WAS APPROVED AND ACCEPTED ON OEHALF or
THE: PUBUC, THE oFTER OF DEDICAllON or ALL PUBUC UTIUry EASOIENTS
(PUE) AS SHOWN ON THIS PARCEL &.lAP.

CITY CLERK'S STATBAENT:

~ ·""'A"'RK"OO:A"'~O"""A"'a<"'INc.-. "'.""C.'L'",=,,'--
CITY ENGINEER

oAtm THIS _ D"'Y' Of 202.0.

I HEREBY STAlE lKAT I HA\'t EXAMH£D nos PARCEL 1ilAP. THAT 1HE
stJIBtM\4SJON SHOWN HEREON IS SU9STAHlIAU.Y 11£ SMl[ AS IT APP[AAS OM
THE TENTAl1¥E MAP AND ANY APPRO\oa> Al.1ERAllOHS THEREOf IF AN"t'. AND
THAT ALL PROVISIONS Of THE SUBDMSlDN MAP ACT AND lOCAl.. ORDIN...NCE
APPUCABL.E AT niE T1h1E: OF APPROVAl.. HAVE BEEN COWPUED WITH AND I Atot
SAlISFlED THAT THIS ...AP IS TECHNICALLY CORRECT.

CITY ENClINEERS STA'TCMENT'

1. AN ~MENT IN F...VOR OF MWR AIlD WX INC. roo ROADS AND
PUBUC UTlUTlES, RECORDED APRIL 6, 1940 tN BOOK 1547 OF DmCIAl
ReCORDS, PAGE 3.

2. AN fASEMENT IN FAVOR or THE CITY OF LOS BANos. FOR SEWER AND
OTHER PUBUC UTlUTlES RECORDED DECOlBER 2, 11i16D It BOOK 15Qe
OF 0FflC\Al, A[camS. Pia. 317.

" SHARED ACCESS AGREDENT Rtcawm MAROt 1. 2001 IN BOOK "37
OF OF1'1CIAL REOOROS" PMOE "2 UNDER RtCOfl:DE:R'S SERIAl.. NUIllBDl
8022, RECORDED OCTQB£R 17. 2002 UNDER RECORDER'S SERIAL
NUJ.4BER, 2002-0.51499.

-t. It PG&E EASE"ENT F'OR UTVJry DISTRIBUTION RECORDED OCTOBER 3
200l IN BOOK 4284 OF" OFfIDAL RECORDS. PAGE 4lJ UNDER
RECORDER'S SERIAl NU"'BER 44531i1.

5. AH [ASDIOfT IN ro\VCA Of ESlHER AWA8lLE, ET AL, FOR VEHICUlAR
AND PfJ)£smlAN INGRESS AND EGRE.SS, RECOAOm S£P1DlBER 30.
2015 IN OF'FlClAL REcamS UNDER RECOR£lfS $[RIAl NUMBER
2:01~034270,

6. ~ Eo\S£MENT IN F...VOR Of ESTHER AMABlL£., CT AL, fOR PARKINC
AND \&IICUlAR AND PEDESTRIAN INGRESS AND EGRESS, RECORDED
SEPTDlBER 30, 2015 IN OFTlCAL. RECORDS UNDER RECORDER'S SERIAL
NU"BER 2Ol~lJ34.27o.

PURSUANT TO SECTION 88438(aX3}(A}(1) OF 1ME SUBDI\1S1OH h1AP ACT
THE ~ttAlURES (S 1HE fUllOWlNC PARTIES H..,'If.: BfDt Ollmm

st...1£ OF CAt..IFlJRMACOlJNTYor _

ON _ BEFORE ME NOTARY PUBliC
PERSONALLY APPEARED __
WHO PRO\IfD TO htE ON THE BASIS CF SATISFACTORY £\'IDENCE TO BE THE
PERSON(S) '-M)S[ N......E(S) IS/N'£ SUBSCRIBED 10 THE 'MTHlN INSTRUUENT AI«)
AQ(N0'JIt.EDC0) 10 WE THAT HE/SHE/lHEY EJlfCUTm tHE $AWE IN HIS/I"!ER/JHm
AUTHORIZED CAPADT'l1:IES), AND THAT B'f lfi""'ER/lHOR SlQiATVR£(S) ON ll-fE
~~~~ ~~~~C:EN~t ENllTY UPON BEHALF ~ Wl-tICH THE PERSOH(S)

I CERTIfY ~DER PENAlTY Of PER.lJRY UNDER THE LAWS Of THE STATE or
CAlFORNIA TH"'T THE FOREGOING PARAGAAPH LS lRIJE AHD CORRECT.

'MlNESS MY HAHD.

SlGNA'TUR!~~====:;;;;;~PRINT NAME:
COUNTY:
COUISSION NO.: COWWSSlON EXPIRATION: _

PARCEL MAP NO. 2020-01

A NOTARY PUBUC OR-OTHER OFfICER COI.lPL.ETlNG THIS CrRTlnCAlE VERIfiES
ONLY THE IDENTITY or 'THE INDIIJIDUAl.. WI-lO SIGNED THE DOCU"'ENT TO 'MilCH
::SQ~~~:;,Ifx:,r;;:;lED. "'ND NOT THE TRUniFULNESS, ...CQJRACY, OR I

CITY OF LOS BANOS, COUNTY OF MERCED, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR OA HOLDINGS NO.1
BEING A DMSION OF LAND DESCRIBED IN BOOK 2239, PAGE 490, OF OffiCIAL RECORDS, RECORDED

ON JULY 02, 1980, LOCATED WITHIN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER

OF OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 10 SOUTH, RANGE 10 EAST, M.D.B. & M.

SUrveyed and Platted in November of 2019 by la.. Andenen & Assodates, Inc.

CONSlsnNG OF TWO SHEETS SHEET 1 OF 2 SHEETS

A NOTARY PUBUC Oft OlHER tI'flUR COUPlET1NG 'IiiS CERTflCATE~
0Nl0( THE IDENTITY or niE INDlVlOUAl VlHO SIGNED THE DOQJMENT TO \ItHICH
THIS CERl1f1CATE IS ATTACHED, AND NOT THE TRUTHruLNEss, ACO,JRACY, OR
.vI on or mAt QQOIW(ltIJ

ST",TE Of CAUFClRNIACCUIlTYor _

ON _ BEFORE YE:o NDTAR'f PUBUC
PER:$C>NAJ.,t Y APPEARED
WHO P~\IEO TO ME ON BtE: BASIS Of SAlISF...CTtR'f [VIDENCE TO 8E niE
PERSON(S) 'llHOSE NAME(S) IS/ARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE 'MTHIN INSTRUUENT AND
ACKNOl'tUDGED TO ME THAT HE/SHE/'THEY DECU1e) '!HE SAWE IN HIS/HER/lHElR
AU'THORIZED CAPAClTY(IES). AND THAT BY tlS;mR/1HEIR SK:NATURE(S) ON THE
~~J:'cu~~~E ENl1TY UPON BEHAlf OF V1HQ( TltE ~S)

I C[RTIN UNDER PENALTY OF PERJJRY UNDER TllE LAVIS OF 11'1E STATE OF'
CAUroRNIA THAT THE rOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS TAUE -'ND CORRECT.

W1TWESS t.lY HAIlD.

""'A_~;;====:;;;;;;~PRINT N.wE:
COUNTY:
COIo4lSSlON NO.: CQNMISSlON EXPIRATION: _

NOTARY'S ACKNOWI..EDGMENT:

NOTARY'S ACKNOWL.EOGMENT:

~

~

~

~

~

MARY UY OROSco. C~TRlJS1EE

CHRISTOPHm~OROSCO. CO-TRVSTtI

c;olAlD V. L'rt.lS.-SENlOR \1CEP~HT
BY;

.~

.~

STATE OF CAlSORNlA<OUllTY or _

ON SEFORE ME, NOTARY PUBlIC
PERSONALLY APPEARED
'M-IO PAOV!D TO I.lE ON lHE BASIS OF SAll5F''''CTORY ~0ENa: TO BE: nit
PERSON(S} VMOSE NAME(S) IS/ARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE MMN INSTRUMENT AND
AO<NO'IUDGEO TO ME THAT HE/5HE/ltlEY MOOTED THE $oWE IN HlS,.,..ER/TlWR
AUTHOAIZfD CAPAQl'I'(ltS), 1M) THAT BY H1S/H£R/THE1R SlGNA1UR£(S) ON THE

~~~~U~ 7::~~~E ENl1TY UPON BDtAIF OF WHICH THE PERSON(S)

I CERlIFY UNDER PENALTY Of PER.lJRY UNDER ltiE LAWS OF TllE STATE ~
CAUfORNIA THAT THE FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS lRUE AND CORRECT.

WllJolESS MY HAM).

SlCtIA_~~====:;;;;;;;;:;;PRINT NAIl4£:
COUNTY:
CQMISSIOH NO,: COMMISSION EXPIRATION: _

A NOTARY pUBOcejjn:>llltR 0f1'1CER COMPt£'TJHG THi~n:£RmCATE VERlFlES
ONI..Y THE IOEHllTY or THE INDI\IIDUAL l'f10 SlGN[I) THE DOCU"ENT TO 'M-I1Oi
THIS CERnFlCAlE IS ATIACHED, AND NOT nit TRUTHFULNESS, ACCURACY, Of(
~lnD DC DIAl I'!O!)!HC"'"

II NOTARY pusiIe O~ OiHEiit OFfICER COMPt.ElINC THIS CERTlFlC...lE 'o'tRlnt~
ONLY THE IDENTITY Of THE IND!W)UAl WHO SIGNED THE OOW"EHT ro 'Mllat
nus CE:R1IFICATE IS ATTACHED. ANt) NOT T1"lE mUTHf\Jl.HESS, ACCURACY. OR

STAlE ~ CAUFORNIACOUNTY or _

ON 8EFQRE WE NOTARY PUBUC
PERSON'ALLY APPEMm
'MiO PRCM:D TO 1M:: ON THE BASS OF SAltSfAC~Y EVl)fNCE TO BE TI-£
PER5ON(S) 'M'lOSE N,wE{S) IS/ME 9J8SCfaSEO TO THE ..,nltN INS1RUWENT MID
AOCNOM.EDGED TO ME THAT HE/9iE/THEY' EXECUTm THE SAME IN HIS/HER/lMEIR
AUTHORIZED CAPAClTY(IES~AND THAT BY' HIS/HER/ntDR SIGNA1URE(S) ON THE
INSTRUMENT THE PERSON S OR THE ENTITY UPON SEHALF OF' 'M-IICH THE PERSON(S)
ACTED EXECUlED nil:: INS WEHT,

I CERllF'Y UN1)[R PDlALTY OF PER.JJRV UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STAlE CF
CAlFl)RI6A 1l4AT lME F"CflEGOlNG PARAGRAPH ts lRUE AHD CORR£C1.

W1'rnESS ..Y HAND.

SIGNA1UR~~====~;;~~PRINT NAME:
COUNTY:CQMSSlON NO.: CClNISStON DPtRA'OON: _

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMBIIT'

BY; l Yl.ES OIVERSlFlED. INt.. MEMBER

NOTARY'S ACKNOWI..EDClMENT'

B'f: THE OROSCO Fjl,MlLY TRUST UNDER DEa.AR""CH Of' U'l.NG TRUST
DATED JJNE 28, 19n. MEMBER

BY: -;:a<"'~;;;S;;;TtIP;H£R=.',""""=osc"'o;;-."........='"----

ARE THE o~ms OF, OR Ho\'v£ SOUE RIGHT,
THE REAl PRoPERTY INQ,UDED 'MTHIN niE

; MAP, AND THAT 'M:: AAE THE ONLY PERSONS
MtOSE CONSENT IS NEa:S5ARY 10 p~ A CLEAR 1ITU: TO SAID PROPERTY,
AJI) 'IE: CONSD4T TO lHE PREPARAliOH AND RECMtlAlION a: SAID WN> AND
SUBDNlStON -'S SHO.,. \ll\1tt1N lHE SUBOl~OH SOUNDNn' LliES.

00\ HOLOIHGS NO. t, lie, It DELA.WARE UMrrED UABIUTY COWPANY

BY: --;:P"'A"'='=CK~W=.-;:ORO=SCO=-••"'EllB=,=.----

Page I of2



()O,

(j

( )04

OA'

( )03

•
()R1

t

•

(W)

M.C,R

a.RoLl.c.

....

@
O' 40' 80'....

SCALE 1'·40'

Page 2 oE2

FOUND BRASl!I OISC
ST"MPEOe:.tL.F. ON. C1F
I«3l'PNAYS. 0.141' SOJrH OF
RtOHTOFW"'Vc:ENTERltE
PER1IR92N9

N:202969.173CCS27~
E.:19G4437.1W10C8'27
N:16C»~.t1)OCS53

E: 5ej801.8ll!5 0CM3

P.U.E. TOTHECfTYOFlOSBAHOlIi FaA PUlOC U'lUTYEA&'EJENTPI.I¥'O!ES

NOTE~

PROPERTY BClltlOAR"I' BENG I:lM?ED

EXIIi11NCleASEMENT

PRDf"06EO rueue UTIlJfY EASEM&lT

MCNJMENTFOUND AND~M NOTED

NlICAlES REeOAO D4T"PER RECORD OF~ BOOK 19 PAGE 2201=
MiIlP9,M.CJl

ItOCATE$ RECORD DATA PeR PARCEL MAP NO, 2001-0& \'OLUME".
PAGE:J2 OF PAAeEL MAPS, M.e.~

NlICATE$ RECORD OAT... PeR OH...NT DEED TO 'n£ STATEOF
CAl.FOR...... RECORCEO.u.y Cle, 2001 IN BOOK "218, PAGE 000, ~1E8
MO.2S1S2.0A

NlICATD RECORD OATA P£R PAACEL MAP NO 2007.()l!J ~toIE 11n,
P~QE 02 OF PARCEL. hIAPS, M.C.A.

IMlICATES RECORD DAT~ PER GRANT DEED, OOCUMENTHO. 2014040S12
RECORDED IN BOCK 22a!I. PAGE, ~ OFFICIAL RCeoROS OF IlIERCED
C<ll>ITY

~1lEAAl~N#JDIST-"NCE

MERCED co..tn'Y RECORDS

0fRC1AJ..1\ECORDS OF MeRCED COUNTY--cam:RL>lE

0ClN'.'EYED TO'THE ST~n;: CFCAUFORNIA INOEEDRECORDED JUL'I"05,
:ZOO, IN BOOK 4218, P~GE500.8ERIEO NO. 2IU520.R.

eT~n;:Pl..NECOORDlNAreOOM'ROL.F~aN~18

CACl.AA'lSDFROM CCS21 AS~ BY 19 RS 22-2!J UTUZf«i,
00RPIlC0N cotMRSIOH PROGRAt.l TO 0C$6) FOR SClI.ITlMEIfT
OO!U£R SEC'I1ON 13 N-I> OMSIONOF I«iHWAV8111CHJMEHr.

<D otSTAHQESHOTMONJNEHTEDAAECo'LC\A.AlED

CD ALL PARm~NERiME MARKED 'MTH ~ 31,,"X 30" IRON PIPE. GET FUJSH 'MTH TAG F'l..8
llQ7tll,.t4l.ESS 0Tl-ER'MSE NOTm.

~OfI£RryQfi9CR!BEQ BELQlNI8 DEQlCATEQ AS AN FASB!ENT fOR puBliC

LEGEND
L.

--,

FOUC)1~aJlP'2.5'()(J(o,lN

TAQG£D \.$ S1M NXeP'TEO
MBEINOa.lTHEEAlITI...It£

0.10' NcmH OFTRUE
CORNER

DETAIL 'A"

''''~~
1P~!~AI'>Il"@~
w~Ij>J::Ij>~<:'-'Roo

,~.,..
, .

CITY OF LOS BANOS, COUNTY OF MERCED, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR OA HOLDINGS NO.1
BEING A DIVISION OF lAND DESCRIBED IN BOOK 2239, PAGE 490, OF OFfICIAL RECORDS, RECORDED

ON JULY 02, 1980, LOCATED WITHIN THE SDUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER

OF OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 10 SOUTH, RANGE 10 EAST, M.D.B. aM.

c
~
a::::
>-

.,1UlUC ""iT ~W"'f1f a:::: Surveyed and Platted in November of 2019 by Lars Andersen a Associates, Inc.
OEEDPERMA,POf'FARMl..AJIE~ ~

• Mot.NOR YCWME,S PAQEoIlZ l----tt CONSlsnWG OF TWO I~EETS SHEET 2 OF2 SHEETS

! ! w ! ill@@1lIJ@.~~~ :

i " @ij~0'n@.l)\l.Il\J,@"~
~--------~- ~--.J_'# rl"'.ir4;J1$~'~~(Ml(EASTIIU7')r- -

! :F0uN03l4'IRONPf'E07DOl/\t1l I ~
. 1200~T~~ rwa JJ.5Q' ---- ---

____~__.J : sen.st2'7l11P1..UC1 V- F0l.N)1"IROlPFELS$l$$,

J I • I I ~AHD~~~I ~';"PERPM2D01.(l1.fli(

! : i: i ~~~l~m,oR

! I I I iaJ
! III ®~r~~ I
! 6§, I I' W~'l ~
i '"'~.!t~t~<tl~ I I ="":::.~"'I I
I \f .,~'J'!",;.t1h~ I 41UotOlllewR..:onf:l.p.- ~: if'~<l''''~ I I ,.-, I :E
I' two--V ~I ;
! I PARCB.. A ~ PARCB.. B I~i ~I ,_-_SF. EI -..-.-.-SF. ~

! _~'I I--.ClllUClE8 III AlB· QSl AClE8 : ~

i "i I i
I ~~ I~ ==:''':-'
: ~~I I I ~ ,,'........ -_._. -. "-- F"""' .........,"'""'<
I pi I I'~ '"0CUl>EAST~''''', ~ I I """"".NOT""-""'"
i ~ I I ''''1''''
: " ;! • I ,.,.......... \
I I I 'u" I I I, -wo-wo- P OEEceTAI.' '

i FOONO....'R""PIPE"""'~I 'U.L ~I "'"""'·00'"'''''''' i, ACCG"TEDAlBEWCJCX\Ill£ TAOOEDUltl7MACCEPrm,
I YtESTUNE.01WNOATHl7TR\.E l - - NiBElNGON1'H6EAST'

___________ l~.~~Pllzan-08 _ r.J1Il.. 'It 12' _ _ ~o.1O'NORJM~~ \

• "".,'l\W.r...,. , '+ -.~tlFllllii.... ~... , '--------r-------------..l------·
,--. 8WCaUERC#!CCTlON1' lM"llt'2O"Wl.5C1')R3 . CNO'Zll"Jrw155Cl')R'J

f TtO,R10. NCI"2nI'WI5.5ll'(MJ\ .. -r::::::mJ'Wl'5CI'1III.... -' FOUNOREEWHl,l'DCI't\N, ..

FOlH),.,.-1\QN RCC'" J- 0.01 SOlmEASTOF TRUE Llo\ONUMEHTVIEU., NOPWO, <XlfU'ER HOTAO. SETL6
CO'N\I1.a.PERPMNO. m~Pl1.lG
2l101-oe,llKd,PG32 !!!!'311115l!.17'LIII\ _ J, _ _ c_

_ - i21!itillill' 1 "t:

EAST PACHECO BOULEVARDI STATE HIGHWAY 152
v'VI~ t::1"'\;llINI::.I::.r'\;::' - ~"'LJ' SURVEYORS - PLANNERS

4694 WEST JACQUELYN AVENUE FRESNO CAliFORNIA 93722
TEL: 659276-2790 F"AX: 559 27&-Q850 WWW.LARSANCeRseN.COM
JOB NO. 19181.00 DATE: JUNE 25, 2020 SHEET 2 OF 2

LARS ANDERSEN & ASSOCIATES, INC.
.- ..- _ -

PARCEL MAP NO. 2020-01

It)
<0;:1
~
J:
(!)

J:
w
~I
~
(5

~
~I
z
~
Q.
en
~
~
WI
~~

'THE eEARlNO~NSt~t71"E a= THE CENTERI..JE OF PACI€CO 9OI.I..EIIARO SR-151 PER
PARca UoIl.PNO. 2l10104e FILED INVCllIME e. PAGES 31 .3201" PARCa.. MAPS, RECORD!
OF II1ERCEOCOUNTYWA!JTAKEN AS TlE BIl3ISOF BEARlNll!l '"ORT1-!ISSURIIEY.

BASIS OF BEAJltIGS:

t,=...CC8Z7
E: 19C243T.258 CCS27
N: 1~15.23l1 CC8t31

E:64I53e05.913

II



Site Map

I

PARCEL A
AFEA • 29,831 8.F.
AFEA • o.ee AaIES

PARCELS
AFEA • 23,233 8.F.
AFEA • om ACRES

~

Ii!

I
i

V1CINllY MAP

Not TO SCALE

:5

I

1: 'r'

I--- _ _ P"U~ P"\.-

EAST PACHECO BOULEVARDI STATE HIGHWAY 152

Page 1of 1



LOS Banos
Al the Crossroads ofCalifontia

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

Agenda Staff Report

Mayor & City Council Members

Mark Fachin, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer1?~
July 15, 2020

TYPE OF REPORT: Consent Item

SUBJECT: Final Tract Map No. 2017-01 Stonecreek at Los Banos,
The Villages VII Phase 1B Unit 2

Recommendation:
That the City Council adopts the Resolution approving Final Tract Map No. 2017-01
Stonecreek at Los Banos, The Villages VII Phase 1B Unit 2, and accompanying
Subdivision Improvement Agreement.

Background:
The Tentative Tract Map No. 2017-01 was approved by the City of Los Banos
Community Development Department on March 8, 2017 by Resolution No. 2017-07. In
April 2019, the Public Works staff was contacted by the developer, Anderson Homes,
for Final Map approval.

Discussion:
The subject site is generally located within the area bounded by Villages VII Phase 1
Unit 2 to the North, future Villages VII Phase 3 Unit 4 to the South, Villages VII Phase
1B Unit 1 to the West and future Villages VII 2B Unit 1 to the East. The applicant is
Anderson Homes, a California corporation. The map consists of 26 single family lots on
6.07± acres. This Final Tract Map is in substantial compliance with Tentative
Subdivision Map No. 2017-01.



Fiscal Impact:
Financial security as required by the Subdivision Improvement Agreement, the
Subdivision Map Act and Los Banos Municipal Code has been deposited with the City.
All required processing, development, plan check and inspection fees have been paid.
All bonds have been paid to Merced County.

Reviewed by:

Alex Terrazas, City Manager

Attachments:
Resolution

Exhibit A Legal Description
Exhibit B Final Map

Site Map

Subdivision Improvement Agreement
Exhibit A Original Engineers Estimate
Exhibit B Conditions of Approval



RESOLUTION NO. __

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF LOS BANOS APPROVING AND
ADOPTING FINAL TRACT MAP NO. 2017·01
STONECREEK AT LOS BANOS THE VILLAGES
VII PHASE 1B UNIT 2 AND ACCOMPANYING
SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, there has been submitted to the City Council of the City of Los
Banos Tract Map No. 2017-01 Stonecreek at Los Banos The Villages VII Phase 1B Unit
2 and accompanying Subdivision Improvement Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, the single-family residential subdivision consists of 26 lots on 6.07±
acres; and

WHEREAS, the Public Works Director/City Engineer has approved the Final
Map, the plan check and inspection fees have been paid in full, the City has received all
necessary bonds and financial security, and said Final Tract Map has been submitted to
the City Council of the City of Los Banos for approval.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Los
Banos that it does hereby approve and adopt Final Tract Map No. 2017-01 Stonecreek
at Los Banos The Villages VII Phase 1B Unit 2 and accompanying Subdivision
Improvement Agreement for the real property described in Exhibit "A", shown in Exhibit
"B" and authorize recording based upon the following findings:

1. Final Map is in substantial compliance with Tentative Map No. 2017-01.
2. Financial security as required by the Subdivision Improvement Agreement,

Subdivision Map Act, and Los Banos Municipal Code has been deposited with
the City.

3. All required processing, development, plan check, and inspection fees to date
have been paid.

The foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of
the City of Los Banos held on the day of , 2020, by Council Member
___ who moved its adoption, which motion was duly seconded by Council Member
___ and the Resolution adopted by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ATTEST:

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk

APPROVED:

Michael Villalta, Mayor



Exhibit A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Real property in the City of Los Banos, County of Merced, State of California, described as follows:

LOT C AS SHOWN ON THAT CERTAIN MAP ENTITLED "TRACT NO: 2017-01 STONECREEK AT LOS
BANOS THE VILLAGES VII-PHASE 1, UNIT 1" FILED FOR RECORD FEBRUARY 6,2019 IN BOOK 80 OF
OFFICIAL PLATS, AT PAGE 36, MERCED COUNTY RECORDS.

APN: 430-060-008, A PORTION (OLD APN), 430-060-031 (NEW APN)

TRACT #2017-01, Villages VII Phase 1B Unit 2 Page 1 of 1



ExhibitB
Final Map

WITNESS MY HAND.

BY:

_____' 2020.

VAYOF .2020.

DAVOF

DAY OF .2020,

DATED THIS

DATED THiS

CITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT:

PER MERCED COUNTY oRDINMICE NO. 1Z13

THE PROPERTY DESCRIBEO ON THE HEREON SHOWN MAP IS IN THE ViCiNITY OF LANV
UTILIZED FOR AGRICULTURAL PURPOSES AND RESIDENTS OF THiS PROPERTY MAY BE
SUB..ECT TO INCOHVENJENCE OR DISCOMFORT ARISING FROM THE use OF AGRIClA.TURAL
CHEMICAlS, INClI.J()flG BUT NOT UMrrEO TO. PESTtelOES AND FERTIUZERS. AND FROM THE
PURSUIT OF AGHICUlruRAl OPERATIONS JNClUDlNG. BY NOT LIMITED TO, PLOWING,
SPRAYING AND BURNING WHICH OCCASIONALlVMAY GENERATE DUST, SNOKE, NOISE. AND
ODOR.

BY' ="== _
MARt< FACHIN. R.C.E. 3481<4
CITY ENGINEER

BY:
NARJNDER SAHaTA, PLS 8719
REVIEWING CITY SURVEYOR

II-EREBY STATE THAT I HAVE EXAMINED nns Ft-4A1.. MAP OF "'TRACT NO: 2017-01.
STONECREEK AT LOS BANOS, THE VUAGES VII PHASE 113, UNIT 2. AND STATE THAT THE
SUBDIVISION AS SHOWN UEREON IS SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME AS IT APPEARED ON THE
TENTATIVE MAP. AND ANY APPROVED ALTERATIONS THEREOF, AND THAT AlL PROVISIONS OF
ANY LOCAl ORDINANcE APPliCABLE AT THE TIME OF APPROVAl OF THE TENTATIVE MAP. IF
REQUIRED. HAVE BEEN COMPliED WITH.

RIGHT TO FARM STATEMENT

DYlAN tITAWFORO~P.L.S. nae-

DATED THIS

CITY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT:
I HEREBY STATE THAT I HAVE EXAlJIINEO TItS FINAl MAP=..,"'D"'rr=CQM=Pl:-;,;CES:-;W1"THAl.~
PAOVISlONS Of CHAPTER 2OF THE CAUFORNlA SUBDf\o'IStON MAP ACT. AS AMENDED. AND
THAT THIs FINAL MAP IS TECHNICALLY CORRECT,

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT._- _....--- ...._-- .

BY:

THiS MAP WAS PAEPAf1l::u UT Nt: UN UNut:H MT UINt:.\; I tuN JVIlU I::> tlA::>t:l1U~ A ,.1l::LU ~I.".IHVl::Y

IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS Of THE SUBOMSION MAP ACT AND LOCAl.
ORDINANCE AT THE AEQUEST OF STONECAEEK PROPERTIES. IN NOVEMBER OF 2018. I HEREBY
STATE THAT THIS ANAl MAP SUBSTANTIALLY CONFORMS TO THE CONDlTIQNALlY APPROVED
TENTATIVE MAP. I FURTHER STATE THAT ALL THE MONUMENTS SHOWN HEREON WILL BE OF THE
CHARACTER ANDOCCUPY THE POSITIONS INDICATED BEFORE JUNE 30TH, 2021. AND THAT SAID
MONUMENTS WIll BE SUFFICIENT TO ENABLE THE SURVEY TO BE RETRACED.

I
N

~

.2020.DAY OFDATEDTHS

BY:

O .... DELL

'nACY SOUZA ELMS. COMMUNITY & ECONOMICDEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
CiTY OF LOS BANOS

TRACT NO: 2017-01
STONECREEK AT LOS BANOS

THE VILLAGES VII-PHASE lB. UNIT 2

VICINITY MAP
N;~.

ENG1NEER1NG
'165 sc.nIc Orivllt, Sull. A.

ModKlo, CA 95350
Ph 2<l9.571.1765 odllllenglnARrlng.com

I, STACY SOUZA ELMS, COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR FOR THE CiTY OF
LOS BANDS, DO HEREBV STATE THAT I HAVE EXAMINED THIS FINAL MAP OF "TRACT NO: 2017-01,
STONECREEK AT LOS BANOS. THE VILLAGES VII PHASE lB. UNIT 2, AND THAT THE SUBDIVISION
IS SUBSTANn.cU..LY THE SAME AS THAT $HO'NN ON THE VESTING TENTATIVE MAP APPROVED BY
Tt-EQTY PlANNING Cot.t~SSlONONTHE 13TH DAV OF APRiL. ZOOS, AND THAT THIS FINAl-MAP
OF "TRACT NO: 2017~1. STONECREEK A.T LOS BANOS. THE VILLAGES VK PHASE lB. UNIT 2,
COMPLIES WITH ALL. REaUIREMENTS OF SAID PLANNING COMMISSION.

PLANNING COMMISSION STATEMENT:

BEING LOT C. TRACT NO. 2017-01. VOLUME 80 OP PAGES 36-40.
LYING IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 21. TOWNSHIP 10

SOUTH, RANGE 10 EAST MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN
CITY OF LOS BANOS, MERCED COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

DECEMBER 2019

(00 NOT STAMP)

DA.TE

ITlllE)

(PRINT NAME)

BEFORE ME, ANOTARY PlELIC,

ITS:

NAME:

PRINT NAME:

COMMISSION NUMBER. _

COMMISSION EXPIRES, _

PRINCIPAl OFRCE LOCAnoN (COUNTY): _

I CERTIFY UNDER PENALTV OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CAliFORNIA THAT THE
FOREGOING PARAGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT.

ON
(DATE)

PeRSONAU.'f'APPEAREO___ __
!.NAME Of SIGNER/5)}

WHO PROVED TO ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE TO BE THE PERSONlS~ WHOSE
NAME{SIIS/ARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT
HEJSHEJ'lllEV EXECUTED THE SAME IN HISIHERITHEIR AUTHORIZED CAPACITY(IES). AND THAT BY
HISlt-lEMHEIA SIGNATURE(S) ON THE INSTAUMENT THE PERSON(SI. OR mE ENTITY UPON BEHALF
OF WHCH TUE PERSON(S) ACTED, EXECt1l'ED THE INSTRUMENT.

OWNER'S STATEMENT

____________~ •NOTAAV PUBliC

COUNTY OF _

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, 00 HEREBY STATE THAT we ARE THE OWNERS OR HAVE SOME RIGHT. TITLE
OR 'INTEREST OF ~ORO IN Tt£ lAND SHOWN ON THS MAP AND WE CONSENT TO ll-IE PREPARATION
AND RECORDATION OF THIS ANAl MAP,

WE ALSO HEREBY OFFEA AN IRREVOCABLE DEDICATION TO THE CITY OF lOS BANOS IN FEE FOR
PUBLIC USE. LOT A AND All STREET RIGHTS-OF-WAY AS SHO'NN ON Tl-lIS ANAl MAP,

WE ALSO I·ERE8Y OFFEA AN IRREVOCABLE DEotCATtON TO lHE CITY OF lOS BANOS AN EASEMENT
fOR PUBLIC USE, All PUBlIC UllLtT'Y EASEMENTS (P.U.E.) AS SHOWN ON mlS FINAL MAP.

OWNERS: lOS BANOS 109 LP ,A CA.L1FORNIA LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTARY STATEMENT (OWNER)
A NOTARY PUBUC OR OTI-lER OFFICER COMPlETIN'"G"T"'H"'IS"'C"ER"'T"IF"lCiiiAT"'E""IJi:,)W II S ONLY THE
IDENTITY OF THE INDIVIDUAl WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIACATE IS
ATIACHEO. AND NOTnlE TRUTHFULNESS, ACCURACY. OR VALlDlTV OF THAT DOCUMENT.

STAlE OF CALIFORNIA

SIGNATURE OMISSIONS:
PURSUANT TO SECTION 66436 OF THE CI\lIFORNIA SUBDIVISION MAP ACT, THE
SIGNATURES OF THE FOLLOWING PARTIES HAVE BEEN OMITIED:

1. COAST NATURAL GAS COMPANY. A CORPORATION (EASEMENT - BOOK 300 PAGE
907, BOOK 300 PAGE ....7 AND BOOK 348 PAGE 105).

CITY CLERK'S STATEMENT:
I. LUCUE L. MALLONEE, CITY OF LOS BANOS, STATE OF CAlIFORNIA. 00 HEREBY STATE THAT
AT THE REGULAR MEETING OF THECrT'V COUNCIL OF THE CiTY OF lOS DANOS. STATE OF
C~IFOANIA.,HELD ON THIS DAY OF .2020. THE ACCOMPANYING Ft.lAL
MAP OF '"TRACT NO; 2017-01 :sTONECREEI< AT LOS BANOS, THE VILLAGES VII PHASE 1B. UNIT 2,
WAS APPROVED AND ACCEPTED ON BEHALF OF THE PUBLIC FaR PUBLIC USE, THE OFFER OF
DEDICATION IN EASEMENT OF AlL PUBLIC UTIUTY EASEMENTS (P.U.E.'. AlL AS SHOWN ON THIS
FINAL MAP: ACCEPTED THE OFFER OF DEDICATION IN FEE OF THE STREET RIGIfTs-oF-WAY
AND LOT A, AS SHOWN ON THIS RNAl MAP: SAID APPROVAllS SUBJECT TO INPROVEtJENTS.

THE COUNTY OF MERCED HAS ESTABliSHED AGRICULTURE AS A PRIORITY USE IN
AGFUCl.l.T1JF\ALZONES MtCH ARE OUTSIDE OF AN ESTA8t.lSHED SPECIFtc URBAN
DEVElOPMENT PlAN lSUDP) BOUNDARY, RURAl RESIDENTIAL. CENTER (RRC) BOUNDARV,
HIGHWAY INTERCHANGE CENTER (Hie, BOUNDARY. OR AGRICULTURAl SERVICE CENTER
lASe) BOUNDARY. AND RESIDENTS OF PROPERTY IN THE VICiNITY OF SUCH AGRICULTURM.
ZONES SHOULD BE PREPARED TO ACCEPT INCONVENIENCE OR DISCOMFORT FROM NORMAl...,
NECESSARY AGRICUlruRAL OPERATIONS.

RECORDER'S STATEMENT
FILEDTHIS__DAYOF .2020 AT__O·CLOCK,_M.INVOI.

OFOFFICIAl PlATS,ATPAGES .ATTHEREOUESTOfDVLANCRAWFOflO.

FEE $
DATED THIS OAYOF ___.2020.

BY:
LUCilLE L. MAUONEE. CITY CLERK
CITY OF LOS BANOS

BARBARA LEVE'f. RECORDER
MERCED COUNTY. CALIFORNIA

:;~"'ST""'''T''''D'''En;PUTY=<AECORDER

H:\31113 - ViUoge VII Phose 18\Survey\McIpDwg\J1113 fM-Phase18-Unit 2.dwg VOL PAGE SHEET 1 OF 3



LEGEND AND ABBREVIATIONS
REFERENCED RECORD DOCUMENTS
MERCED COUNTY RECORDS RESOLVED 8OUl'1LJ1'IMf l.INC

SHEET 2 OF 3

O·DELL

PAGE

CENTERLINE

ENG1NEER1NG
l1G5 Scenic 0riY0. Suile A

Modeclo. CA &5350
Ph 209.571.1765 odelftnglneoring.oom

TRACT NO: 2017-01
STONECREEK AT LOS BANOS

THE VILLAGES VII-PHASE 1B, UNIT 2

VOL

THIS SUBDIVISION CONTAINS A TOTAL OF 6.067 ACRES, MORE OR LESS
All DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE GRID DISTANCES, MULTIPLY GRID
DISTANCES SHOWN BY UKKlOO16 TO GET GRO\AIID DISTANCES

3. AU. DISTANCES ARE MEASURED UNLESS OTHERWISE N01ED.
4. DISTANCES AND DIMENSIONS ARE StlOYJN IN FEET AND DECIMALS THEREOF.
5. ALL FOUND MONUMENTS ARE ACCEPTED UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
6. LOT A TO BE DEDICATED TO CITY OF LOS BANOS IN FEE FOR OPEN AREA SPACE.
7. PER OOCllMENTNO. 2005-0003<t4 FOA THEANNEXATlON TO THE CITY, THE CITY

LIMIT OOLNDARY IN THIS AREA MAKES REFERENCE TO A CALTRANS MAP AND
OOEs NOTUST BEAR1NGS AND DISTANCES. CAlmANS WAS UNABLE TO LOCATE
AND PROVIDE MAP. LINE WORK FOR ANNEXATION WAS PROVIDED BV THE
COMPANY WHO PREPARED THE ANNEXATION DOCUMENT 10 DETERMINE
BEARINCS AND DISTANCES FOR COURSES ANO CiTY AGrlEED TO USE IT AS BEST
EVIDENCE OF LOCATiON.

~~~~~~~n~E--------

~EARING-nELlNE - - ---

AC. ACRES
FD FC>U40
IP IRON P1PE~AMETER NOTED
(M) MEASURED DISTANCE
(M·B) MONUMENT TO BOUNDARY LINE
(MoM) MONUMENT TO MONUMENT
OP OFFICIAL PlATS
PM PARCel MAP
M.e.R MERCED COUNTY RECORDS
(R-II') REFERENCED RECORD OOCUMENT
(A) RACIAL BEARING
SFN SEARCHED, FOUND NOTHING
m TOTAL DISTANCE

NOTES

MONUMENT NOTES

• 5.00' WITNESS CORNER, MEASUflED ALONG LOT LINE. 3'4" x 24° IRON PIPE WI PLASTIC
PLUG "FILS n88° TO BE SET PER (R008•.

lI: 1.00' WfTNESS CORNER IN SiDEWAlK, MEASURED ALONG RADIAL LINE OR
PERPENDICULAR TO STREET CENTERLINE AS NOTED. 1.17~ BRASS DISK STAMPED
-PLS 7788~ TO BE SET PER (R-8).

• 314-11 24-IRON PIPE WI PLASTIC PLUG "PlS nas- TO BE SET PEA (A-BI. UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

o 3,.." x 24°IAON PIPE WITH PLASnC PLUG "PLS 7788- TO BE SET PER IR·4l

@ FOUND MONUMENT AS NOTED IN MONUMENT WELL.

BEING LOT C. TRACT NO. 2017-01. VOLUME 80 OP PAGES 36-40.
LYING IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 21. TOWNSHIP 10

SOUTH. RANGE 10 EAST MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN
CITY OF LOS BANOS, MERCED COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

DECEMBER 2019

(
l

...----'--aD

LOT G
eo OP 21-24

LOT D
eo OP 21-24

---'-

'80 OP

SEE DETA!l\
ON SHEET 3 ,

SFN ,''-
CORNER ESTABLISHED \~,
BY PRORATION \Ie

~-'I!-

TRACT 2004-05
VILLAGES 1/1

PHASE /
79 OP /6-25

PARCEL A
99 PM 11-12

~
if
@,

/
/

COUNTY
OFMERCED t;

iii
CrTYUMlTLlNE

SE:ENOTEW1

/
/

/

/
q//fI

N

~

LINE AND CURVE TABLES ARE FOR

LIHETABlE CURVE TABlE

UNE, DIRECOON L£NGrn CURVE" RADIUS OELT"~
+1_~100N4"E 117.37 C1 32<1,00' 9116'17" 52.43'

r----- r- """'·142.,"l2 NW20WE ...,g
'" 7095.94'

I----
l.J N52'48'54"E 58.14' co 376.00' S'4a'~:R
L4 N65°35"S1°E eO.1T C4 2<117.00' S'51'30" 289.32"

r-----
5"55'250 \. 249-;;-15 N24"24W"W

«" If-CS 2417.00'

L6 N88"33"<9"W 36M C6 2417.00' 1~.8'55° 53921'

L7 N7"49'01°E 114,55'

1.8 N2<I"24'29"W
~r-

1.8 N6S'3S'31'E ~I!--
L1D NZ4"j!4'29"W 187.00'-L11 N24°24'2i"W 51,02'

L12 N54"5Q'SO'E 173.39'

L13 N6O"40'09'E 155.36'
'- /

COURSES SHOWN ON THIS SHEET ONLY

N890S4'39"E BEING THEB~ OF THE LINE BETWEEN t.t£RCEOCOl.JIIlY
GPS PT. 1023 AND MERCED COUNTY GPS PT, '024 (R-3), BEARINGS AND
DISTANCES ARE BAseD UPON CAlIFORNIA COORDINATE SYSTEM lONE III FD J/4~ IP
NAD 83. TO GET GROUND DISTANCES MULT!PLY GRID DISTANCES SHOWN
BY 1.0000016.

BASIS OF BEARINGS

(Roll VOLWE 76 OF OFACIAl PlATS. PAGES 22·30 M.e.R. (VIlLAGES IV. PHASE 18)
IR·2) VOLU04E 108 OF PARCEl tAAPS. PAGES 04-5. M.C.R.
IR·3) VOLUME 28 OF SURVEYS. PAGES 9-12, M.e.R.
IR-4) VOLUME 80 OF OFACIAL PlATS. PAGES 36-40 , M.e.A. (VILLAGES VII. PHASE 1. UNIT 1)
(R-5) VOLUME 99 OF PARCEL MAPS, PAGEs 11-12, M.e.R,
(R-G) VOLUME 29 OF PARCEL MAPS. PAGE 20, M.CR
(R-71 VOlUME 81 OF OFRCIAL PLATS. PAGES 13-16.N.C.R. (VILLAGES VII. PHASE t, UNIT 2)
(R-8) VOLUME 62 OF OfACIAl PlATS, PAGES 1G-12. M,C,A.IVn.tAGES VII. PHASE 18, l..Q'o;lT 1)

"f 6'0 -<><4,_"~~.,'1-Q 7 ; ~ PARCEL B II \,
~ 0>-11>~ (~$---<ib""""" I i 108 PM 4-5 I \
~ 0'«'1> ~~~. O(0l- I \" II
11 0', ~~, '" (;"1> I

/ , FO 2- IP '0 ~q~ a6' I l'l FO 2- IP I
100 200 400 / NO TAG, NO REF. •...... "'" ~I i NO TAG. NO REF" II FD 3/4" IP

SCALE 1".200' / FD CaTION SPINDLE I 08' NORTH OF CORNER ... q, 0.5' EAST OF CORNER ~NO TAe
SECTION NO TAG PER (R-5) ~ t I oio NOT ACCEPT ... I I DID NOT ACCEPl 'I PER (R-2)
CORNER",== / I =±:: ~ \! N89·S...·E "7.1OIMX""K""X"~1 CITY OF LOS BANOS I _',,-__S,FN ~ -_ --_ -

.2. --.jI--~_ - _ - __ -~ -PIONEER ROAD - --- --- - --- - --@----7/ '*""= J NB9"S8'10"E 930.2S[Ml(A-4) 930.3B"CR-6J ~'O"E 1:tJ527'{MKR4XR.2)(R.5j- - -- - - -:;;;rs-----
.... ~ FD MAG NAIL Ii 5HINE;R S 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 21 COUNTY ,-IMrr LINE \ \

/ NO TAC, NO REr COUNTY OF MERCED FD 3/'- IP TAGGED COUNTY OF MERCED -i
LJ

00" WEST OF CORNER "t.S .,,.. IN lAON wm PER PM (R-I)
~~"SJ;~~~~~10 SfN {1· IP PER (R6)] ~~Sril~~,ON10~4
PE~{~31 - --.f-- - - -- - - -- - - -- - - NB!r54'3'i0E8s1~.2iiR-3l-- - - -- - - -- - - -- - - RCE15310PERIR-31

BASIS OF BEARINGS



1. THIS SUBDIVISION CONTAINS A TOTAl OF 8.067 A.CRES, MORE OR LESS.
2, AlL DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE GRID DISTANCES. MULTIPlY GRID

DISTANCES SHOWN BY 1.0000016 TO GET GROUND DiSTANCES.
3. AlL DISTANCES ARE MEASURED UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
4. DISTANCES AND OtMENSIONS ARE SHOWN IN FEET AND DECIMAlS THEREOF.
5. AlLF~OMONUMENTS ARE ACCEPTED UNlESS OTHERWISE NOTED,
6. LOT A TO BE DEDICAlED TO CiTY OF LOS BANOS IN FEE FOR OPEN AREA SPACE.
7. PER DOCUMENT NO. 200&-000344 FOR THE ANNEKATION TO THE CITY, THE CITY

LIMIT BOUNDARY IN THIS AREA MAKES REFERENCE TO A CAl..TRANS MAP AND
OOES NOT LIST BEARINGS AND DISTANCES. Ci\LTRANS WAS UNABLE TO LOCATE
AND PROVIDE MAP. LINE WOAK FOR ANNEXATION WAS PROVIDED BY THE
CONPAt.lY WHO PREPAREO THE ANNEXATlON DOCUMENT TO DETERMINE
BEARINGS AND DISTANCES FOR COURSES AND CITY AGREED TO USE IT AS BEST
EVIDENCE OF LOCATION.

VOL

BASIS OF BEARINGS

SHEET 3 OF 3PAGE

O .... DELL
ENG1NEER1NG

1'65 Sc:enlcDr1Vt,Sule A
Modeslo, CA 95350

Ph 209.571,1765 odellenglnegrlng.com

MONUMENT NOTES
o SET 3/4M x 24M IRON PIPE WI PLASTIC PLUG ·PLS 1788" FOR UNPAVED

AREAS OR 1.17" BRASS DISK STAMPED "PLS nas" FOR CONCRETE AREAS.

@) SET 314" X24~ IRON PIPE WI PLASnc PLUG "PlS 7788" IN MONUUENT WELL

T SET 3/4" x 24" IRON PIPE W/PLAsnc PLUG "PLS n88" FOR AlL REAR LOT
CORNERS ~UNlESS OTHERWISE NOTED). FOR ALL FRONT LOT CORNERS,
SET 1.00' WITNESS CORNEA ON PROPERTY LINE PROJECTION. 1.11"
BRASS DISK STAMPED -PLS n8S"IN SiDEWALK OR 3/4~ x24" IRON PIPE WI
PLASTIC PlUG "Pl.$ 7788" FOR UNPAVED AREAS.

• SET 5.00' WITNESS CORNER, IA\ILESS OTl-tERWISE NOTED, MEASURED
AlONG LOT LINE, RADIAL LINE OR PERPENDICULAR TO STREET
CENTERLINE AS NOTED, 314" ll' 24" IRON PIPE WI PLASTiC PLUG "PLS 7788",

u: SET 1.00' WITNESS CORNER IN SIDEWALK. MEASURED AlONG RADIAL LINE
OR PERFENDtcUl.AA TO STREET CENTERlINE AS NOTEO. 1.1T BRASS
DISK STAMPEO "PlS naa", (UNLESS OrnERWlSE SHOWN)

• 3/4" x 24" IRON PIPE WITH PlASTIC PLUG "'8 7788" TO BE SET PER (R-8).
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

@ 3/4" x 24" IRON PIPE WITH PlASTIC PlUG",S 7788" IN MONUMENT WELL.
TO BE SET PER (fH).

o 3/"" ll' 24" IRON PIPE 'MTH PlASTIC PLUG "PLS 7788" TO BE SET PEA (R"4).

CUfNETASlE CURVETA8lE
-l-

CURVE' I RADli.JS DELTA lENGllI CURVE, RADIUS DELTA LENGllI

C, 7095,94' 0'20'35" 42,4$' C1S 376.00' 7"35'13' 49,79'--
C2 376.00' 7'48"45" 5l.27' Ct. .,."" ....". 5.OS'

376.00' C"
-

~
,....1' 25,10- 376.00' 1~48'

~-C. 376.0(Y e"49'03' 51,81' Ct6 23,DO' 47"50'16' 19.20'---
CS 376.0<1 5"_019' ".22' C19 SO.OO' 10-58'05' 9.57'

~

C. ,,6.00' 26"1:1734" 111,45' C20 SO.OO' 71"52'2r &2.72'
-,--

C7 >SO.O<1 25'30'41" 155,84' C2t SO.... 39"51'02" 34.78'
f-

C, 3SO.0<1 lC'3r_r 64,32' C22 SQ.DO' 47'22'23' 41.34'- --
~

>SO.O<1 36'OZ'28" 220.16' C23 SQ.0<1 48"16'05" ...17
!---1

CtO 3""" 16·54'49' 95.64' C" SO.O<1 S7"2CY"- 50.04'

Ctl "..... 10·35'$1· 69.55' C2S 23.0. 33"'01'45' 13.26'

C12 "'-... 9"16'1r 52.U C26 23.00' 14"48'31" 5,94'

Ct3 324.00' ,,.,..,,. 73,94' C27 23.00' 4J05f116"~
C" 376.0<1 7"3702"

~

LINE AND CURVE TABLES ARE FOR

TRACT NO: 2017-01
STONECREEK AT LOS BANOS

THE VILLAGES VII-PHASE 1B, UNIT 2
BEING LOT C, TRACT NO, 2017·01, VOLUME 80 OP PAGES 36-40.

LYING IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 10
SOUTH, RANGE 10 EAST MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN

CITY OF LOS BANOS, MERCED COUNTY, CALIFORNIA
DECEMBER 2019

COURSES SHOWN ON THIS SHEET ONLY
UNETA8L.E

UNE, DIRECTION LENGllI

U NB9"2O'09'E 2&,..
l2 Ns2"48'504"E 58.14'

- f--- -
L'l N24"24'29'W ...,~
" N29"03'09"E 29.35'

LS N63"13'21'W 31.1T-
l6 N2S-'9':WE ......

CENTERLINE

RESOlVED BOUNDARY LINE

LEGEND

EASEMENT LINE

RADW, LINES
Rl NB<T30'~1"E TAMRACK DR.

N06',5'16"w PAJARO DR.

I
i

'~r

30 to 120

SCALE: 1'_60'

N89"54'39"'E BEING THE BEARING OF THE LINE BETWEEN MERCED
COLNTY GPS PT. 1023 AND MERCED COUNTY GPS PT. 1024 (R-3).
OEAR1NGS AND DISTANCES ARE BASED UPON CAUFORNIA
COORDfNATE SYSTEM ZONe III NAD 83. TO GET GROUND DISTANCES
MUlTIPLY GRID DISTANCES SHOWN BY 1,0000016.

FOUND
IRON PlP&O!AMETEA NOTED
MEA.SURED DISTANCE
OFFICIAL PLATS
PARCEL MAP
PUBLIC UTILITY EASENENT
MERCED COUNTY RECORDS
REFERENCED RECORD IX>CUMENT
RADiAl BEARING
SEARCHED, FOUND NOTHING
SQUARE FEET
TOTAL DISTANCE
'NI1"NESS CORNEA

ABBREVIATIONS

NOTES

FD,.
1M)
OP
PM
P.U.E.
M.C.R.
(R-"
IA)
SFN
S.F.
m
W.C.

(R"1' VOLUME 76 OF OFFICIAL PLATS, rAGES 22·30 M.O.A. (VilLAGES IV, PHASE 1Bl
(R.2) VOlUME 103 OF PARCel MAPS. PAGES 4-5, M.C.R.
(M) VOlUME 26 OF SURVEYS. PAGES 9-12. M,C.R.
(R-4) VOlUME 80 OF OFFICIAl PlATS, PAGES 3&-<40 •M.C.R. (VIlLAGES VII. PHASE 1. UNIT 1)
(R~) VOlUME 99 OF PARCEL MAPS, PAGES 11,12, M.C,R.
(R-6) VOLUME 29 OF PARCel MAPS, PAGE 20, M.C.A.
(R-7) VOLUME 81 OFOFRCIAl PLATS, PAGES lS-18, M.C.R.IVrlLAGES VII. PHASE " UNIT 2)
(R-8) VOlUME 82 OF OFFICIAl PLATS, PAGES 10-12, M.C.R, (VILLAGES VII, PHASE IB, UNIT 1)

~~
REFERENCED RECORD DOCUMENTS
MERCED COUNTY RECORDS

b. "~I~·o';'I'j::"i5· I \ J2

\
JJ

Ft·2417 00' A..S-552S· L..2H 89' (M)(A-4) lJ~
36.0<1 .6_3"U 39' lp14389' '!\ 6_2"30'46' L..10600' IT MClA"~:

(NIIA.,

~
32

11,04S$.F,

',..,-cii-!..... ~.. -
L/ ~..1.'!l.40'3~.®"\ ~

":1 .....- /~b &l ~ ('t.

29

!l ~ \~

8,488 S.F.

~,33 ~I r iSl '1!3I
10

'"
~ .. ~.~"'--""' ,'r ~-.~~ 34 c"l.. I ~ 28 ~~
~ .~.. 8.F. I~ I '.483 8.F. ~
;:;; ._~l1o.00' I .t N88"5742"W 110.00' :-

~ 10' P.~ ,10' P.U.£. ~
~ll 35 lil!!!!!l~ 27 !i
~ S ..... 8... ~ ~ I~ ~ •••DOS.F. ~ ~
, . -~,,,." I" ,~,,~~!- - - . ~

II 80

45

47

46

1
I

2 I

~ I~'II I I I

J - ---i~1 I : 49

- il I Ii 48
I I I _

4 THE' VILLAGES VII
PHASE 18

UNIT 1

I 5 8: lOP l'O~lf

6

~; I

~
~b:r! )
l" --I
:!! I
.. I

~~ 8 I
~ I

~
18 9

t
iii

10



SITE MAP
Village IB Unlt1

-'- _1 t
r i TI~ r
' I " ~ t1

;;;
-;;

j=~~l_---=-:=:::=T-~~~f-l~~~~~~~~~[fSTONECREEK 1
:I: [~~~~~!~ll~lI5~Scerlc~Dtw:'~Sul:IeAJL~~V;IL~LA~~G~ES:=~_.I2!=E~~::"- _! _.~- FORN.
o LOS BANOS, CALIodelIengileoring.com;! £NGl N££flI:l NG
~
:I:



Recording Requested By:

City of Los Banos

And When Recorded Mail to:

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk
City of Los Banos
520 J Street
Los Banos CA 93635 S ace above this line for Recorder's use.

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made this day of _____--C' 2020, between

ANDERSON HOMES, a California Corporation, Parties of the First Part, hereinafter designated

and called "DEVELOPER(S)", and the CITY OF LOS BANOS, a municipal corporation, the

Parties of the Second Part, hereinafter designated and called "CITY".

WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER(S) have presented to the CITY a certain Final Map located

within the corporate limits of the CITY, and knoWn and described as Tract No 2017-01 Stonecreek

at Los Banos, The Villages VII Phase 1B Unit 2, comprised of 26 lots on 6.07± acres, a copy of

which is on file at the City of Los Banos Planning Department and made a part of this

AGREEMENT by reference, and said DEVELOPER(S)have requested the CITY to accept the

dedications delineated and shown on said Final Map in order that the same may be recorded as

required by law; and,

WHEREAS, the CITY requires a condition precedent to the acceptance and approval of

said Final Map, the dedication of said easements as are delineated and shown on said Final Map,

and deems the same as necessary for public use, and requires and deems as necessary for the

public use that any and all street improvements delineated and shown thereon shall be improved by

the construction thereon and the installation therein of the improvements hereinafter specified in

Paragraph One herein; and,

WHEREAS, certain sections of the Los Banos Municipal Code require the

DEVELOPER(S) to enter into this AGREEMENT with the CITY whereby DEVELOPER(S) agree

to do, perform, and complete the works and matters hereinafter in this AGREEMENT mentioned

Subdivision Improvement Agreement FM #2017-01
THE Vll.,LAGE VII PH. 1B UN. 2



and set forth in details, within the time hereinafter mentioned, in consideration of the acceptance

of the offers of dedication by the CITY; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Los Banos has found said Final Map by

Resolution No. ____ to be in substantial compliance with the designs and Conditions of

Approval of Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 2017-01.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the acceptance of the offers of dedication of

easements, and facilities as shown and delineated on said Final Map, and the approval of said Final

Map for filing and recording as provided and required by law, it is mutually agreed and understood

by and between DEVELOPER(S) and CITY as follows:

SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT

1. That the CITY has fixed and does fix the time within which DEVELOPER(S) shall do and

perform the work and improvements hereinafter specified and at such time during this period as

designated by the Public Works Director/City Engineer of the CITY, but no later than the 30th day

of April 2022, with the said provision that this time may be extended by consent of the City

Council, and that the DEVELOPER(S) will, within the period of time stated herein above in this

paragraph stated and fixed, do or cause to be done and performed, the following described work

and improvements,(as detailed in attached Exhibit A) all at their own cost and expense, to the

satisfaction of the Public Works Director/City Engineer in accord with the approved subdivision

improvement plans and existing City Policies and adopted Standards, including all costs of

inspection, to-wit;

IMPROVEMENTS:

1. SITE PREPARATION $ 3,000.00

2. WATER $ 40,970.00

3. SANITARY SEWER $ 34,590.00

4. STORM DRAINAGE $ 32,669.00

5. CONCRETE $ 74,975.00

6. PAVING $ 97,705.60

7. ELECTROLIERS $ 10,000.00

8. MISCELLANEOUS $ 1.900.00

TOTAL $ 295,809.60

Subdivision Improvement Agreement 2 FM#2017-01
THE VILLAGE VII PH. 1B UN. 2



2. The DEVELOPER(S) shall furnish bonding or other fonns of security for the estimated cost of
the remaining improvements, agreed to by the CITY for Perfonnance at 100%, $295,809.60 and
Labor and Materials at 50%, $147,904.48 and prior to the release of other security, for Warranty

and Guarantee at 10% in the amount of $29,580.96. In addition, the DEVELOPER(S) shall
provide a bond or other fonn of security in the amount of $3,500.00 for survey monuments, per
§66496 of the Government Code.

3. The DEVELOPER(S) agrees to pay the following fees at the time of signing the

AGREEMENT less any amount previously paid and not to exclude pending invoices from outside

consulting fIrms.

FINAL MAP REVIEW

Charges for

Less: Deposit for Map Review (Rec#O1314203)

SUB-TOTAL

$ 3,227.31

$ (1,000.00)

$ 2.227.31

TOTAL $ 2,227.31

4. In accordance with adopted City Policy, security funds may be released for each category of

improvements, as per Engineer's cost estimates for $295,809.60 (attached as Exhibit "A"), as

approved by Public Works Director/City Engineer and accepted by the City Council.

5. The DEVELOPER(S) shall install improvements in accordance with the requirements of the

City of Los Banos Municipal Code, the Standard SpecifIcations of the City of Los Banos, the

approved Subdivision Improvements and Grading Plans and the Conditions of Approval of

Vesting Tentative Tract Map 2017-01. All public improvements and utilities must be installed

prior to occupancy of units.

6. In the event that the DEVELOPER(S) shall damage, destroy, or tear up any existing

improvements, DEVELOPER(S) agree to repair or replace such destroyed or damaged

improvements at their cost whenever such damage shall occur.

7. Street lights shall be furnished and installed by the DEVELOPER(S). It is solely the

DEVELOPER(S) responsibility to coordinate the installation of street lights with the PacifIc Gas

and Electric Company and pay any and all fees necessary for their installation. At the time of

acceptance, the street lights, including conductors to utility owner splice boxes, shall become the

property of the CITY.

Subdivision Improvement Agreement 3 FM#2017-01
TIIE VILLAGE Vll PH. 1B UN. 2



8. Any improvements not shown on the approved Improvement Plans which are to be

dedicated to the CITY or which are to be placed within the proposed City right-of-way, including

mailboxes, private and utility works, shall not be constructed without written approval from the

CITY. It shall be the DEVELOPER(S) responsibility to ensure that mailboxes for use by the U.S.

Postal Service are available for residents at the time of occupancy; installation to be per plans

approved by the Postmaster and the CITY.

9. All earthwork and construction shall meet the requirements and recommendations of the

Soils Report, the Amended Soils Report for the Project and the adopted Improvement Standards

and Specifications of the City. The DEVELOPER(S) shall, at their expense, provide a Soils

Engineer whose responsibility includes the professional inspection and approval concerning the

preparation of ground to receive fills, excavation and backfill operations, stability of all finished

slopes, and testing for required compaction. Prior to the issuance of structural permits and prior to

occupancy release, the Soils Engineer shall certify, in writing, that all earthwork including trench

backfill meets the requirements and recommendations of the Soils Report and the adopted

Improvement Standards and Specifications ofthe City.

10. Neither the CITY nor any of its officers or agents shall be liable to DEVELOPER(S) or

their contractors for any error or omission arising out of or in connection with any work to be

performed under this AGREEMENT. During the progress of the work, if it becomes necessary to

modify the design because of errors or omissions on the plans or unforeseen conditions which

render a portion of the project inoperable, unsafe, or prohibits a part of the project from

performing satisfactorily in the opinion of the CITY, the plans shall be modified in accordance

with the recommendations of the CITY. The DEVELOPER(S) shall be responsible for all costs

incurred in revising the plans and performing the work in accordance with the modified plans.

11. The Improvement Plans may be modified upon approval by the CITY at no cost to the

CITY.

12. The CITY shall not be liable to the DEVELOPER(S) or to any other person, firm, or

corporation whatsoever, for any injury or damage that may result to any person or property by or

Subdivision Improvement Agreement 4 FM #2017-01
THE VILLAGE VII PH. 1B UN. 2



from any cause whatsoever in, on, or about the subdivision of said land covered by this

AGREEMENT, or any part thereof.

13. The DEVELOPER(S) hereby release and agree to indemnify and hold the CITY harmless

from and against any and all injuries to and deaths of persons and injuries to property, and all

claims, demands, costs, loss, damage, and liability, howsoever the same may be caused and

whensoever the same may appear, resulting directly or indirectly from the performance or

nonperformance of any or all work to be done in and upon the street rights-of-way in said

subdivision and upon the premises adjacent thereto pursuant to this AGREEMENT, and also from

any and all injuries to and deaths of persons and injuries to property or other interests, and all

claims, demands, costs, loss, damage, and liability, howsoever the same may be caused and

whensoever the same may appear, either directly or indirectly made or suffered by the

DEVELOPER(S), the DEVELOPER(S) agents, employees, and subcontractors, while engaged in

the performance of said work.

14. The DEVELOPER(S) agree that the use for any purpose and by any persons of any and all

of the improvements herein before specified, shall be at the sole and exclusive risk of the

DEVELOPER(S) at all times prior to final acceptance by the CITY of the completed

improvements. Thereon and therein; provided, that acceptance by the CITY shall in no way

eliminate or lessen any of DEVELOPER(S) obligations and undertakings contained in this

AGREEMENT. The issuance of any occupancy permits by the CITY for dwellings located within

said subdivision shall not be construed in any manner to constitute an acceptance and approval of

any or all ofthe improvements in said subdivision.

15. It is mutually agreed by the parties hereto that the Public Works Director/City Engineer

shall have the right to reject any or all of the work to be performed under this AGREEMENT if

such work does not conform with the plans and specifications mentioned herein or the ordinances

of the CITY. Reinspection of corrected work shall be at the expense of the DEVELOPER(S). The

cost of such reinspection is not included in the Engineering and Inspection Fee described in

Paragraph 4 of this AGREEMENT. Any damage to the sewer system, utilities, concrete work, or

street paving that occurs after installation shall be repaired by the DEVELOPER(S) to the

Subdivision Improvement Agreement 5 FM #2017-01
THE VILLAGE VII PH. 1B UN. 2



satisfaction of the Public Works Director/City Engineer by the DEVELOPER(S) before release of

bond or final acceptance ofcompleted work.

16. DEVELOPER(S) shall provide for adequate erosion control as determined by the Public

Works Director/City Engineer on individual lots and from exterior property draining into the area

of the subdivision, to protect the public rights-of-way and improvements. Erosion control on

individual lots shall continue until such a time as front and street side yard landscaping is installed.

17. Without limiting the foregoing, DEVELOPER(S) warrant and guarantee materials used and

workmanship performed on said work for a period of one (1) year after completion and acceptance

thereof by the City Council, or the Public Works Director/City Engineer.

18. Upon completion of the improvements, specified herein the DEVELOPER(S) shall file a

Notice of Completion with Merced County and submit to the City "As Built" drawings on mylar,

of the improvements. The Notice of Completion shall be filed no later than thirty-five (35) days

prior to consideration for acceptance of the improvements by the City Council. As part of the

request for acceptance of improvements, the DEVELOPER(S) shall submit a title report

encompassing each of the parcels within the Subdivision which discloses all liens or claims which

may have been recorded in or prior to thirty-one (31) days following the date of recordation of the

Notice of Completion. If any liens or claims are thus revealed, the DEVELOPER(S) shall either

remove the liens and claims and submit an updated title report prior to acceptance of the

Subdivision by the CITY, or shall enter into an agreement with the CITY that provides to the

satisfaction of the CITY a method for the removal of such liens and claims at no cost to the CITY.

19. It is hereby mutually covenanted and agreed by the parties hereto that DEVELOPER(S)

contractors are not agents of the CITY and that the contractors' relations to CITY, if any, are those

of independent contractors.

20. That the applicant furnish the CITY with a reproducible 8 1/2" x II" map of the Final Map

of this development prior to issuance of permits.

21. DEVELOPER(S) shall comply with all applicable original or amended Conditions of

Approval of Vesting Tentative Tract Map 2017-01 prior to acceptance of public improvements or

final of any housing units.

Subdivision Improvement Agreement 6 FM#2017-01
THE VilLAGE vn PH. 1B UN. 2



22. No work shall commence under the tenns of this AGREEMENT prior to all of the

following being completed: deposit of improvement security per City Council resolution; issuance

of a Subdivision Improvements grading pennit other than rough grading and site preparation; and

payment of all required development fees.

23. All costs for engineering and inspection services which exceed the 5% fee specified above

will be invoiced to the DEVELOPER(S) and must be paid in full prior to acceptance of the subject

improvements by the CITY.

24. If construction of improvements has not begun within one (1) year from the date of this

AGREEMENT, then prior to commencement of work the Public Works Director/City Engineer

( shall review the improvement plans and detennine if revisions are required. In any case, a new

engineer's cost estimate shall be submitted by the applicant to the Public Works Director/City

Engineer. The applicant shall be responsible for any modification to the plans required by the

Public Works Director/City Engineer and shall pay all plan check fees plus the difference In

inspection fees due based on the new cost estimate.

25. The DEVELOPER(S) acknowledge the requirement to comply with the environmental

mitigation measures for Vesting Tentative Tract Map 2017-01, and the conditions of approval for

said tentative map, (attached herein as Exhibit 'B'), in the development of this Subdivision.

26. The tenns of this AGREEMENT are not intended to, nor do they, relieve the

DEVELOPER(S) of any conditions of approval, compliance with City Standards or compliance

with mitigation measures of adopted environmental documents, the compliance with which may be

placed as a condition ofpennit issuance or occupancy.

27. Time is of the essence of this AGREEMENT. It is agreed that the provisions of this

AGREEMENT shall apply to and bind the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, devisees,

and assignees of the respective parties hereto.

[Signature Page Follows]

Subdivision Improvement Agreement 7 FM#2017-01
THE Vll.,LAGE vn PH. 1B UN. 2



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed these presents or caused the same to

be executed by the officers thereunto duly authorized on the date and year in this AGREEMENT

first above written.

ANDERSON HOMES,
A California Corporation.

mes Anderson, Vice President PARTIES

OF THE FIRST PART

CITY OF LOS BANOS
A Municipal Corporation

Michael Villalta, Mayor

PARTIES OF THE SECOND PART
ATTEST:

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk
City of Los Banos

Signatures need to be notarized. Attach a Notary Acknowledgement.

Subdivision ImprovementAgreement 8 FM #2017-01
THE VILLAGE VII PH. 1B UN. 2



CALIFORNIA ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE § 1189

Anotary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document
to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California }

County of -,S~C4.J:J(\,--,--,8eo...-.£.."'~\-,k....1.L- _

On ---+--,~~i........\,------,2=-Y---,--,-......"£"",,,,°-=2:>..000,--- before me, 1=3e8,n c.e 0'\. vJ4ltJOX' I 0 b1-A vU PtJhh:c.. .
Date Here Insert Name and Title of the Offict

personally appeared ::f"Cl~£ A-rJdu.c.....(...SJ...).....Y')'-+- _
Name(s) of Signer(s)

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity
upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

REGINA M. WALDRON
Notary Public - California

San Benito County ~
Commi~~ion ~ 2233814

My Comm. Expires Apr 7, 2022

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the
laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signer's Name: _
o Corporate Officer - Title(s): _
o Partner - 0 Limited 0 General
o Individual 0 Attorney in Fact
o Trustee 0 Guardian or Conservator
o Other:
Signer is Representing: _

Place Notary Seal and/or Stamp Above

Description of Attached Document

Title or Type of Document: SJbd\IA.5.(an :ImprtN1."'YYlt:a t A8 (~cYY\c.Q 1--
Document Date: Number of Pages: _

Signer(s) Other Than Named Above: _

Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s)
Signer's Name: _
o Corporate Officer - Title(s): _
o Partner - 0 Limited 0 General
o Individual 0 Attorney in Fact
o Trustee 0 Guardian or Conservator
o Other:
Signer is Representing: _

©2018 National Notary Association



Exhibit 'A'
31110

OPINION OF PROBABLE COST
€NG1N€€i'tlNG

Project name: Dove Hollow, Phase 1B - Unit 2 (26 lots) LOS BANOS, CA

Project progress stage: DESIGN 5/16/2019

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANT. UNIT COST AMOUNT

A. SITE PREPARATION
1 SITE CLEARING LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00
2 EROSION CONTROL LS $1.500.00 $1,500.00

SUB-TOTAL $3,000.00
B.WATER
1 10" WATER LF 695 $20.00 $13,900.00
2 10" WATER VALVE LF 1 $2.000.00 $2,000.00
3 8"WATER LF 315 $18.00 $5,670.00
4 8" WATER VALVE EA 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
5 HYDRANT, BURY & GATE VALVE EA 2 $2,500.00 $5,000.00
6 CONNECT TO EX. WATER MAIN EA 2 $1,500.00 $3,000.00
7 HOUSE SERVICE INCLUDING EA 26 $400.00 $10,400.00

METER BOX

SUB-TOTAL $40,970.00
C. SANITARY SEWER
1 8" SEWER MAIN LF 1,005 $18.00 $18,090.00
2 STD. SEWER MANHOLE EA 4 $2,000.00 $8,000.00
3 4" STD. LATERAL EA 26 $250.00 $6,500.00
4 CONNECT TO EX. SEWER EA 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

MANHOLE

SUB-TOTAL $34,590.00
D. STORM DRAINAGE
1 12" STORM DRAIN LF 58 $20.00 $1,160.00
2 15" STORM DRAIN LF 683 $23.00 $15,709.00
3 STD. MANHOLE EA 4 $2,000.00 $8,000.00
4 CATCH BASIN EA 4 $1,450.00 $5,800.00
5 CONNECT TO EX. STORM DRAIN EA 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

SUB-TOTAL $32,669.00
E.CONCRETE
1 6" VERTICAL CURB & GUTTER LF 1,813 $15.00 $27,195.00

(INCL. RETURNS & DRIVEWAYS)
2 ROLLED CURB & GUTTER LF 250 $14.00 $3,500.00
3 SIDEWALK (INCL. RAMPS, SF 13,960 $3.00 $41,880.00

RETURNS & DRIVEWAYS)
4 WHEEL CHAIR RAMP (LABOR ONLY) EA 3 $800.00 $2,400.00

SUB-TOTAL $74,975.00

p:209.571.1765 I f:209.571.2466 Probable Cost Estimate
O'Dell EngineeringModesto Office: 1165 Scenic Drive, Suite A, Modesto, CA 95350 I www.odellengineering.com

'------....:::-_---=---'

H:\31110 Dove Hollow Stonecreek\CiviI\Estimates\Cost Estimates\2019-05-16-Phase 1B Cost Updates\EST-Phase1B-Unit 2-26 Lots - Dove Hollow
31113.x1sx



31110

F. PAVING
1 2.5" A.C. OVER 10" A.B. SF 32,532 $3.00 $97,596.00
2 SAWCUT LF 60 $1.50 $90.00
3 REMOVE PAVEMENT SF 56 $0.35 $19.60

SUB-TOTAL $97,705.60
G. ELECTROLIERS
1 ELECTROLIERS EA 4 $2,500.00 $10,000.00

SUB-TOTAL $10,000.00
H. MISCELLANEOUS
1 R-1 STOP SIGN W/ STREET SIGN EA 2 $200.00 $400.00
2 MONUMENT WELLS EA 5 $300.00 $1,500.00

SUB-TOTAL $1,900.00

Construction Total $295,809.60

10% CONSTRUCTION CONTINGENCY $29,580.96

GRAND TOTAL $325,390.56

J. Easement acquisitions
K. Walls
L. Landscape Design Improvements
M. Street Trees
N. Tree Removal
O. Mail Boxes
P. ExistinQ IrriQation Facilitv Demolition

5.

Notes:
1. This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, landscaping, street trees, joint trench, or irrigation.
2. This estimate does not include cost for removal and/or replacement of existing utility poles and the utilities

associated with the utility poles.
This estimate does not include cost for irrigation ditch removal, relocation, or pipe lining.
Esitmate grading cost can vary due to shrinkage, stripping, site consolidation and other variable factors
associated with earthwork.
Items not included as part of this estimate.
A. Good Neighbor Fencing
B. Permits
C. Utility Fees
D. City Fees, bond fees
E. Engineering/design fees
F. Soils engineering cost
G. Power Pole Relocation
H. Construction Surveying
I. Landscaping Fees

This estimate is not intented for bidding purposes

3.
4.

6.

p:209.571.1765 I f:209.571.2466 Probable Cost Estimate
O'Dell EngineeringModesto Office: 1165 Scenic Drive, Suite A, Modesto, CA 95350 I www.odellengineering.com

L..- --='------_--=-_---...J

H:\31110 Dove Hollow Stonecreek\Civil\Eslimates\Cost Eslimates\2019-05-16-Phase 1B Cost Updates\EST-Phase1 B-Unit 2-26 Lots - Dove Hollow 
31113.xlsx



Exhibit B

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR VESTING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP #2017·01 
DOVE HOLLOW VILLAGES AT STONECREEK VII

General

1. The applicant shall submit a revised Vesting Tentative Tract Map to the
Community and Economic Development Department reflecting any
modifications, additions, and/or conditions of approval, within 30 days from
Planning Commission approval. If necessary, the revised Vesting
Tentative Tract Map shall be reviewed by the City Engineer and the
Community and Economic Development Director and signed by the
Community and Economic Development Director for purposes of providing
a clear record of the approved Vesting Tentative Tract Map.

2. The Vesting Tentative Tract Maps, Final Maps, and Improvement Plans
shall be consistent with the Final Development Plan, as conditioned.

3. Approval and life of the Vesting Tentative Tract Maps shall be as set forth
in the Los Banos Municipal Code.

4. All development shall be consistent with the Vesting Tentative Tract Map
#2017-01 and approved Final Development Plan #2017-01, reflecting any
amendments added during approval.

5. The Final Map(s) shall be in substantial compliance with the approved
Vesting Tentative Tract Map, including any changes set forth in the
conditions of approval.

6. A Final Map shall be prepared by a professional land surveyor licensed in
California or a professional engineer licensed in California and qualified to
practice land surveying, according to the Subdivision Map Act, and local
ordinances.

7. At least two points on the Final Map shall be tied to the California State
Plane Coordinate System (NAD 83) with ties shown and closure
calculations depicting the tie bearings and distances.

8. A letter from the Tax Collector shall be submitted prior to the recording of
the Final Map which indicates that taxes have been paid or a bond has
been posted.

9. A Final Map Guarantee shall be prepared and provided to the County
Recorder.

6



10. When the submittal has been technically approved, the original mylars and
a conforming mylar will be signed and notarized (notary shall not be
stamped on the map) and delivered to the Public Works Department.

11. Developer shall include a Public Utility Easement of ten (10) feet along all
road frontages.

12. For all properties within 1,000 feet of agricultural operations, deed notices
shall be recorded with the final map. The deed notice shall require
property purchasers to acknowledge the existing and ongoing commercial
and/or agricultural uses on adjacent and nearby properties, and the
Merced County Right-to-farm Ordinance.

13. Building Master Plans shall be approved by the Community and Economic
Development Department and Building Department prior to issuance of
the first building permit and shall be consistent with Final Development
Plan #2017-01.

14. Improvement Plans shall be submitted to the City for approval prior t%r
concurrent with the application for each final map and the following note
shall be required: ''The Contractor is responsible for protecting and
preserving survey monuments and other survey markers. Any survey
monuments damaged as a direct or indirect result of construction activities
shall be re-established by a duly licensed land surveyor at the Contractor's
sole expense. A comer record shall be filed in accordance with State law
for any reset monuments at the Contractor's sole expense."

15. Improvement Plans shall include a street signage and striping plan to be
approved by the Public Works Director.

16. On-site improvements may be constructed prior to the recording of the
final map subject to City approval of Improvement Plans and payment of
applicable plan check and inspection fees, and satisfaction of all
construction conditions of approval.

17. Off-site public improvement plan(s) shall be submitted to the Public Works
Department for approval prior t%r concurrent with the application for the
Final Map. The developer shall not commence off-site improvements until
approval is received by the Public Works Department. The developer shall
enter into a subdivision improvement agreement with the City and provide
labor and maintenance bonds in an amount of 100% of the Engineer's
Estimate for public improvements to be completed following recordation of
the Final Map.

18. The project is subject to the appropriate Development Impact Fees as
established by the City.

7



19. Private property owners shall be responsible for the maintenance of sound
walls and decorative masonry walls located on private property.

20. The applicant shall obtain City approval in advance for permanent and
temporary on-site and off-site signs through separate sign reviews and
bonding consistent with the development criteria of the Los Banos
Municipal Code - Sign Ordinance.

21. It is the applicant's responsibility to ensure that the development complies
with the Americans with Disabilities Act requirements.

22. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to convey copies of the
conditions of approval to all contractors and sub-contractors.

23. Building permits will be issued in accordance with City Subdivision Policy
that identifies the improvements required in order for a building permit to
be issued.

24. All structures, foundations, and footings for future buildings on the project
site shall be designed and constructed to conform with the current Uniform
Building Code for Seismic Zone 4 to minimize structural damage resulting
from potential seismic activity.

25. An engineering soils report shall be prepared for all projects in order to
identify soil characteristics requiring special structural design. On-site and
off-site structural design shall conform to the findings and
recommendation of the engineering soils report. The report shall be
prepared prior to issuance of a grading permit, subject to review and
approval of the Los Banos City Engineer.

26. Prior to issuance of building permits for development of sensitive
residential land uses (e.g. houses, schools, parks, day care), or other uses
in which persons may contact soils), a Phase 1 environmental assessment
shall be prepared to determine if soils contain hazardous materials. If
necessary, a remediation plan shall be created and implemented. The
assessment and any necessary remediation plans shall be subject to the
approval of the Community Development Department.

27. Improvement Plans and Grading Plans shall delineate the location and
design of all required walls and fences including retaining walls.

28. Improvement Plans shall include mailbox locations, which must be
approved by the US Postmaster and the City of Los Banos.

29. Undeveloped portions of the subdivision shall be controlled of weeds and
free of debris and litter.

8



30. Due to the possibility that significant buried cultural resources might be
found during construction, the following language shall be included in any
permits issued for the project site, including, but not limited to building
permits for future development, subject to the review and approval of the
Los Banos Planning Division:

If archaeological resources or human remains are discovered during
construction, work shall be halted at a minimum of 200 feet from the find
and the area shall be staked off. The project developer shall notify a
qualified professional archaeologist. If the find is determined to be
significant, appropriate mitigation measures shall be formulated and
implemented.

31. In the event of an accidental discovery or recognition of any human
remains in any location other than a dedicated cemetery, the City shall
ensure that this language is included in all permits in accordance with
CEQA Guidelines section 15064.5(e}:

If human remains are found during construction there shall be no further
excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably
suspected to overlie adjacent human remains until the Los Banos Police
Department contacts the coroner of Merced County to determine that no
investigation of the cause of death is required. If the coroner determines
the remains to be Native American, the coroner shall contact the Native
American Heritage Commission within 24 hours. The Native American
Heritage Commission shall identify the person or persons it believes to be
the most likely descendent from the deceased Native American. The most
likely descendent may then make recommendations to the landowner or
the person responsible for the excavation work, for means of treating or
disposing of, with appropriate dignity, the human remains and associated
grave goods as provided in Public Resources Code Section 5097.98. The
landowner or his authorized representative shall rebury the Native
American human remains and associated grave goods with appropriate
dignity on the property in a location not subject to further disturbance if: a)
the Native American Heritage Commission is unable to identify a most
likely descendent or the most likely descendent failed to make a
recommendation within 24 hours after being notified by the commission; b)
the descendent identified fails to make a recommendation; or c) the
landowner or his authorized representative rejects the recommendation of
the descendent, and the mediation by the Native American Heritage
Commission fails to provide measures acceptable to the landowner.

Pre-Construction and Construction

32. A minimum 200-foot separation shall be maintained between residences
and material stockpiles, debris piles or containers and equipment storage
during the construction process. If such storage must be located within

9



200 feet of a residence, a six-foot high opaque fence shall shield the
storage area from view when the storage area is inactive for more than
eight hours. This requirement shall be incorporated into the specifications
for all construction plans, subject to review and approval by the City of Los
Banos Community and Economic Development Director.

33. Two points of all-weather access shall be provided to all areas of the
development during all phases of construction to the satisfaction of the
Fire Department in areas where residential units are under construction.

34. Temporary construction trailers shall be permitted only in areas
immediately adjacent to or within that portion of the subdivision where
active subdivision construction is taking place. Placement of said
construction trailer is subject to the Community and Economic
Development Director approval in accordance with Title 9, Chapter 3,
Article 38, Temporary Use Ordinance of the Los Banos Municipal Code.

35. During construction, and for safety purposes, the developer and assigned
contractors shall keep the public right-of-way clear of obstructions, and
provide for clean up on a daily basis.

36. Prior to acceptance of public improvements, all entries to the subdivision
shall be barricaded to prevent the public from entering the construction
site.

37. Undeveloped portions of development sites shall be controlled of weeds
and free of debris and litter. The applicant shall provide protection against
wind and water soil erosion on undeveloped portions of the project site.
Temporary vegetation on undeveloped portions of the project site shall not
be allowed to grow taller than eighteen inches.

38. All contractors and subcontractors performing work relative to this project
shall obtain City of Los Banos Business Licenses, prior to start of work on
the project. All work performed on the project shall comply with the
requirements of the State Business and Professions Code.

39. Construction shall be limited to those times allowed by City Ordinance:
Monday through Friday from 7:00 am to 7:00 pm; Saturday from 8:00 am
to 7:00 pm; and Sunday from 9:00 am to 7:00 pm. Properly muffled
equipment shall be used.

40. The developer shall incorporate soil erosion control measures into grading
and drainage plans that comply with NPDES storm water regulations.
These measures shall be monitored for effectiveness by the City of Los
Banos. Such measures may include, but not be limited to, the following:

a. Limit disturbance of soils and vegetation disturbance removal to the
minimum area necessary for access and construction;

10



b. Confine all vehicular traffic associated with construction to the right-of
way of designated access roads;

c. Silt fencing installed in accordance with the American Society for
Testing and Materials standard 06462.

d. Adhere to construction schedules designed to avoid periods of heavy
precipitation or high winds;

e. Ensure that all exposed soil is provided with temporary drainage and
soil protection when construction activity is shut down during the winter
periods;

f. Inform construction personnel prior to construction and periodically
during construction activities of environmental concerns, pertinent laws
and regulations, and elements of the proposed erosion control
measures;

g. Compliance with National Pollution Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) permits administered by the California Regional Water
Quality Control Board; and

h. Development of a plan to employ best management practices that
reduce the level of pollutants discharged into natural waterways and
wetlands.

41. Where standard comer lot side yards abut a street, a minimum three-foot
landscaping area shall be provided between the back of sidewalk and the
fence.

42. Restricted access rights shall be irrevocably offered for dedication to the
City along the rear edge of private property where properties back onto
streets, and shall be shown on final maps.

43. Masonry walls shall be decorative and in conformance with the Final
Development Plan. A minimum 3 foot landscape area shall be provided
between the back of the sidewalk and any masonry walls.

Air Quality:

44. Housing units shall be oriented to maximize passive solar cooling and
heating when practicable.

45. Gas fired appliances shall be low NOx emitting appliances complying with
California NOx Emission Rule #1121.

46. The developer shall comply with all applicable Indirect Source Rule
requirements of the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District.

11



Developer shall prepare an air emissions reduction if required.

Access and Circulation:

47. All street traffic impact fee reimbursements shall be per the Transportation
Impact Fee program (TIF).

48. Full width street improvements for Badger Flat Road (street to the
eastside of Dove Hollow Villages at Stonecreek VII), shall be constructed
as approved by the Public Works Dirf3ctor based on a phasing plan which
contemplates the surrounding tentative maps.

49. Half-street sections will not be permitted in the construction of VTIM
#2017-01.

50. Pavement along Pioneer Road will need to be rebuilt in accordance with
the City of Los Banos Standards and Specifications.

51. The bicycle paths shall be designed in conformance with Caltrans design
standards, and shall specifically be designed to reduce intersection
conflicts between cyclists and automobiles, using signage, lighting, and/or
special street pavement treatments at and near points of intersection.

52. The developer shall be responsible for constructing public streets per the
Vesting Tentative Tract Maps including, but not limited to curb, gutter and
sidewalk, decorative masonry wall, and landscaping where noted.
Improvements to arterials and collector streets shall be completed prior to
occupancy of any use within the project boundaries, and improvements to
neighborhood streets shall be complete prior to occupancy of any house
that requires the street for access.

53. All street signage and striping within the project area shall be approved by
the Public Works Department and shall meet all line-of-sight requirements.

54. Prior to acceptance of subdivision improvements, the developer shall
install all street and traffic control signs, pavement striping, and street
name signs in accordance with the public improvement plans and City
and/or Caltrans standards.

55. Final Map(s) shall show a non-access strip 12 inches in width on private
property along the frontage of arterial and collector streets, except at
driveways, for the purpose of constructing sound walls and decorative
masonry walls.

56. The developer shall be responsible for obtaining encroachment permits
from the City of Los Banos prior to performing any work within the City's
right-of-way.

12



57. Prior to Final Map approval, a Traffic Engineer shall design traffic calming
measures throughout the project area to be approved by the Public Works
Director/City Engineer. Traffic calming measures may include, but are not
limited to, raised intersections, stop signs, varied cross sections, solar
speed limit radars, and roundabouts to be installed by the developer.

Landscape and Lighting District:

58. Prior to approval of any final or parcel map, the developer shall form or
annex the subject property to a Lighting and Landscaping District created
for purposes of maintaining public landscape areas, signage and public
lighting including a share of traffic signal maintenance costs as authorized
pursuant to the Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2 of Division 15
of the California Streets and Highways Code, and Article XIIID of the
California Constitution. The form, terms and conditions and the tax rate for
the formation of the Lighting and Landscaping District, or in the alternative
the annexation of the subject property to an existing district, shall be as
approved by the City Council, as determined in its sole and exclusive
discretion. It is the intent of the parties that the assessment of the subject
property will be apportioned to each parcel in proportion to the special
benefit it receives. District formation or annexation shall be at the sole cost
of the developer.

Community Facilities District:

59. Prior to the recordation of a Final Map the Developer shall form or annex
the Subject Property to a community facilities district created for the
purposes of funding public safety, as authorized by Government Code
Section 53313(a) and (b). The form, terms and conditions and the tax rate
for the formation of the Mello-Roos district, or in the alternative the
annexation of the subject property to an existing district, shall be as
approved by the City Council, as determined in its sole and exclusive
discretion. District formation or annexation shall be at the sole cost of the
Developer.

Utilities:

60. The applicant shall construct water, sewer, and storm drainage facilities as
noted on the Vesting Tentative Tract Map, in accordance with City
standards. The project shall comply with the current City Plans,
Standards, and Specifications, all Master Plan requirements, and the
applicant shall work with the Public Works Department in regards to
needed infrastructure and development during the Improvement Plan
Review stage.

13



61. In conformance with the Subdivision Map Act, the developer shall permit
installation of underground cable television delivery systems within public
utility easements. All dwellings shall be made cable ready.

62. Prior to approval of Improvement Plans or Final Maps, the developer shall
obtain any necessary easements for utilities across adjoining properties.

63. All existing overhead utilities shall be placed underground with the
exception of high voltage power lines. No new overhead utility lines and
equipment shall be shown on Improvement Plans and Grading Plans.

The proposed project shall conform to the requirements of the Los Banos
Water Master Plan, including payment of the water connection impact fee.

Approved backflow devices shall be installed as required.

Domestic water services shall not be placed in driveways.

Prior to recordation of a Final Map, certification shall be obtained by the
Central California Irrigation District that the property has been detached
from CCID, or that remaining CCID lines will be intact or rerouted to the
satisfaction of CCID.

64. Where the invert is six feet or greater below finish grade, a minimum
clearance of five feet from lip of gutter to the edge of pipe shall be
provided for underground utility lines.

Lot layout shall be subject to the approval of Pacific Gas and Electric
(PG&E) prior to recordation of any final map.

65.

Water:

66.

67.

68.

69.

Sewer:

70. The developer shall construct all on-site and off-site sewer facilities
necessary to serve the project, subject to reimbursement for over-sizing,
as determined by the City.

71. Prior to submission of improvement plans for the first phase of
development, a Master Sewer Plan for the development shall be
submitted, reviewed, and approved by the City Engineer.

Storm Drainage:

72. Final Improvement Plans for the storm drainage system shall utilize the
TR-55 analysis method.

14



73. Prior to acceptance of Final Improvement Plans, the applicant shall submit
verification from the manufacturer that the pump station capacity is
adequate for full basin to shut-off operational conditions.

74. All development shall comply with the Phase II storm water regulations.

75. Final Improvement Plans for the storm drainage system shall be submitted
to the City and reviewed and approved by the City Engineer prior to
issuance of a grading permit.

76. The Developer shall generate a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP) for pre and post construction best management practices
(BMPs). A Notice of Intent (NOI) shall be submitted and approved prior to
construction by the State Department of Water Resources.

Public Safety:

77. Fire department requirements for the placement of fire hydrants shall be
complete prior to approval of development permits.

78. Fire hydrants shall be installed at locations approved dUring the
Improvement Plan stage and shall be installed based upon City standards.

79. The developer, as specified by City development standards, shall install
"Blue Dot" fire hydrant locators.

80. Each residence shall have a 6-inch lighted address numbers of
contrasting color installed on the front elevations or alternative size as
agreed to by developer and Fire Chief.

81. The developer shall comply with the City Fire Codes and regulations
subject to Fire Department approval in regards to building requirements,
fire hydrant placement, and sprinkler requirements.

82. Fire hydrants (or other methods approved by the Fire Chief) shall be in
place and functioning prior to approval of the first residential building
permit. Fire hydrants (or other methods approved by the Fire Chief) shall
be operational to the satisfaction of the Fire Chief prior to combustible
material being located on the site.

83. Street names shall be approved by the Fire Department.

84. Driveways, parking lots, water lines, fire hydrants, and underground
utilities shall be completed prior to issuance of building permits.

85. Upon completion and approval of the project plans, a CD shall be
submitted to the Fire Department providing information on street layout,

15



hydrant locations, water mains, storm drain inlets (i.e. Fire Department
pre-planning).

86. By separate instrument to be recorded, in accordance with the Stonecreek
Area Plan and the Stonecreek Area Plan EIR, prior to approval and the
recordation of a Final Map within the Dove Hollow Tentative Map
boundary the Developer shall reserve for dedication to the City a 1.4+/
acre Fire Station Site for the development of a fire station by the City. The
location (generally in the western quadrant of the Stonecreek Area Plan
within APN 430-010-035), the form, the terms and the conditions of the
reservation for dedication and the dedication of the Fire Station Site shall
be as approved by the City Council, in its sole and exclusive discretion,
upon recommendation of the Planning Commission and the Fire Chief.
The parties shall take all reasonable and necessary steps and actions to
satisfy this condition within a reasonable time after the approval of the
Vesting Tentative Map (VTTM 2017-01) and Development Agreement.

Landscaping:

87. All residential lots shall have fully landscaped front yards prior to
occupancy of each dwelling. Front yard landscape plans shall be
submitted with the development Master Plans prior to building permit
issuance and shall be approved by the City Engineer and Community and
Economic Development Director.

88. Draught tolerant planting may replace front yard turf as approved by the
Community and Economic Development Department and Public Works
Department.

89. The developer shall comply with the adopted street tree ordinance.

90. Masonry walls shall be landscaped with vines to discourage graffiti.

91. The applicant shall submit landscape and irrigation plans with each phase
of the improvement plans for City review and approval of streetscape
landscaping.

92. Landscape plans for single-family residences shall utilize drought tolerant
plantings for no less than 75 percent of front yards. Turf varieties shall be
chosen for drought tolerance. Irrigation systems shall be set to minimize
water use and spillage onto paved areas.

93. Landscape plans shall be designed in accordance with any adopted
revised Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance and revised landscape
standards including adoption of amendments to the existing and revised
Ordinance and/or standards, such revised standards shall apply to the
Project immediately upon adoption by the City Council. However, said
revised landscape standards shall not apply to new landscaping for any

16



residential lot where a building permit has been issued prior to the
adoption of the revised Ordinance and/or standards.

17



~CosBanos
At the Crossroads {~f CtfliJornia

A enda Staff Re ort

TO: Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Mason Hurley, Fire ChieflBuilding Official @
DATE: July 15,2020

SUBJECT: Ordinance AmendinglRemoving Amendment No. 504 Water Heater Prohibited
Locations and Amendment 507 Water Heater Protection from Damage of the
California Plumbing Code 2019 Edition set forth in section 8-1.18 of the Los
Banos Municipal Code

TYPE OF REPORT:

Recommendation:

Public Hearing

Staff recommends the City Council open the public hearing, receive public feedback then waive
the first reading and introduction of the: "Amendment / Removal of Ordinances of the City of
Los Banos, Amendment No. 504 Water Heater Prohibited Locations and Amendment 507
Water Heater Protection from Damage of the California Plumbing Code 2019 Edition set
forth in section 8-1.18 of the Los Banos Municipal Code."

Background:

The City of Los Banos Fire and Building Departments are dedicated to the safety and well being
of all the residents in the city. There is current city code amendment requiring residential water
heaters to be placed in an exterior enclosed closet and not placed inside attached garages. This
was amended many years ago due to the fact that gas fired water heaters are probably the most
dangerous appliance in a residential house. Years ago, there were multiple safety issues and
hazards associated with water heaters installed inside attached garages. It was decided that
removing water heaters from garages would eliminate a lot of the hazards caused by water heater
failures.



Discussion:

Recent advances and revisions in the current plumbing code and that water heaters are now being
manufactured with multiple safety factors included, as well as the popularity of safer tank less
water heaters, the City's Fire and Building Departments feel that it's time to revisit this code
amendment and eliminate the requirement to place these water heaters in an exterior closet. Staff
feels that the current plumbing code addresses all the safety concerns and installation
requirements, so providing any additional city amendments would not be necessary.

Fiscal Impact:

There is no anticipated fiscal impact as the costs would be recovered through existing building
permit fees.

Alex Terrazas, City Manager

Attachments:
Current Ordinance
Proposed Ordinance Amendment
Notice of Public Hearing



Current Ordinance

Sec. 8-1.18 Amendments to the California Plumbing Code 2019 Edition.

The following amendments, additions, and deletions are made to the California Plumbing
Code 2019 Edition, as adopted by this Chapter.

A. Amendment: Section 504 Water Heater Prohibited Locations.

Section 504.1 of the California Plumbing Code is hereby amended to add Section
504.1 (3) to read as follows:

(3) Prohibited Locations: No water heater which depends on the combustion of fuel for heat shall be
installed in any room designed to be used for sleeping purposes, or in any garage, bathroom, or clothes
closet, or in any closet or other confined space opening in any bath or bathroom.

B. Amendment: Section 507 Water Heater Protection From Damage.

Section 507.13 (1) of the California Plumbing Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

Section 507.13 (1) Protection from Damage:

(a) Water heaters generating a glow, spark, or flame capable of igniting flammable vapors may be
installed in a residential garage constructed on or before August 4, 1973, provided the pilots and burners,
or heating elements and switches, are at least eighteen (18") inches above the floor level.

(b) Where such water heaters installed within a garage are enclosed in a separate, approved
compartment having access only from outside of the garage, such water heaters may be installed at floor
level provided the required combustion air is also taken from the exterior of the garage. Fuel burning
water heaters having sealed combustion chambers need not be elevated.

(c) All water heaters installed in areas where they may be subjected to mechanical damage shall be
suitably guarded against such damage by being installed behind adequate barriers or by being elevated or
located out of the normal path of a vehicle using and such garage.

(§ 1, Ord. 1065, eff. February 1,2008, as amended by § 6, Ord. 1098, eff. August 20,2011, § 12,
Ord. 1116, eff. March 19,2014, and § 12, Ord. 1150, eff. December 16, 2016)



ORDINANCE NO. __

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOS
BANOS, REPEALING PREVIOUSLY ENACTED LOCAL
AMENDMENTS TO THE CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE 2019
EDITION

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Los Banos previously adopted the
California Plumbing Code, 2019 Edition (Part 5 of Title 24 of the California Code of
Regulations), including appendix, based on the 2018 Uniform Plumbing Code as
published by the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Health & Safety Code Sections 17958.7 and 18941.5,
cities and counties may modify the State building standards where reasonably
necessary because of local climatic, geological or topographical conditions; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Los Banos in accordance with
California Health & Safety Code Sections 17958.7 and 18941.5 adopted amendments
to the California Plumbing Code 2019 Edition related to "Water heater Prohibited
Locations and Water Heated Protection From Damage; and

WHEREAS, due to changes in the manufacturing of water heaters and with
proper installation the previous hazards no longer exist.

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Section 8-1.18 A and Section 8-1.18 B of the Los Banos Municipal
Code are hereby repealed in their entirety.

Section 2. To the extent that the terms and provisions of this Ordinance may be
inconsistent or in conflict with the terms or conditions of any prior City ordinance,
motion, resolution, rule or regulation governing the same subject, the terms of this
Ordinance shall prevail with respect to the subject matter thereof and such inconsistent
or conflicting provisions of prior ordinances, motions, resolutions, rules or regulations
are hereby repealed.

Section 3. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause
or phrase added by this Ordinance, or any part thereof, is for any reason held to be
unconstitutional or invalid or ineffective by any court of competent jurisdiction, such
decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions of this
Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council hereby declares that it would have
passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase
thereof irrespective of the fact that anyone or more subsections, subdivisions,



paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases are declared unconstitutional, invalid or
ineffective.

Section 4. The proposed amendments to the Los Banos Municipal Code do not
propose any changes to City policies or regulations that would result in a direct or
indirect physical environmental impact; therefore it has been determined that this
ordinance amendment is covered by the general rule that the California Environmental
Quality Act applies only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant
effect on the environment pursuant to CEQA guidelines section 15601 (b)(3) and is not
subject to environmental review.

Section 5. This Ordinance shall go into effect and be in full force and operation
thirty (30) days after its final passage and adoption. The City Clerk shall certify to the
adoption of this Ordinance and cause the same to be posted and published once within
fifteen days after passage and adoption as may be required by law; or, in the alternative
the City Clerk may cause to be published a summary of this Ordinance and a certified
copy of the text of this Ordinance shall be posted in the Office of the City Clerk five days
prior to the date of adoption of this Ordinance; and, within fifteen days after adoption,
the City Clerk shall cause to be published, the aforementioned summary and shall post
a certified copy of this Ordinance, together with the vote for and against the same, in the
Office of the City Clerk.

Introduced by Council Member and seconded by Council Member
_____ on the __ day of , 2020.

Passed on the __ day of --->, 2020 by the following vote:

AYES: Council Members
NOES:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Michael Villalta, Mayor

ATTEST:

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk



CITY OF LOS BANOS
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION OF THE REPEALING
LOCAL AMENDMENTS SECTION 8-1.18A AND SECTION 8-1.18B OF THE LOS

BANOS MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO "WATER HEATER PROHIBITED
LOCATIONS AND WATER HEATER PROTECTION FROM DAMAGE.

WHERE: City Council Chambers
520 J Street
Los Banos, California

WHEN: July 15, 2020
4:00 PM

Notice is hereby given that the City of Los Banos will conduct a Public Hearing to
receive public comment and consider repealing local amendments Section 8-1 .18 A and
Section 8-1.18 B of the Los Banos Municipal related to "Water heater Prohibited
Locations and Water Heated Protection from Damage.

The Public Hearing will be held at the regular meeting of the Los Banos City Council on
Wednesday, July 15, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. live via YouTube. The City has established a
temporary email address citizens can use to email comments on this agenda item. Any
public comments received by July 15, 2020 prior to 4:00 p.m. will be read aloud during
the appropriate time. The email address is cityclerk@losbanos.org The Council
Chambers will be closed to the public; those interested in viewing the City Council
Meeting live, can do so on the City of Los Banos' YouTube Channel at:
https://www.youtube.com Questions regarding this Public Hearing item may be directed
to Mason Hurley, Fire Chief, Fire Station #1,333 7th Street or at (209) 827-7025.

All interested persons will be given an opportunity to submit a comment on this item
prior to the Public Hearing. In addition, written comments may be submitted to the City
Council prior to the hearing, mailed to 333 i h Street, Los Banos, CA 93635, Attention:
Mason Hurley, Fire Chief. Please reference hearing title and date of hearing in any
correspondence. If no comments are received prior to or on the above date, it will be
assumed that no comments are being offered. Please note that if you challenge the
City's final decision on the above matter in court, you may be limited to raising only
those factual and legal issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing
described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City Council prior
to, the public hearing. In light of the foregoing, all interested members of the public are
encouraged to voice their concerns regarding all above matter either by email to the
City Clerk prior to 4:00 p.m. on July 15, 2020 or in writing through correspondence
addressed to the City Council and submitted to the City Council prior to the date of the
above hearing.

It is the intention of the City to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). If
you require special assistance beyond what is normally provided, the City will attempt to
accommodate you in every reasonable manner. Please contact the City Clerk's Office
at (209) 827-7000 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular
needs.



THE CITY OF LOS BANOS
MASON HURLEY
FIRE CHIEF



____cos Bano
Al the C,o\~toacls 0 alifollll11

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

Agenda Staff Report

Mayor & City Council Members l
Mark Fachin, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer I/;~
July 15, 2020

TYPE OF REPORT: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Underground Utility District 7-C along H Street

Recommendation:

That the City Council conduct a Public Hearing and, following consideration of public
comments, adopt the resolution to establish the Underground Utility District 7-C.

Background:

California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) has authorized electric and
telecommunication utilities to convert overhead utility lines and facilities to underground
pursuant to Electric Rule 20 and Telecommunication Rule 32. Under Rule 20A, which is
part of Electric Rule 20, the electric utilities annually allocate work credits to California's
communities to convert overhead electric facilities to underground. Communities
accumulate their annual allocations until they have enough credits to fund an
undergrounding project. Once the project is completed, the utility requests authorization
from CPUC to include the completed project in its rate base and recover the project costs
from its overall ratepayers.

Each year, the City of Los Banos is notified by the Pacific Gas and Electric Company
(PG&E) regarding the allocation of work credits.

Pursuant to certain criteria, CPUC rules allow participating cities and counties to establish
legislation authorizing the creation of underground utility districts within which existing
overhead electric distribution and telecommunication distribution and service facilities will
be converted to underground facilities by using the available work credits.
On June 2, 2004, the City Council of the City of Los Banos adopted Resolution No. 4765
to from an underground utility district along H Street, designated as District 7-C.



However, the undergrounding project was eventually cancelled due to associated costs,
and District 7-C expired accordingly.

Discussion:

PG&E notified the City on May 13, 2020 that, in compliance with a recent ruling by
CPUC, it will re-allocate unused work credits from inactive communities, including the
City of Los Banos, to an undergrounding project in the City of Live Oak. The City of Los
Banos is considered inactive since it has not started or completed construction of an
undergrounding conversion project within the last 8 years, defined as 2011 or later.
PG&E advised the City to formally establish an undergrounding district by August 11,
2020 to become active and avoid reallocation of any portion of the unused work credits.

District 7-C is proposed to be re-established with modified boundaries. The new
boundaries take into consideration the construction of the Community Center and the
Henry Miller Plaza, and start the undergrounding project just beyond the Henry Miller
Plaza where the previous undergrounding was terminated. The Resolution includes an
attachment which delineates the boundaries of District 7-C.

PG&E will use the available work credits to design and construct the undergrounding
project. This will include providing to each parcel a maximum of one hundred feet of
individual electric service trenching and conductor (as well as, backfill, paving, and
conduit, if required), and up to $1,500 per service entrance toward conversion of
electrical service panels to accept underground service (excluding permit fee).

Environmental Assessment:

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the City of Los Banos
Environmental Quality Guidelines, it has been determined that this project is found to be
categorically exempt from the provisions of CEQA pursuant to Section 15302(d) 
conversion of overhead electric utility distribution system facilities to underground.

Fiscal Impact:

Undergrounding project costs are charged against the allocated Rule 20A work credits.
The City will be responsible for the cost of new streetlights (foundation and pole, only)
and any easements, if required.

Re~:::::::::::::::::~==------__

Alex Terrazas, City Manager

Attachments:
Resolution
Public Hearing Notice
Summary Sheet of Work Credits



RESOLUTION NO. __

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF LOS BANOS ESTABLISHING UNDERGROUND

UTILITY DISTRICT 7-C IN THE CITY OF LOS BANOS

WHEREAS, the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) has authorized
electric and telecommunication utilities to convert overhead utility lines and facilities to
underground pursuant to Electric Rule 20 and Telecommunication Rule 32, and

WHEREAS, each year the City of Los Banos is notified by the Pacific Gas and
Electric Company (PG&E) regarding the allocation of work credits for conversion of
overhead electric distribution lines and facilities to underground, known as Rule 20A
allocations, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to certain criteria, CPUC rules allow participating cities and
counties to establish legislation authorizing the creation of underground utility districts
within which existing overhead electric distribution and telecommunication distribution
and service facilities will be converted to underground, and

WHEREAS, on June 2, 2004, the City Council of the City of Los Banos adopted
Resolution No. 4765 to from an underground utility district along H Street, designated as
District 7-C; however, the District expired once the undergrounding project was
subsequently cancelled due to associated costs, and

WHEREAS, the City of Los Banos now wishes to re-establish Underground Utility
District 7-C with modified boundaries, and

WHEREAS, the City of Los Banos City Municipal Code establishes procedures
for the creation of underground utility districts and requires, as the initial step in such
procedure, that a Public Hearing be held, and, pursuant to Section 7-3.02 of said Code,
a Public Hearing was held on July 15, 2020, at 4:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers at
the City Hall, to ascertain whether the public necessity, health, safety, or welfare
requires the removal of poles, overhead wires, and associated overhead structures and
the underground installation of wires and facilities for supplying electric, communication,
or similar or associated service within that certain area of the City described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the southerly right-of-way (ROW) line of H Street,
approximately 230 feet northwesterly from the westerly ROW line of 6th Street;

Thence, northwesterly along the southerly ROW line of H Street to the westerly
ROW line of 2nd Street, a distance of approximately 1,710 feet;

Thence, northeasterly along the westerly ROW line of 2nd Street to a point located
at the intersection of the westerly ROW line of 2nd Street and the extension of the
northerly boundary line of APN 025-054-006, a distance of approximately 185 feet;

Thence, southeasterly and along the northerly boundary line of APN 025-054-006,
to the easterly ROW line of 4th Street, a distance of approximately 1,040 feet;

1



Thence, northeasterly along the easterly ROW line of 4th Street to the northwesterly
corner of APN 025-072-036, a distance of approximately 170 feet;

Thence, southeasterly and along the northerly boundary line of APN 025-072-036, a
distance of approximately 650 feet;

Thence, southwesterly to the point of beginning, a distance of approximately 350
feet, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the
City of Los Banos Environmental Quality Guidelines, establishment of Underground
Utility District 7-C was determined to be categorically exempt from the provisions of
CEQA pursuant to Section 15302(d) for conversion of overhead electric utility
distribution system facilities to underground; and

WHEREAS, such public hearing was held duly and regularly, and all persons
interested were given an opportunity to be heard, and

WHEREAS, all easements or rights-of-way on private property can be obtained,
as required, by the City of Los Banos.

BASED UPON THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED AT THE PUBLIC HEARING, the
City Council of the City of Los Banos hereby makes the appropriate findings set forth in
Exhibit A (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Findings), attached hereto and
incorporated herein by this reference.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Los Banos
that, pursuant to Section 7-3 of Los Banos Municipal Code, the above-described area is
hereby declared an Underground Utility District and is designated as Underground
Utility District 7-C of the City of Los Banos. Attached hereto, marked Exhibit Band
hereby incorporated as a part of this Resolution, is a map delineating the boundaries of
said District;

RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the City Council does hereby fix June 1, 2025 as
the date on which affected property owners must be ready to receive underground
service, and does hereby order the removal of all poles, overhead wires and associated
overhead structures and the underground installation of wires and facilities for supplying
electric, communication or similar or associated services within the Underground Utility
District 7-C on or before June 1, 2025.

Each property owner in Underground Utility District 7-C shall be responsible for
the installation and maintenance of the conduit and termination box located on, under,
or within any structure on the premises served.

RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the City Clerk is hereby instructed to notify, in
accordance with Section 7-3.07 of Los Banos Municipal Code, all affected utilities and
all persons owning real property within Underground Utility District 7-C of the adoption
of this Resolution within ten (10) days after the date of such adoption. Such notification
by the City Clerk shall be made by mailing a copy of the resolution adopted pursuant to
the provisions of Section 7-3.03 of this chapter, together with a copy of the provisions of

2



this chapter, to affected property owners as they are shown on the last equalized
assessment roll and to the affected utilities.

RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the Council hereby finds that the Underground
Utility District 7-C is in the general public interest for the following reasons:

1. The streets, roads, and right-of-way within the District are extensively used by
the general public and carry a heavy volume of pedestrian or vehicular traffic,
and

2. The street or road or right-of-way is considered a minor arterial street as
defined in the Governor's Office of Planning and Research General Plan
Guidelines.

RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the electric utility which undertakes underground
installation of its facilities shall use the underground conversion allocation computed
pursuant to the decisions of CPUC, for the purpose of providing to each premises
requiring it in Underground Utility District 7-C a maximum of one hundred feet of
individual electric service trenching and conductor (as well as backfill, paving, and
conduit, if required), and shall use said underground conversion allocation for up to
$1,500 per service entrance toward conversion of electrical service panels to accept
underground service (excluding permit fee).

The foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the
City of los Banos, held on the day of July, 2020, by Council Member
___________, who moved its adoption, which motion was duly
seconded by Council Member and the Resolution was
approved by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT

APPROVED:

Michael Villalta, Mayor

ATTEST:

lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk

3



EXHIBIT A

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) FINDINGS FOR
UNDERGROUND UTILITY DISTRICT 7-C

Pursuant to the requirements of California Public Resources Code Section 21000 et
seq. ("CEQA") and Title 14, California Code of Regulations Section 15000 et seq. (the
"CEQA Guidelines"), the City as Lead Agency under CEQA adopts the following
findings required by CEQA, along with the facts and evidence upon which each finding
is based.

The City of Los Banos City Council hereby finds as follows:

1. Pursuant to CEQA, the CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Los Banos Environmental
Quality Guidelines, establishment of Underground utility District 7-C was evaluated
and determined to be categorically exempt pursuant to Section 15302(d) for
conversion of overhead electric utility distribution system facilities to underground.

2. The establishment of Underground Utility District 7-C was adequately noticed on,
July 3, 2020, for consideration at a public meeting on July 15, 2020.

3. No further environmental documentation is required as the establishment of the
underground utility district was contemplated and adequately analyzed in the initial
review.

4. Prior to considering the proposed Project, the City Council considered the
Categorical Exemption.

4





CITY OF LOS BANOS
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENT ON THE CONSIDERATION OF THE PROPOSAL THAT THE CITY
OF LOS BANOS ESTABLISH AN UNDERGROUND UTILITY DISTRICT ALONG H STREET, FROM

BETWEEN 5th & 6TH STREETS TO 2ND STREET, IN THE CITY OF LOS BANOS

Where: City Council Chambers
520 J Street
Los Banos, California

When: Wednesday, July 15, 2020
4:00 PM

Notice is hereby given that the City of Los Banos will conduct a Public Hearing to accept public testimony
regarding the proposal that the City of Los Banos consider a Categorical Exemption from the California
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15302(d) and establish an underground utility district
along H Street, from between 5th & 6th Streets to 2nd Street, for the purpose of relocating overhead
utilities to underground facilities.

The Public Hearing will be held at the regular meeting of the Los Banos City Council on Wednesday, July
15, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. live via YouTube. The City has established a temporary email address citizens can
use to email comments on this agenda item. Any public comments received by July 15, 2020 prior to
4:00 p.m. will be read aloud during the appropriate time. The email address is citvclerk@losbanos.org.
The Council Chambers will be closed to the public; those interested in viewing the City Council Meeting
live, can do so on the City of Los Banos' YouTube Channel at: https:/Iwww.youtube.com.

Copies of the staff report and supporting documents will be available for public review by contacting
Public Works at 411 Madison Avenue, Los Banos, California, beginning at 12:00 noon on the Friday
before the meeting and online at the City of Los Banos website, www.losbanos.org 5 days before the
hearing. All interested parties are invited to attend and express their opinions or provide written
comments before the hearing. If you challenge the proposed Project in court, you may be limited to
raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in
written correspondence delivered to the City Clerk at, or prior to, the public hearing. Please reference
hearing title and date of hearing in any correspondence.

Questions regarding the above-referenced item may be directed to Mark Fachin, P.E., Public Works
Director/City Engineer, 411 Madison Avenue, Los Banos, CA 93635 or at (209) 827-7056.

It is the intention of the City to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). If you require
special assistance beyond what is normally provided, the City will attempt to accommodate you in every
reasonable manner. Please contact the City Clerk's Office at (209) 827-7000 at least 48 hours prior to
the meeting to inform us of your particular needs.

THE CITY OF LOS BANOS
MARK FACHIN, P.E.
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER

Legal July 3,2020.



2020 Work Credit Allocation by Community

~~I1!Ill.u.nity

ALAMEDA COUNTY

ALBANY

ALPINE COUNTY

AMAP9R CITY
AMADOR COUNTY

AM~R1C.A~C;ANYON

ANDERSON

ANGELS CAMP.. ~ .. - -- ... - ....

ANTIOCH

ARCATA
ARROYO GRANDE

ARVIN

ATASCADERO

ATHERTON---_ .. _.-~---

AlWATER

"'Y.~.UBN
AVENAL
BAKERSFIELD..._._.. _- ._- .._- -

BELMONT

B~~V'EDERE

BENICIA

BERKELEY

BIGGS

~~J)E_b~I<.~

BRENlWOOD

BRISBANE-----_._-

BUELLTON

. ~V8k1~9.~M~.
BUTTE COUNTY

c;~lAY~~SC;OUNTY
CALISTOGA

G.AMPBf;LL
CAPITOLA

C.ARMEb
CHICO

GH()\lVG.HILLA
CLAYTON

CLEARLAKE
CLOVERDALE

CLOVIS

COALINGA

c;9bFA}(
COLMA

GQl.,l}§'"
COLUSA COUNTY

CONCORD

Total
Overhead

Meters
41)715

~,059

52
106

11,893
1,Q~3

2.1635
1,.H)9
8,804

§,~~1

3,988

?,J1~

8,890

?,12?
4,546
~p~O

1,845

~.~.,191

8,456
25Q

3,790
45,120

19
571

1,.551

1,~~1

448

n,18.~

33.1007

2~.5~2.

1,583
11,7~5

3).234
?..93.5

17,298
2,?~2

601
7,3.56
1,468
5.951
2,485

715
163

1.787
6,387

26,409

Underground
Meters

14..028

1,4~_8

611
62

2,069

~,~~9

3,101
1,07f)

31,316

.~,£O.§.

4•.591
~.132

5,045
633

5,287
4,1}5

984

1Q~,lM?

3,579
890

9,430

19,949.
2

105
21 ...688

1,1.?~

1,813
.qJ~

7,405

5,1J<1X
724

9.,~44

2,904
983

28,914

2.~~

3,771
1,316
2,422

40A?4
2,628

425
640

1.Q~2

910
25,463

Total
M~~~.rfS

55.,743

7,4JfJ
663

1f)!3
13...962

~,4.2...?

5,736

2.g~~

40,120

~.~J>
8,579

§,~.4.5

13,935

.2J§§
9,833

7.,~25

2,829

1~,9.~

12,035
1,140

13,220
56,069

21
676

23,239
?,§§1:
2,261

1§,t?Ei8.
40,412

2!M~~

2,307

?1,°19.
6,138

~,9W

46,212

5.1J~

4,372
8,67.2
3,890

46,375
5,113
1,140

803
?869
7,297

51,872

2020
Allocation

.(~~.f'II~te 1)
506,994

n,411
2,838
1,3~6

137,370

31,7?.3
40,257
16,746

212,381

?~,:n1

60,547

~4.6.~Q

115,686

?9,4~1

69,218

~6,~~3

23,775
~24,~~1

105,505

6,O~~

76,372
53?,679

215

E.l&1.!)
97)513

1~,7.J7

11 ..623

138,??~.

387,428

?78.,~.5

19,952

1.~2,f)~4

46,056

35,6.~6

296,073

~5,?71

20,568
85,101
25,008

21~,1?1

36,863

9,~i'~

4,156
2:3.507
73,026

:38.2,594



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 37,097 33,112 70,209 527,563

GQ~C()RAN ?,963 q312 4,77§ 39,()43

CORNING 2,242 1,276 3,S18 29,189

CORTE MADERA 3,1:31 1,84~ 4,980 41,()1;2

COTATI 892 2,969 3,861 20,760

GlJPE:~TINO 11,246 12,3~;3 ~3,63~ 1613,684

DALY CITY 19,408 14,743 34,151 266,416

OANVtLLE 4,037 1:3,776 1.7,813 9l),;216

DAVIS 6,440 23_,204 29,644 156,457

DEL REYOAKS 600 228 828 7,390
. ----- _.

DINUBA 3,779 3,B68 7,647 5S,_581

D!2.<QN 1,13~1 5,I~9 7,611 41,~77

DOS PALOS 1,31.7 784 2_,101 17,_274

DUBLIN ~,~~§ .21,~~§ ~9J~?J 12~,9~?

EAST PALO ALTO 5,255 2,71.7 7,972 67,398

_E;~CER~IT9 19,011 1,f!45 tl,872 11Q,1{J1

EL DORADO COUNTY 40,801 29,396 70,_197 554,.141

EMERYVILLE 1•.E>19 6,689 8,:308 42,g13

ESCALON 1,122 1,-558 2,680 18,024

EUREI<J\ 1.2,~23 1,3~ 14,2137 14~,.9131

FAIRFAX 3,136 577 3/13 36,.339

.EA!RFt~LD 9,118 ~~,4f34 4?,§8~ 22:3,'71313

FERNDALE 785 161 946 9,_158

FIREB}\LJGH 1,J33 1,4Q4 2,537 17,fJ72

FORT BRAGG 3,014 1,070 4,084 36,841

FORTUNA 3,764 2,094 5,858 48,825

FOSTER CITY 14,788 14,788 54,958

f9",,-,,"E;R 1,Q§7 1,~~ 2,440 1t),{it3S

FREMONT 24,290 61,957 86,247 495,115

fRE~NQ ?p,~jj 12~,:421 2Q§,?:32 1,313,074

FRESNO COUNTY 77,177 10,621 87,798 881,009

GI~RQY ~,()~2 14,6~ 1~,6136 109,:329

GLENN COUNTY 8,595 809 9,404 96,.726

GQNZALJ;:$ 981 1,38_8 ?t36~ 15,1355

GRASS VALLEY 3,565 4,495 8,060 55,578

GRE!=NFIELD 1.,0468 2,955 4,423 26,989

GROVER BEACH 4,855 1,718 6,573 59,_324

GUADALUPE 1,0~5 1,;213 .~,308 1~..¥13--- -~- _.' ---~_.-

GUSTINE 1,535 813 2,348 19,759

HALfMQONBAY ~,1?? g,131] 4,98~ 34,1g~

HAYWARD 31,716 25,917 57,633 442,149

H.EALDSE3URG 157 16 173 1,771

HERCULES 26 9,585 9,611 35,905

HILLSJ30ROUGH 1,T?8 2,3113 4,096 28,OQ?

HOLLISTER 3,263 10,119 13,382 73,186

tlUM~OL.QTCOUNTY 30,011 6,656 36,667 351,976

HURON 696 1,036 1,732 11,439

1_9N~. ~.(}O tt31 13 2,218 14,71?

ISLETON 397 146 543 4,871

JACKSON 1,4QO 1,602 3,002 21,219



KERMAN 1,341 3,629 4,970 28,109

!<~RN c:::OUNTY 65,434 24,~77 89,811 801,086

KING CITY 1,842 2,100 3,942 27,890

KING~ GOUNTY 9,~05 696 9,991 102,9~8

KINGSBURG 2,148 2,947 5,095 34,.374

LAFAYETTE 8,731 2,431 1.1,162 104,?~7
._. - --_ ..... '

LAKE COUNTY 24~920 2.632 27,552 281,509

L,AKEflQJU .2,2QO 1,004 .3,204 27,J?Q
LARKSPUR 2,947 4,066 7,013 47~245

LASSEN COUNTY ~07 73 980 10,1.f?1

LATHROP 1~021 5~464 6,485 31 J 439

LEMOORE 3,2~6 ?101 10,~47 61,784

LINCOLN 1,.574 19,050 20,624 87J 960

LIVE OAK ~,10!3 1.,9-43 ~,051 1~,.~Q3-- --~_ .._...-.-

LIVERMORE 10,839 25,877 36,716 214,358

MVI~~_TQN 1,j§7 L~137 ?,7~ 1!3,M~

LOOMIS 1,694 1,549 3,243 24,228

LOS ALTOS 9,938 2,909 1.2,847 11~,1]5.--. --_.. '.., ... --. ,-.

LOS ALTOS HILLS 2,142 1,089 3,231 27,404

~OS ~~NO~ 4,~~0 ~,774 14,~04 85,719

LOS GATOS 9,.164 5,954 15,118 122,.052

MADERA 1,702 1.?,~24 ?9,E>?6. 13?.9J:3- . - ----_ ......_....

MADERA COUNTY 35,933 4,645 40,578 409..076

MANT~~A 6,53? 23,5~ 3O,.D70 158,737

MARICOPA 517 1 518 5,641

MARIN COUNTY 21,734 8,783 3Q,517 2§9,~.28

MARINA 3,877 4,734 8,611 59,868

~AB.IPO~A gOUNTY 10,~:35 1,(}E)l.} 11,904 122,118

MARTINEZ 6.,615 101.198 16,813 110,030

.MARY~Y!I.,LJ: 4,~93 !J9~ ~,199 .5~,.?47

MCFARLAND 953 1,612 2,565 16..382

MENDOCINO COUNTY 27,~52 4,2~6 3~,248 320,754
...- .. - -- -. ..,- .-- - - . - _.

MENDOTA 1,280 1,856 3..136 20,855

MENLO PARK 1Q,~1 5,?3~ 1.5..920 135,~36
_._---_ .....

MERCED 11,494 15,577 27,071 183,221

MERc::Ep COUNTY 25,352 ~,11~ 31,470 299,175

MILL VALLEY 5,058 1,820 6,878 61,.916

M!l.,l.BRA..E 6,0?? 3,4Q? 9,429 78,36.2

MILPITAS 5,944 22,675 28,619 149,083

MONT!=~~RENO ~74 :304 1,278 11,.?50

MONTEREY 10,371 5,190 15,561 132,373

MONTEREY COUNTY 33,.~75 16,479 4~,854 425,163

MORAGA 2,711 3,761 6,472 43,538

MORGAN HILL 2,5.18 14,301 16,819 80,~04

MORRO BAY 5,956 805 6.,.161 67,936

MOUNTAIN VIEW 113,853 20,89~ 3~,752 283,24~_. - ...

NAPA 16,440 17,144 33,584 242,976

NAPA~QUNIY 1?,~QE> .~,2?:3 1E>,12!J 1~.?,?Q§

NEVADA CITY 1,463 828 2,291 19,.030

NEVADA COUNTY 30,400 3,068 33,468 342,883



NEWARK

NEWMAN

NOVATO

OAKDALE

OAKLAND

OAKLEY

ORANGE COVE

9BINp/\
ORLAND
OROVILLE

PACIFIC GROVE

J:>AGJFIGA
PARADISE
PARLIER_. --- "._._-

PASO ROBLES

P_~A~liMA

PIEDMONT

PINOLE.- --.-. .._ ..

PISMO BEACH

PITT~BlJRG

PLACER COUNTY

PLACERVILLE_.__...-- ..----- - -' ..

PLEASANT HILL

.PLEA~ANTON

PLUMAS COUNTY

PLYMOUTH

POINT ARENA

P9RT9~A VALLEY
RED BLUFF

REDWOOD CITY---------.-.....- _..

REEDLEY

RICHMOND

RIO DELL

RIO VISTA

RIPON

RIVERBANK.. ----_ .

ROCKLIN
ROHNERT PARK--- - --- -- .

ROSEVILLE

ROSS
SACRAMENTO COUNTY

SAlINA.S
SAN ANSELMO

SAN BENITO COUNTY

SAN BRUNO

SAN CARLOS.........- -- .-

SAN FRANCISCO

~AN JQAQLJIN
SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY

SAN JpSE

6,882
1,.230
9,330

3.,971
1391505

2.,164
1t484
6,126
2,104

~,117

7,307

11.,~10

1J31

1,~9!

4,210
8,§?}
3t057
3,647
2,606
~,054

30,.357
~,.471

7,513
3.,Q10
8,163

338
240

1,?09

31.872

~1.&7'J.

3,582

27.,7.58
1,331

1,977
1,463
.2,117
2,936
1,7Ei5

19
~70

1,775
21,681

5,359
6,514

12.,.338
11,?27

203,251
491

54,414
133,928

10,300
2,832

14,683
4,723

49,888
12,037
1,269

1,593.
1,516
3,?85
1,405
4,311
1,111
2,51?

10,791

18,~~?

976
4,301
3,271

20,948
13,260

.2,3.~3

8,551

2~,319

3,415
231
115

5113
3,776

13.,756
4,866

16,234
280

4,0.58
2,879
3,28~

25,368
16,446

2
111
203

26,427
683

3,031
4,359
:p06

204,354

EiQ1.
7,905

225,870

17,182
4,062

24,013
8,294

189,393
14,201

2,753
7,679
3,620
9,402
8,712

15,Q?1
2,842

3.,999
15,001
26,9_~

4,033

7.,9413
5,877

2f,,102
43,617
~,8§4

16,064

3?,2.20
11,578

569
355

1,727
7-'-.648

3~,42~

8,448

43.,9~2

1,611
5,635
4,342
5,3~

28,304
18,211

21
981

1,978
48,108

6,042
9,545

16,697

14,9.3.3
407,605

1,O~2

62,319
359,798

113,320

~3,~37

156,302
56,491

1,706,565
61:P31
20,898
72,§_()9
28,576

78,~Q8

84,897
1313,255

23,004
24,~()8

86,009
1Ei2,IQ6
36,961

5~,7'?1

40,572
t29,615
380,.292

4fP.Q4
113,701
147,846
101,701

4,~

3,044
15,1.Q13
561.253

2~7.434

57}142
363.,005

15,554
32,277
26,652
35,781

126,292

80,3.Ei5
215

9,~~!:l

20,109
334,6?3

60.,_973
82,293

150,733

136,1~.?

2,975,709

7,5.~?

622,708
2,299,772



SAN JUAN BAUTISTA 598 421 1,019 8,085

SANL~NDR,Q 24,.912 11,153 ~6.0E)5 313,08~

SAN LUIS OBISPO 12,636 11,226 23,862 179,503

SAN LUI§ OB!SPO COlJNTY 49,177 20,4~3 60,660 514,213

SAN MATEO 29.,783 14,758 44,541 379,600

§AN MATi::0 COUNTY ?1,~~ 3,29? ~4,?80 247,630

SAN PABLO 7,294 3,404 10,698 92,184

$ANRAFAEL 17,?Q8 1.9,813 28.,021 227,8.~1

SAN RAMON 1,662 30,170 31,832 130,246

SAND CITY 352 110 462 <1,?47

SANGER 3,.666 5,056 8,722 58,764

SANTA B.ARI3A&\<:;Q\JNTY 16,748 11,127 27:,875 2.23,~72

SANTA CLARA COUNTY 22,751 4,391 27,142 264,395

SANTACRUZ 1E),7:31 7,38~ _~4,11? 2Q9,.8~4
...._- - - ._- ,. --- - _ ..

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 45,431 12,158 57,589 540,563

§A~NT~~RI.~ 1?-,~~~ 1~,~?? :g:3'7§ 21~,!9!J

SANTA ROSA 28,069 47,900 75,969 484,080

SARATOGA 7,100 4,830 11,93Q 99,:3~~

SAUSALITO 3,433 1,809 5,242 44...156

$CQTI$ VAkLEY ~,O154 3,2:3~ ~,?99 34,423

SEASIDE 7,224 4,316 11,540 94,810

SI;E3A~T()POb ?,?!?~ ?,16E) 4,41? 3?,~.Q~

SELMA 3,.675 4,682 8,357 57..472

SHAFTER ~,1()4 3,148 6.?52 45,§45

SHASTA COUNTY 27,828 5,856 33,684 325,200

SHASTA LAKE 48 48 523

SIERRA COUNTY 1,103 99 1,202 12,395

$ISKIYQIJ gO.lJf\JTY 33 32 65 479

SOLANO COUNTY 10,355 831 11,186 115,999

$9L.E:PAj;> 1..~31 3,362 4,69~ ??,QO~

SOLVANG 1,212 1,911 3,123 20,318

$9NqJ'.1~ 2,~1 3,8.81 E),422 42,130

SONOMA COUNTY 60,768 14,307 75,075 715,.784

SONORA 2..4.:3.2 956 ~,388 3(),Q71

SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO 15,282 10,.264 25,546 204,780

$THEL.t=I'-J/\ ?,()7? 1,43() :3,502 27,908

STANISLAUS COUNTY 7,427 1,467 8,894 86,436

$TQQ!STQN ~~,()7.3 7?!78.~ 11~,4§8 703-,Q~2.

SUISUN CITY 758 9,374 10,132 43,103

$lJNNyYALE 2~M!8 ~,496 (:):3.1'74 44JI,Q~~

SUTIER COUNTY 12,172 1,161 13,333 137,038

SUTIERCREEK 1,113 650 1,763 14,.552

TAFT 2,274 1,029 3,303 28,620

T.t=HAMA 20~ 21 23Q 2,357

TEHAMA COUNTY 20,763 1,607 22,370 232,372

TIBURON 1,731 2,867 4,598 29.530

TRACY 6,395 24,607 31,002 161,180

TRI~IP,6,P 120 161 281 1,~07

TRINITY COUNTY 1,789 23 1,812 19,593

TyLARE GOUNTY 14,6()6 2,011 1~,617 166,737



TUOLUMNE COUNTY 26,913 5_,066 311-979 312,_286

~N!QtiCrrY ~,f32 ~0,ZI8 ?4,Q1.Q 11~,4_61

VACAVILLE 6}251 32,_885 39,_136 190,375
VALLEJO 2~,9~J! 25,?1Q 4!!,~H ~~,!:i7~..._-------
WALNUT CREEK 11,-575 25,-986 37,561 222.t788
WASCO _~,~~1 ~,~9~_ I,113_l?_ _~Q!067.. _._--------

WATSONVILLE 71-624 8,-123 15}747 113,-320

W~m- ~,l\-9&\I\1~NTQ ~,?38. ~,497 ??23?- H~._~~

WHEATLAND 659 898 11-557 10}523
WILLIAMS 918 1J1Q13 ?,024 H,1.~Q-- ._- ----"-_._-

WILLITS 1J43 11-084 21-827 23.t034
WILLOWS ~,Q11 1&~ ~,9ZI3 f§,8~13
-_._--------~

WINDSOR 1}021 81-859 9,880 44,057
WINTERS 1,Q;!§ 1.,62~ l&§~ 1Z.t3~1_
._--~._--

WOODLAND 8}J29 15,860 23}989 147}581
WOODSIDE 1,9'L1 423 ~,334 ~fA10
---~-

YOLO COUNTY 9,845 31522 13,-367 120,_439
YOUNTVILLE 400 779 1,179 7,257
YUBA CITY 9,-438 18,083 27}S21 170,-115
YUBA COUNTY 16,167 9,517 25,684 211,654

Note: Per Rule 20 Tariff, "PG&E's total annual amount of work credits for undergrounding, as authorized by the
Califomia Public Utilities Commission, shall be allocated to cities or the unincorporated area of any county as follows:

a) Fifty percent of the total authorized amount shall be allocated in the same ratio that the number of overhead
meters in any city or unincorporated area of any county bears to the total system overhead meters; and

b) Fifty percent of the total authorized amount shall be allocated in the same ratio that the total number of
meters in any city or unincorporated area of any county bears to the total system meters."

Work Credit Statement for City of Los Banos

Work Credit Balance as of 6/30/2019

2020 Work Credit Allocation

Total Work Credit Transfer

Total Completed/Cancelled Project
Deductions

Work Credit Balance as of 5/31/2020

1.331,705

85,719

o

o

1,417.424



TO:

FROM:

DATE:

LOS Banos
At Ir f( I

Agenda Staff Report

Mayor VillaIta and City Council Members

Stacy Souza Elms, Community and Economic Development Director~
July 15, 2020

TYPE OF REPORT: Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Certified Farmers Market

Recommendation:

That the City Council authorize the City support of the Los Banos Downtown Association
and T&C Farmers Market in the development of a certified farmers market at the Henry
Miller Plaza and amending the 2020-2021 budget by increasing the appropriations limit
for expenditures.

Discussion:

A number of residents have expressed a need and desire for a weekly certified farmer's
market in the City of Los Banos. Farmers markets are important spaces of connection
and promote the sense of place that is important for individuals to feel anchored in their
community. The access to fresh local produce is becoming more desirable to many
consumers because of the ability to meet the farmer who grew their food. When food is
produced, processed, distributed and sold all within the same region, more money stays
in the local economy. This leads to economic development and job creation. Farmers
markets provide opportunities for small farmers and businesses to sell their products, and
they help meet the growing demand for locally produced food. Being able to quickly and
directly market to the consumer gives farmers important income opportunities without the
added costs of shipping, storage and inventory control.



City staff has been working with the Los Banos Downtown Association in re-establishing
a farmers market for the community. A certified farmers' market is regulated by State and
local law. A certified farmers market is a location approved by the Merced County
Agricultural Commission where agricultural products are sold by producers or certified
producers directly to consumers or to individuals, organizations, or entities that
subsequently sell or distribute the products directly to end users. A certified farmers
market can only be operated by one or more certified producers, by a nonprofit
organization, or by a local government agency.

The Los Banos Downtown Association has been working with T&C Farmers Market who
is a certified farmers market operator currently operating the market in Gilroy. T&C
Farmers Market will be working with various farmers to bring fresh locally grown produce
to the community. The Los Banos Downtown Association will be coordinating a special
event concurrent with the certified farmers market, which will consist of local crafts, baked
goods, and entertainment to draw citizens to the farmers market.

The certified farmers market is proposing to operate weekly on Saturday mornings from
8:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. at the Henry Miller Plaza, starting in the first or second week of
August thru October 2020.

Staff recommends supporting the Los Banos Downtown Association in establishing a
certified farmers' market. The City's contribution would consist of providing the venue
and restroom facilities for the event. The long term goal for the market is to eventually
become self sustaining, which would not require support from the City. Most markets rely
on support by the municipality to establish the market and grow large enough to attract a
critical mass of vendors and customers to become self-sufficient. The Downtown
Association will curate, organize, and manage the special event, and the City will cover
costs associated with the venue until the market is stable, sustainable, and making a profit
at the discretion of the City Manager.

The potential economic impacts of a farmers' market include direct benefits such as
profits for local farmers/producers and job creation. The indirect benefits include
stimulating downtown, enhancing the Henry Miller Plaza as a place, and creating a
community centerpiece where citizens can engage and socialize with one another.

Fiscal Impact:

The General Fund - Fund Balance was assigned $750,000 for economic development
projects. To date, the remaining Fund Balance is approximately $112,700. The
requested expenditures are an element of the assigned funds and will not affect the
unrestricted Fund Balance.

The fiscal impact of the certified farmers' market will effect appropriations for Fiscal Year
2020-2021 by increasing account number 100-419-100-269 (Economic Development
Projects) in the amount of $900 for the Fiscal Year. The funds would be used for the cost
of a portable restroom lease at the Henry Miller Plaza for three (3) months.



Reviewed by:

fi{2~
lex Terrazas, City Manager

Attachments:

Resolution



RESOLUTION NO. __

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF LOS BANOS AUTHORIZING THE CITY
SUPPORT OF THE LOS BANOS DOWNTOWN
ASSOCIATION IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF A
CERTIFIED FARMERS' MARKET AND
AMENDING THE 2020·2021 BUDGET BY
INCREASING THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES IN THE
AMOUNT OF $900

WHEREAS, Los Banos residents have expressed a need and desire for a weekly
certified farmers' market in the City of Los Banos; and

WHEREAS, farmers' markets lead to economic development and job creation by
providing opportunities for small farmers and businesses to sell their products, and they
help meet the growing demand for locally produced food; and

WHEREAS, the economic benefits of a farmers' market include stimulating the
economy and creating a community centerpiece where citizens can engage and socialize
with one another; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Los Banos may adjust the overall
appropriation levels in each fund at any time during the Fiscal Year by action to amend
the budget; and

WHEREAS, the proposed budget increase is $900 in expenditures for the
Community and Economic Development Department, Economic Development Projects
(100-419-100-269); and

WHEREAS, the funds are available in the Assigned General Fund Balance and
has been authorized by the City Council;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Los
Banos as follows:

1. Authorizes support of the Los Banos Downtown Association in the
development of a certified farmers' market and will cover the costs associated with the
venue until the market is stable, sustainable, and making a profit at the discretion of the
City Manager.

2. That the City Council of the City of Los Banos hereby amends the 2020-
2021 Fiscal Year Budget to include an increase of $900 in expenditures to the Community

1



and Economic Development Department, Economic Development Projects Account (100
419-100-269), utilizing the assigned fund balance.

The foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council
of the City of Los Banos held on the 15th day of July 2020, by Council Member _
who moved its adoption, which motion was duly seconded by Council Member---
and the Resolution adopted by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Michael VillaIta, Mayor

ATTEST:

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk

2



[
-', City Of, B,osa

Agenda StaffRe~

os

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

Mayor and City Council Members

Mark Fachin, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer

Ju'V 15,2020

TYPE OF REPORT: Non Consent Agenda

SUBJECT: SR·152 safety Task Force Interim and Midterm Safety/Congestion
Related Improvements

Recommendation:
That the City Council adopts the Resolution approving the SR-152 Interim and Midterm
Safety Enhancing/Congestion Relieving Improvements as developed by the SR-152
Safety Task Force Wor1< Group.

Background:
In an effort to make SR-152 through the City of Los Banos, a more efficient and safe
roadway, the los Banos SR-152 Safety Task Force was established. This group began
meeting monthly in December 2019, and includes members of the following agencies:
state of California (Caltrans), City of Los Banos (staff and elected officials), Merced
County Association of Governments (MCAG), County of Meroed staff, California
Highway Patrol, Los Banos Unified School District, and other focal entities.

Through these meetings, as well as Caltrans and the City of Los Banos technical staff
work group meetings, a listing of interim and midterm safety enhancing/congestion
relieving improvements have been proposed to be implemented. This listing is included
in the attached power point exhibit.

A previous study entitled Los Banos State Route 152 Comprehensive Operational Study,
June 2015, was prepared by Caltrans for this corridor. Some of the study's
recommendations included signal timing and optimization, signal upgrades, IntelUgent
Transportation System, raised medians at seven intersections, intersection widening,
driveway closures, striping modifications, and the installation of 48 ADA compliant curb
ramps.



The City Council adopted Resolution No. 5690 which approved this study with the
following exceptions:

1. The installation of the raised medians as outlined in the draft study is not
approved by the City Council

2. All intersection widening improvements to accommodate U-turns are not
approved by the City Council

3. The installation of a cul-de-sac on 9th Street at ttle intersection of State Route
152 and 9th Street is not approved by the City Council

4. The closing of existing driveways onto State Route 152 is not approved by the
City Counal

The June 2015 State Route 152 Comprehensive Operational Study and the
accompanying staff report is included as an attachment to this staff report.

Discussion:
The following is the listing of SR-152 interim and midterm improvements that have been
approved by the SR-152 Safety Task Force Work Group:

A. SR-1521Badger Flat Road
1. Reinforce eXisting right in/right out access to shopping center by extending

raised median island 250-300 feet.

B. SR-152Mfest I Street
1. Install signal ahead signage on West ( Street.
2. Add two supplemental signal signs to existing mast arms
3. Remove existing southbound West I Street sign with a left, thru, and right turn

sign
4. Remove crosswalk on west leg on SR-152
5. Change configuration of northbound West I Street to dedicated left turn lane

with shared lhrufright turn lane
6. Upgrade signal heads and timing

C. SR-152/4th Street
1. Consider removing 4th Street parking up to 200 feet from the intersection
2. Driveways located within 150 feet from the intersection along SR-152 should

be converted to a right in/right out with raised median installed in front of each
driveway

D. SR-16216th Street
1. Extend westbound left turn storage on SR-152
2. Consider removing 6th Street parking up to 200 feet from the intersection
3. Driveway located within 150 feet from the intersection along SR-152 should be

converted to right inlright out with raised median in front of each driveway



E. SR-15217lh Street
1. Along SR-152, relocate the first park driveway 200 feet away from the

intersection
2. Prohibit parking on 7th Street up to 200 feet from intersection

F. SR-152/SR-165
1. Refresh intersection striping

G. SR-152NVard Road
1. Reinforce existing right in/right out access by installing raised median

approximately 1000 feet from Rancho Drive to Ward Road

On June 30, 2020, the TraffIC Safety Committee approved these interim and midterm
SR-152 improvements.

Staff is making a recommendation that the City Council of the City of Los Banos adopt
the resolution approving the above listed SR-152 interim and midterm safety
enhancing/congestion relieving improvements as developed by the SR-152 Safety Task
Force Work Group.

Two additional SR-152 improvements that have been planned are:

1. SR-152 traffic signal synchronization. There is a recommendation, as shown in
the attached table, by the MCAG Staff for the MCAG Governing Board to approve
a $900.000 grant application by the City of Los Banos for CMAQ funding. This
funding, if approved by the MCAG Governing Board, would be for $100,000 for
design during Federal fiscal year 202012021, and $800,000 for construction during
Federal fIScal year 202112022. This project would provide signal synchronization
along SR-152 in the City of Los Banos to provide the most efficient movement of
traffic.

When and if the CMAQ grant for the signal synchronization gets Board approval,
staff wifl be bringing forward the grant agreement for the City Council's review and
approval.

2. SR-152/11 th Street traffic signal construction is tentatively scheduled for the
summer of 2021. This construction, as shown in the attached exhibit, would
construct a 4-IeggOO traffic signal at the SR-152/11 th Street intersection.

Fiscal Impact
Except for the minor 'No Parking' signage and striping along city streets, these interim
and midterm recommended improvements are scheduled to be funded and instaUed by
Caltrans.



Attachments:
Resolution
Power Point of Safety Enhancing/Congestion Relieving Improvements as developed by the

SR-152 Safety Task Force Work Group
CMAQ Committee Recommendation Form
SR-152/11 th Street Intersection Improvemen1 Sheets 1 & 2
Los Banos State Route 152 Comprehensive Operational StudyI June 2015 (including staff report

and executed Resolution 5690)



RESOLUTION NO. __

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF LOS BANOS APPROVING THE SR·152
INTERIM AND MIDTERM SAFETY
ENHANCING/CONGESTION RELIEVING
IMPROVEMENTS AS DEVELOPED BY THE SR·
152 SAFETY TASK FORCE WORK GROUP

WHEREAS, the City of Los Banos City Council has reviewed the Summary- Los
Banos SR-152 Safety Task Force Work Group's recommended safety
enhancing/congestion relieving improvements as developed by said work group; and

WHEREAS, the City of Los Banos staff requests the City Council to approve the
recommended safety enhancing/congestion relieving improvements as developed by
said work group; and

WHEREAS, the recommended improvements are:

A. SR-152/Badger Flat Road
1. Reinforce existing right in/right out access to shopping center by

extending raised median island 250-300 feet.

B. SR-152/West I Street
1. Install signal ahead signage on West I Street.
2. Add two supplemental signal signs to existing mast arms
3. Remove existing southbound West I Street sign with a left, thru, and

right turn sign
4. Remove crosswalk on west leg on SR-152
5. Change configuration of northbound West I Street to dedicated left

turn lane with shared thru/right turn lane
6. Upgrade signal heads and timing

C. SR-152/4th Street
1. Consider removing 4th Street parking up to 200 feet from the

intersection
2. Driveways located within 150 feet from the intersection along SR-152

should be converted to a right in/right out with raised median installed
in front of each driveway

D. SR-152/6th Street
1. Extend westbound left turn storage on SR-152
2. Consider removing 6th Street parking up to 200 feet from the

intersection
3. Driveway located within 150 feet from the intersection along SR-152

should be converted to right in/right out with raised median in front of
each driveway



E. SR-15217th Street
1. Along SR-152, relocate the first park driveway 200 feet away from the

intersection
2. Prohibit parking on i h Street up to 200 feet from intersection

F. SR-152/SR-165
1. Refresh intersection striping

G. SR-152/Ward Road
1. Reinforce existing right in/right out access by installing raised median

approximately 1000 feet from Rancho Drive to Ward Road

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Los
Banos does hereby approve the SR-152 Interim and Midterm Safety
Enhancing/Congestion Relieving Improvements as developed by the SR-152 Safety
Task Force Work Group.

The foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council
of the City of Los Banos held on the 15th day of July 2020, by Council Member _
who moved its adoption, which motion was duly seconded by Council Member _
and the Resolution adopted by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Michael Villalta, Mayor

ATTEST:

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk



Summary . Los Banos SR·152 Safety Task Force Work Group Meeting 2/7/20

-=~=====-""1i.W;;.~a1::~~:1ttYJb::.Jo·_lII::II·__-.'''''-.*'''----'--------'

.\

S ..n.Lu··~$_r··"

.....
•;.
:E.=.:
0:
"!;'-

.Essi"Sf

1
-"'-===7~'7=:==-~:i;E-?RCb:.-cv:1I'Yd;:=--~-:I'I·"''''1152~··"

.~~.

c;-
b' >,.',c:o

f"\i ~ .'t

:-.~

.: l~!!S ~~n~~;!:~~:""
~ ,w

~~~~~ ~' ~:. ..:

_ '...WC";·.·St-

~<
'~<8;

-. 'j
'._ ~,ri;:t8t - ~ .

~

""o........
0
u

Los Banos
un,c;pai
Airport

"',: .. ,'.; ~ -:. '-~

""'. -\::::..:.,.,. -..-... '" ':.

'.01'\ A"

.,~." • l •

"":,-:)1'" '''"i)-; Rail Troll Perf<.

<-
51

O:",era "'aflc
Q

;;:
<'--:

.L'C~ '~:.: ,~~~
C'~'i.~.,~:,:!,

Ce'''M':':~~!l

,.~~;;;
E



SR - 152 / Badger Flat Road

Midterm Solution:
Reinforce existing right in/out access to
shopping center by extending raised
median island 250- 300 ft



SR -152 / West I Street

Interim Solutions:
~ Install signal ahead (W3-3) ground/bridge
W mounted signage on W. I Street FNBT and

FSBT.

Add two supplemental signal signs to
existing mast arms, left Turn yield on
'green ball' (R 10-12).

~ t ('t Remove the existing (R61-7) FSBT on W. 1St
1!!':"':Ei ~ONLY~ and replace with a Left, Thru and Right

turn designated lane assignment panel
(R3-8b).

Midterm Solutions:
- Remove crosswalk on west leg

r;;J;1 - Change configuration of NB leg to
~ dedicated left-turn lane with shared

-- . -- thru/right turn lane
• Check turning radius
• Upgrade signal heads/timing



SR - 152 / 4th Street

Midterm Solutions:

Consider removing 4th Street parking
up to 200 ft from the intersection

Driveways located within 150 ft from
the intersection should be
converted to right in/out with raised
median and one-way (R6-1)
installed in front of each driveway



SR - 152 / 6th Street

Midterm Solutions:

- Extend Westbound left
turn storage on SR-152

- Consider removing 6th

Street parking up to 200 ft
from the intersection

Driveways located within
150 ft from the intersection
should be converted to
right in/out with raised
median and one-way (R6
1) installed in front of each
driveway [ONE WAY:]



Midterm Solutions:

- Relocate Close off the first
parking driveway 200 ft away
nAor from the intersection

- Prohibit parking on 7th Street
up to 200 ft from intersection

SR - 152 / West 7th Street



co.-- :::)(5C
I)

EIe
.

CI>

- '0~

Q
)

c'Q
.

'c......V
)

co~uQ
)

V
)
~Q

)
......c,-..cV

)

Q
)
~

- Q
)

0::::



SR -152 / Ward Rd

Midterm Solution:

- Reinforce existing right in/out access by installing raised median approximately
1000 ft from Rancho Drive to Ward Rd in the westbound direction



CMAQ Committee meeting· June 17, 2020 at 10 am Committee Recommendation

Scoring Tally & Funding Recommendation Form
CMAQ Requested

3 IN TOTAL Score Rank FFY 20/21 FFY 21/22-_._.-

Atwater Pedestrian Improvements 1 $ 1,124,530 $ 128,984 $ 90,504 $ 905,042 $ 995,546 153 5 $ 995,546
Atwater Pedestrian Improvements 2 $ 1,992,210 $ 228,506 $ 160,337 $ 1,603,367 $ 1,763,704 139 6 $ 160,337
Atwater Pedestrian Improvements 3 $ 1,451,010 $ 166,431 $ 116,780 $ 1,167,799 $ 1,284,579 123 7 $ 116,780
Gustine East Ave Sidewalk Infill $ 855,284 $ 98,102 $ 87,367 $ 669,815 $ 757,182 118 9 $ 87,367
Gustine North Avenue Sidewalk Infill $ 395,010 $ 45,308 $ 51,807 $ 297,895 $ 349,702 120 8 $ 349,702
Livingston Max Foster Multiuse Path - Phase 1 $ 580,683 $ 66,605 $ 59,315 $ 454,763 $ 514,078 155 4 $ 514,078
Los Banos SR-152 Signal Synchronziation $ 900,000 $ - $ 100,000 $ 800,000 $ 900,000 247 1 $ 100,000 $ 800,000
Merced North Transit Hub $ 764,186 $ 87,652 $ 66,397 $ 610,137 $ 676,534 159 3 $ 676,534
Merced Nottingham Lane Sidewalk Project $ 584,812 $ 67,079 $ 46,920 $ 470,813 $ 517,733 117 10 $ 517,733
County Plainsburg ATP Improvements $ 2,375,000 $ 64,780 $ - $ 500,000 $ 500,000 164 2 $ 500,000

Subtotal $ 4,018,077 $ 800,000
CMAQ Funding capacity $ 4,027,000 $ 1,210,000

Remaining Balancel $ 8,923 1$ 410,000 I



.......
SCALE: 1" = 30'

50' Cas Station Driveway. Video and Loop
Detection w1th Modified Loops for Gas
Station Movements,see Detal t "A" below.

Stonclard LOOp Detectors for other legs
of Intersection.

2~' 6' Cit~. R/W

•,'"

6' City RIW

;i
.t::......

~~~~d~lt~:t T~~~~i~OS19~o~

/
' ..' .

,,I' ,/I •

/ . /"
. /~.

k.------------. ...... '.'

LEGEND

c::::J
c::::J
CZJ

EXiSTING CITY OR CAL TRANS R/W

RIGHT 0, WAY ACQUiSITION

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

0 .. ' 5' COLD PLANE AC Pvmt
Q.1S· HMA (TYPE A)

IZZ2l
r=:::J

FULL DEPTH HMA
O.SO· HMA (TYPE A)

DETECTABLE WARNING SUR,ACE

10-1J300_ Mer-152-21.0
SR 152 AND 11th 5t

INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS
IN LOS BANOS (MERCED COUNTY)

PROJECT OVERVIEW EXHIBIT
04129/2020 SHEET 1 OF 2



.......
SCALE: 1" = 30'

~
VIDEO DETECTION
BEHIND RIW LINE

r 6"

TO EXISTING PULLBOX

•

DETAIL "A" - GAS STATION DETECTION

__'_'__ --..o-- .....~---

6' City RIW

---------------=--~

"'----...-----.-~~- t;
~
a:
.;; ..
r..
.'5"
u
;"...

..
to

oil:......

4~~(~1PI
(~~' ""

"". I.~\.

<.; '~~. /PPB{~2'l,l
l 1\",.

, .,../
"\.. "./;.

1-~ ·.tT·f~
\ ,'"f_J

-' '~ '.,,/'
.....~~J
I' • .p"~

'7'

WESTBOUND -<=

ROUTE 152

EASTBOUND =C>

LEGEND

c::J
c::J
c:=J

EXISTING CITY OR CALTRANS RIW

RIGHT OF WAY ACOUISITION

TEMPORARY CONSTRlJCTlON EASEMENT

DETECTABLE WARNINC SURfACE

~

Q
CONTROLLER CABINET

r~W~1~AW~A'~ LOOP DETECTOR

10-1J300_ Mer-152-21.0
SR 152 AND 11th St

INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS
IN LOS BANOS (MERCED COUNTY)

ELECTRICAL PLAN EXHIBIT
0412912020 SHEET 2 OF 2



I
Los Banos State Route 152

Comprehensive Operational Study
June 2015

Revised April 2016

~

o
~~.""""'1IIlIII



Table of Contents

1. Introduction~ .. t It _,, ., ••••••••• " , 1

2. Existing Corridor Conditions 2

Route Features and Classification, 2

Deficiencies and Needs on SR·152 within the City of los Banos 2

3. Planned Corridor Improvements , "" 5

land Use , , , ", "......•."•. " 5

Transport,ation I" ••• , ~ ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• I' ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• , ••••••• 1 1 •••7

Planned and Programmed Projects 9

4. Multimodal Access Issues 11

Overview. ",. 11 .. 1 I , Itl 11

Access Strategy 11

Network Mobility/Connectivity 12



I
_.'

S. Street Design and Caltrans' Standards 14

6. Corridor Operations and Management 15

Overview '., .. ~ " _ , 15

Proposed Improvements 16

7. Needs Assessment and Implementation 28

Overview , ~ .•... Oo II II , •••••••••• II '11I4 , I , II 28

Critical Needs , 28

Funding I •••• "" ••• , "'" II , '" ••• , '" 29

Prioritization and Implementation 31

8. Appendix: City of Los Banos ,.•..,........•'!' , •••••••••.••33

Staff Report " 34

City Council Resolution Number 5690 36



1. Introduction

Implementation of the State Route (SR) 152 bypass of the City of Los
Banos, delayed due to shortfalls in funding, requires an effort to

address conditions on the existing alignment that continues through
the City. Past commercial and residential development along the
corridor hamper expansIon of the faclltty to address current traffic

volumes, while new development traffic and access points create
additIonal conflict points and longer signal queues. Additional

challenges arise in the geometries of intersections with some local
streets not laid out in grid pattern, resulting in askew intersections.

The route, while not technically a "Main Street'l highway, passes
through the City linking new housing development, large commercial
enterprises, schools, and small business roughly parallel with the older
downtown area. It also carries regional/lnterreglonal commercial,
agricultural, and recreational traffic through to, and from, the central
coast and southern San Francisco Bay area to SR 99 and beyond.

Tile study will seek to identify feasible operational treatments that will
meet the needs of the people In Los Banos for a traversable multimodal
facility and the near term needs of the interregional traveler for a route
that is efficient without a degradation in safety. caltrans is committed
to supporttng and encouraging multimodal and "active" transportation
(human-powered), a healthy alternative to traveling in a vehicle by

accommodating and enhancing connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists.
Through hti:elllgent Transportation Systems (ITS) and operational
improvement strategies, we can better operate and manage the
current transportation system, restore lost capacity by improving
throughput, reduce congestion and delay, and Improve travel-time

)

1

reliability In a costeffeetlve manner. The planning, hardware
acquisition, and maintenance for multimodalintegratlon of technology.
data communication Inter-operability. real-time data monitoring. and
timely, accurate user Information are included. The recommended
strategies are Intended to:

1. Increase safetY - preventing or reducing accidents and
improving emergency response communk:ations

2. Improve Operational Performance - maximizing capacity by

improving throughput

3. Enhance MobUity and Convenience - redudng c;ongestion

4. Improve EnvIronmental Outcomes - reducing fuel consumption
and emissions

5. Boost Productivity and Economic Growth - reducing travel
times andfuel costs

Finally, the study wUl facilitate the development ofan inve,stment
strategy by identlfyihg and prioritIzing ITS and operational

improvements along the route that are mutuallV beneficial to the
interregklnal traveler and the City.



2. Existing Corridor Conditions

Route Features and Classification

Within Merced County, SR 152 is comprised of two facilities
expressway for the route outside of the City of Los Banos, and
conventional highway within the City limits. SR 152 {Pacheco
Boulevard) within the City of Los Banos is currently comprised of four

lanes and two-way left turn lane (TWLTl) for much of the segment, with

multiple access points (stop-controlled intersections, and drivewaysl.
and has thirteen signalized Intersections. Posted speed limits vary from

30 to SO miles per hour {MPH). The portion of SR 152 that Is

expressway is, for the most part, access-controlled with fewer access

points, and a posted speed limit of 55 MPH.

SR 152 is a prIncipal arterial on the National Highway System (NHS).

on the Freeway Expressway System, and the Interregional Road
System (IRRS). It is a Surface Transportation Assistance Act (STAAl

and Terminal Aecess truck route on the National Network.

Peak hour Level of Service (lOS) for the los Banos segment is

currentlv F. The expressway segments (outside of los Banos) have

an LOS above the concept lOS of C. By 20301 only one of the

expressway segments will exceed the concept lOS.

E~lsting route facility features through the Oty are summarized in

Table 1, page 3.

2

Deficiencies and Needs on SR 152 within the City of

los Banos

Caltrans designated SR 152 as a high emphasis route On the IRRS with

the intent to provide an expressway interconnection to urban places

since 1996, The los Banos Bypass Project (Bypass) addresses this

goal. With funding shortfalls, and delays to implementation. Interim

solutions consistent with community visions and input are de5ir~d.

The current configuration of SR 152 in los Banos is inimical to

C8ltrans commitment to complete streets and active transportation

alternatives by having facilities that serve all travel modes including

bicyde, pedestrian, and transit. The travel way is overcommitted to

travel by automobiles and trucks at expense of cyclists, and

pedestrians. Narrow shoulders (shoulder width is variable) along

with high traffic volumes does not encourage the use of bicycles on

SR 152 through Los 8anos. Intermittent sidewalks along with

crosswalks of seventy-five feet or longer present little incentive to

travel by foot. Both bicycle and pedestrian lOS (obtained by

ARTPLAN lOU) for the segment average an lOS of F.

Transit service along the corridor fares better, In part because af the

proximity and extent of service hours produce an overall LOS of E

(obtained by ARTPlAN 2012). This in part reflects available ridership

and demand, and should improve as transit demand and ridership

inc:reases,



,
)

Table J. Summary Contritions

College to
17.79/18.882 " Partlal OffSt .No Ie). uff routl: No ~._"'''"'~''''''''''''''"' 10 N, lOSBadger Flat - '- ~ - .

Badger Flat to
13.882/19.268 4 Yes, raised Off St. No Yes, off route No N, A{l, Open Space N

6N,45
Ortigalita Yes 5 Commercial S- - --- - --- ----- -
Ortlgalita to

19.268/19.618 /I
At,fadeup Off St. No

NO YIU,Sto All, Open Space N
2N,6$

W.I St. to 19.364 .19:481 Commet'dlll 5

W. 'St. to
19.618119.781 "

No
OffSt. No No

Yes to 19.629 Commercial N/S 9N,9S
Marylend

Maryland to
19.781119.830

lowe

lowe to Souza 19,830/19.901 "
No OffSt. No No Yes N/S Commerdal N/5 5N,5S

-- -- - - --- -
Souza to

19.901/19.930 4
No

Off St. No NO 'f~N/S
Commercial!

2~, 3S
Paradlsa

_______ _ "-T_.

Paradise to
19.930/19.970 <I

No
Off St. No No YesN/S

~", ... ~ ..... ""U'I
2 N. 4 S

illinois .. • I ._ "-~ _ ~

illinois to
19.970/20.028 4

Nv
Offst No No Yes·H/S

_......--,...,
4N.45Aritona --~'--"- _....,_.

Arizona to
20.028/20.090 4

Nco
Off St. No No Yes N/5 Commercial SN,35

Nevada
- ------ - - -- -- - -

Nevada to
20.090/20.l!6 4

No
OffSt. No No Yl!S Nt> Commerciall 4N,45

Ohfoml11 'UIJ,!rrt"II

California to
20.186/20.253 4 No Off St. No No VesN/S

Commerdal/
3 N. 2 S

C!!nter ResIdential

center to 41h 20.2Sl/20.289 4 Yes, raIsed OUSt, No No Yel N/s ";'uN1moartllll '3 N. '3 S

41h to 6'h St. 20.289/20.420 4 At grade OffSt. No No Yes N/S Commercial SN,7S

- - - --------------- ---- -- --
0.420/20.590 4 None Off St. No No Ves NfS COmmerc",I' 4 N. lOS

3



Table 1. (continued)

9th to 10" 20.149/20.810 4 NOlle Off St. No No Vet. tl/S CoO'merelal 6 N. 75

- - --- --- --
101l1 toJSt. 20.870120.916 4 No"e OffSl. UO No Ves"'/~ COl'IlMertlal if

to 11th St. 20.916/20.990 4 None Off St. No No Yes N/S Commercial 4N, 7S
_._- -----

11th to I St. &
20.990/21.058 . Vel, raised OffSt; No No Yes HIS

Com fT'el'cl-alj
4111,3SHoSt. " Residential

Los Banos HSt. and
21.058/21.176 4 None Off St. No No YesN/S Commcrdal 3N,45

Ito131Jo

13\1' to JeT SR-l6S 21.176/21.272 II Yes.rillscd OffSt. r.o No YesN~ Commercial 6N,35

SR-16S/Los Banos
21.272/21.610 4

Yes, partial
OffSt. No Yes, off route Yes N/S Commercial 9 N, lOS

& RR Xing to Miller raised
--

Miller Ln. LTto
21,610/21.680 4 Yes,r,lsed OffSt. No No YesNJ.S

_,..u,~, "'WI'

3N.5S
Tanner Rd. RT. - .. .. .
Tanner Rd. RT. to

21.680!l1.761 4 Yes, raised Off St. No No Yes S Commercial 1 N. 25Place Rd. RT.

Place to Mckel i1.761121.79S 4 Ynt 91sed Offst. No No 1.'<'>1 -.rIC ...." .............,
1

l'

Niclt9.1 to Ward 21.795/22.252 4
Yes, raised on St. No Yes, off route

Yes, N to Ward; Commercial!
8 N, 75

and at grade Sto PM 21.977 Residential
- --- ._..•-

Ward to SIn luis
22.252122.998 4 None OffSt

canal
:1.l!J/.1

San luis C3!'lal to Yes. NPM 22.998
Resldermal/

Santa Fe
22.998/23.915 4 Eltpressway Off St. No No to 23.106 Commercial/ 10 t. 5 S

Op~n Space

4



3. Planned Corridor Improvements

Land Use

Merced County General Plan

The Merced County General Plan designates land along SR 152 as

Agricultural (A) up to Interstate (I}S and Foothill Pasture (FP) from \-5 to

Santa Clara County. The County defers to the City of Los Banos land use

planning for area within their sphere of influence. Outside the City

limits, the predominately rural context is intensively cultivated In A, and

very low density, less intensive grazing land in FP.

Aside from farm to market activity, especially dairy, very little local
traffic Is generated in these land use designations. Minimum parcel size

In A Is 20 acres, and in FP, 160 acres (20-40 if previous zoning was Al,

minlmlzlng access points along the route. Most of the pass through

traffic is either travel to and from the City of Merced for services, or

interregional, traveling to and from the South Bav Area and coast.

Los Banos General Pion (L86P)

Existing developed land uses along SR 152 are amix of commercial,

single-family residential, and vacant land. Agricultural land use occupies

a majority (70%) ofthe acreage within the planning area. Single/Multi
family residential land use is a dIstant second at less than 10%, followed

by Commercial/Industrial at 4%. In the incorporated area, less than 16%

Is agricultural, with housing at 32% and 9% Commercial/Industrial.

future land use along SR 152 in Los Banos is designated primarily Com~

merciaI along the frontage, with low and medium residential behind the

5

commercial (see Map 1 next page). New development along the route
consists of, primarily, commercial with a concentration of business
development on the west end oftown. At build-out, Agriculture at 22%

remains the predominant land use, with Single/Multi-family residential
comprising 12% of the land area and Commercial/lndustriaI14%. 30%
of the land area is undesignated but assigned "Other" and is presumed

to include parks. roadways, and rail line.

Guiding policies In the Land Use Element reflect the City's desire for a

pattern of growth that protects agricultural lands and Its small town
character, sustalnabillty, and requires development mitigation for the
costs ofinfrastrueture, selVices, and transportation facilities. Imple

menting i1ctlonsfor community design pollcfes specific to the
SR 152/Pacheco Blvd. corridor are:

W·/-12 Promote pedestrian·oriented dt!lleJopment In selected oreos, Including
downtown, neighborhood centers. and Pacheco Boulevard corridor.

W+13 Require street trees on all public streetfrontages and adoptstreet guidelines
that specify preferredspecies, spacing requIrements and planting guidelin6 in

coordinating with the Urban Tree Foundation.

LlJ.,l·14 Establish a distinct design chQraaer for Pacheco Boulevard with slgnage,
landscaping, designer poles, and other visual cues to provide a celebrated entrance Into

theary.

LU-I·18 Ensllre that developments Incorporotl'safety concerns into the site,
circulation. building deSign and landscaping pfons through the design review process.

The subarea serves as a regional retail center accessible to local and

regional shoppers on both sides of the corridor. The Plan seeks to

phase out industrial and warehouse sites and relocate them to Indus

trial and employment parks. It also seeks to minimize curb cuts along
East Pacheco Blvd., requiring site access from side streets, if possible.



Mop 1. Los Banos Generol PIon t.tlnd Use

t:".~f.f' l .5TwD" "'IE&.
?lfo/..._-_..........

.......

r
.~

..."..... -
I':' ( • t 1 C" C' D ~ 'I T W'

~
•1

~n_l....JlJH.
')j~r:vo

0'- ...........
c:.:J~ "-- ..,~
.'''r~''~---...:

(.:J~"-~

0-·
,..,..,1 ..

0 "-"c I1...

,~ ,.
.•...,.1,. ,.,

i:::.
~ Il#"' .

Or--- :.,.
J[l"""~
_...-..~ ....

-'"
--~~- .......~
_'"<l-~"""""

--- - --
rIGUIU; 2.1 GllllRAL PLAH 51 UDY /\,R(A

6



Transportation

Several studies address current and future conditions on SR 152 within

los Banos.

1. City of Los 80n05 TrtJ/fic Model and Tronsportotion Master

Plan (Moster Pkm, Prism EngineerIng, May 5, 20101

The Master Plan was developed to allow for evaluation of traffic

operations and Intersection turnlns movements at the micro-level
of analysis. with the intent of developing a mitigation fee program

presumably to partially fund local street Intersection improvements

with, or without, the Bypass. The traffic model employed
attempted to develop a traffic scenari.o for the year 2030 with or

without the Bypass. For 2025, the report has Pacheco Blvd. at lOS F

without the Bypass (Although data Is provided for lOS at

Intersections in Table 3.2 on page 18 of the Master Plan. this Is

presumed to be segment lOS). Proposed mitigation would be a

widening toa six lane fadl1ty, for which there Is no available right of

way set aside for expansion in the urban corridor. Encroachment by

commercial land uses renders expensive, and likely infeasible, the

purchase of additional right of way.

A license plate survey estimaled that 22% of total traffic found

entering Los Banos on SR 152 on the CIty's western limits passed

through the CIty to its eastern limits. but that this traffic was

disproportiona~1y trucks (69% of total traffic volume). A license
plate survey for west bound traffic Is not reported. Mitigation for
future traffic Impacts at intersections only considers the presence of

the Bypass.

)

7

"'

2. 2030 M~rcedCounly General Plan (Mintier and Harn;sh,

December .10, 2013)

The policies and mitigation reported for the Orculation Element of

the 2D3O Merced County GeneralPion (GP) would apply to portions

of SR 152 adjacent to the City of los Banos, and possibly those land
uses within the City's sphere of Influence. Policy CIR-l.S identifies a

minimal roadway lOS of Ie: for rural, and '0' for urban areas and of

connectors between urban areas. Policy CIR-.t.7 indentifies a

commftment to developing alternative transportation modes with

new development. Policy elr-l.ll reports intent to develop new
urban streets within urban communities In conformity with
complete streets criteria (further elaborated in Gaols Or-3, Cir--4,
and arMS). No specific discussion for Los Banos was identified.

3. Regional TransportfJtltJn Pion (RTP) 2014~Z04O Sustalnoble

COmmunities Strategy!or Merced COunly (Merced County
Association ofGovernments (MCAG), Z014)

The RTP contains policies consIstent with the Circulation Element of

the GP. A map of the regional road system on page 29 of the RTP

shows the layout of the northern Bypass alternative. Two stages of

the Bypass development are discussed on page 34, segment 1 and

segment 2. asTJer 1 projects (financially constrained). A commit

menttofund and Implement Tier 1 projects Is given on page 35.

The Bypass Is Included as a component of corridor preservation
(page 38) specific to the new alignment (this list includes projects

not Included in the Tier 1 and ner 2 lists). A discussion on Active

Transportation Is provided (pages 51-56). Mention is made of the



Los Banos Bicycle Plan (2005), howeverj bikeways are only mapped

for the City of Merced. Projects and needs particular to any other

jurisdiction are left unspecified.

A discussion of Sustainable Communities Strategy is prOVided (pages

60-64) that identifies county-wide expenditures for transit ($326

million) and non-motorized transportation ($110 million) under all

scenarios, but does not specify allocatfons (For bicycle paths, these

may be included in the Merced County Reg/onal Bicycle Transpor

tation Plan (2008) which identifies a priority project for SR 152 to

create a Class \I Bike lane from Mercey Springs Road (SR 165) to the

Main canal: for transit, Son Joaquin Valley EKpress (Nelson and

Nygaard Consultlngj 2009) indicates plans for a transit center in los

Banos/and a transit market from los Banos to San Jose/Silicon

Valley by 2030}.

4. Los Banos 2030 Geneml Plan OrcultJtion Element

The Circulation Element, like the LBGP, describes policies and

mitigations for traffiNelated impacts to the LBGP proposed

population growth and land use changes. Specific information may
be obtained regarding the SR 152 In los Banos. Table 4-4 (pages 4

8) summarizes Intersection operations for 2006 (Sourc:eJ Omn!

Means), and provides planned improvements to the systems limited

to Increasing capacity (Table 4-5), with Table 4-6 (pages 4~10)

summarizing roadway level of service with or without the

improvements. What is notable about Table 4-6 is that the roadway

level of service without improvements appears to exceed concept

LOS for the facility with the exception of the portion of Pacheco

Blvd. between Ortigalita Road and '1' Street which is reported to

J
../

8

operate at LOS f. Much of the model of future conditions

anticipates development in the southwest quadrant of the City's

sphere of Influence (delineated as east of Volta Road, south of

Pacheco, west of los Banos Creekj and north of Pioneer Road orthe

San Joaquin/Kings River. Information on transit routes and use
appears out of date (It reports five fixed route when only three are

in operation at present, and no mention of a planned transit

center.). The 2006 Bicycle Plan is cited. A proposed bike lane is

depicted on Figure 4-5 (pages 4-21) that follows Pacheco Blvd. west

from the proposed bypass to where It diverges near Ramos Road

northwestwards. No pedestrian plan is mentioned. No specific

mention of Pacheco is made In the discussion of truck routes and

goods movement.

5. State Route 152 Transportation Concept Report (2005J

The document reports a LOS of 'B' on Pacheco Blvd. (Segment 4, los

Banos Creek to Santa Fe Grade) within los Banos, and does not

provide a future facility LOS, but reports the Bvpass Instead. It

reports seven traffic signals along the route. Included Is mention of

the Los Banos Access Management Plan for SR 152 that was

executed in 2003. It contains no specific mention of transit, bicycle,

or pedestrian projects to address needs affiliated with Pacheco

Blvd.

6. Los Banos Access Management Plan (LBAMP, 2004)

The I.BAMP proposed a coordinated series of operational

improvements spedfic to Pacheco Blvd. and Mercey Hot Springs

Road to control traffic movement on SR 152 and SR 165 withIn

the City of Los Banos. The LBAMP oases its recommendations



on the traffic study performed for the Bypass. The LBAMP

proposes installation of raised median barriers; several traffic

signals beyond the six or seven that were originally present;
converting Intersections to right in, right out; creating stop

controlled intersections on feeder streets Intersecting the State
highways; signal synchronization; and provides design criteria
for both highways. Uniform standards for driveway access and

Planned and Programmed Projects

Few projects are planned (see Table 2) for the rOllte due to the need for
an alternative alignment to meet concept LOS, design standards, and
multimodal needs. Interim Improvements are planned to address
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) access (Tables 3 and 4).

Table 2. Planned lind Programmed Projects

/

interval are not proVided, and are to be addressed on a case by

case basis in an encroachment permit review process.

The LBAMP is subject to update and revision with the updates

of the LBGP. Based upon review, many of the proposed

Improvements have yet to been performed.

R22.3-R 25,8

16.0-26.9

;:rom e/o Santa Fe Grade Rd. to SR-165 slo Henry Miller Rd.

From Santa Clara County line to Madera County line

9

Los Banos Bypass Segment III • Freeway Conversion with Three Interchanges



Tobie ,. ADA Curb Ramps Needs Eost o/SR-J.65 Table 4. ADA Curb Romps Needs West oJSR-J.65

Muylllnd A,,~nue

Par3dlse Lane

Arizonll Avenue

Center AVI!IIue

6'" Street

N'nth Str"e!'l

J Street

.. Street

SW,SE

NE,NW

SW. Sf

NW.NE

SW. Mid-block, SE

SW, NW. SE. NE

NW,NE

NW,NE

MlCIblock. NW. NE. Midbloek, NE

10

Place Road (PM 7l.139)

Place Road (PM 23.822)

Nickel Street

Entrance {PM 22.059 & PM 2~.07.)

NE

Sf

SW, SE

MId-Block. Mld-Slock



4. Muttimodal Access Issues

OVerview

CDmplet~ Streets Act (AB 1358)

AS cities and counties update their general plan circulation elements, AB
13$8 requires them to Identify how they wlll provide for the routine
accommodation of all users of the roadway, including pedestrians,
bicvclists, individuals with disabilities, seniors and public transit users, in
addition to motorists.

State Complete Streets Policy (DD-64-Rl)

The California Department ofTransportatlon IDepartment} provides for
the needs of travelers of all ages and abilities ina" planning, program
ming, design, construction, operations, and maintenance activities and
products on the State highway system. The Department views all
transportation improvements as opportunities to improve safety,
access, and mobility for all travelers In California and recognizes bicycle,
pedestrian, and transit modes as integral elements ofthe transportation
system.

The Department develops integrated multimodal projects in balance
with community goals, plans, and values. Addressing the safetvand
mobility needs of bicyclists, pedestrians, and transit users in all projects,
regardless of fundln~ Is Implicit in these objectives. Bicycle, pedestrian,
and transit travel is fadlltated by creating "complete streets" beginning
early in system planning and continuing through project delivery and
maintenance and operations. Developing a network of "complete
streets'" requires collaboration among all Department functional units
and stakeholders to establish effective partnerships.

11

Access Strategy

Access management preserves the functionality of major arterials to
safely move traffiC at higher speeds. This can be accomplished by
increasing the spadng between intersections and signals, employing
median treatments and turn lanes, and minimizing driveway access
points. Roundabouts can also reduce conflict points and may be
appropriate at some intersection loeatlons where there is adequate
right of way and under certain conditions. The benefits of these
techniques include improved traffic flow, fewer points of conflict and
reduced accidents.

Given the available right of way and local context, and the difficulty of
closing existing driveways, operational improvements are the most
effective way to reduce the Impact of congestion and manage the effect
of development along the frontage. There are no plans to meet the
concept fadlity by Increasing capacity along the existing alignment.
Until an alternative route is constructed around the City, access
management remains the most important tool to reduce accidents and
conflicts points and improve traffic flow.

Access points along the route vary from 20 to 102 per mile (Table 5). In
addition to lowering speed and increasing congestion, In general, there
Is a strong relationship between the number of access points and the
number of crashes according to research done by the Transportation
Research Board ITable 6). Operation of the existing facility could be
enhanced by exploiting all opportunities for consolidation of existing
driveways, and the restrictIon or limiting of new access to help prevent
further deterioration. In Chapter 6, the replacement of two-way left
turn lanes with medians and providing more opportunities to make U
turns is proposed to alleviate some of the conflict points,



'"'.,

CratbIlHll.\(rmDtulfr
1 5
Ii A L-.: -1--'"--'-' ~.":<-'"J+"-I:I ..~. r-:-. :Ii

ai 3

fil2
if 11 ~ t I I

oJ- 1020 30 ..0 5ll 60 '70
Atl:esa~ perillo

• ~a.....A-so~M.aDI:ztl)J

Tobie 6. Crushes ond Access Density
i I

22 N I 235

32 N I 40510th to Nickel

Badg~ Flat to Iowa18.82-19.83

Network Mobility/Connectivity

Map 2, on the next page, Illustrates the existing bicycle, pedestrian, and
transit facilities serving the community along SR 152. Although
sidewalks are provided along most of the foute, the area is not
particularlv ''walkable'' due to the scale of commercial development
along a prindpal arterial. The existing commercial area consists of large
box stores, and even larger parking lots, as well as strip malls spread out
along the corridor. On street bus turnouts are not provided, likely due
to the distance of the shopping destination from the street. Transit
busses offload In the parking lots, getting passengers closer to their
destinations, relieving the need for bus stops or pullouts along the route
and the resulting delay to other vehicles.

While bicycle travel is not prohibited, the facillty lacks the width needed
to provide dedicated bike lanes. Although there are many local bike
routes, none parallels the corridor due to side street alignment. It is
suggested that the City provide a means to get across the town from
east to west and connect with the State highway where there Is room

for a dedicated bfke lane. Otherwise, ble;yctes will have to occupy a lane
as a vehicle, according to A81371, known as the Three Feet for Safety
Act. The law requires motor vehicle drivers passing a bicycle that Is
proceeding in the same direction to pass with no less than three feet
between any part ofthe vehlde and any part ofthe bicycle or driver. If
this is not possible, the motor vehicle must slow down and pass when
no danger is present. A car or truck following a bicycle will further slow
traffic operating at or near the speed limit to that of the bicycle, as
under congested conditions, there will be little opportunity to move
into another lane.

Numerous signalized intersections and crosswalks allow cars, bikes and
pedestrians to traverse the highway. Additional overcrossings should be
provided In areas with the greatest concentration of foot traffic,
especially school routes. Although not popular with walkers because of
the extra effort required to elevate above the street, ADA compliant
designs have ramps that are easIer to negotiate for all age groups.

12



Mop 2. EKlstlng Bkycle, Pedestrian, and Tftlns/t FtJdJltles

....,

-- - •. _. _._- ...'

~....~....-
£lllIllftll-8tcJolo.""_.......-llolI<_-__

_ ''''-'0-_ "
•··• ...... _ lClaoo"'l-a,_-----......ely""'"

a\ClPtw-ll;Plan8~

......1IIIl:.wa
(!lQ'olNllll ~PIrtiIl~

a ..·... lB-

"

.J.

,_. .. t ..._<-_a_ .. _

\

,

..,.--...._-...

--"'.-.'.'-----" --·~=-----==-=I=. -.-
.j

I

13



/

5. Street Design and Caltrans' Standards

For State Highways, the accepted design criteria are contained in the
Highway Design Manuat (HDM~ SiKth Edition). These design criteria are
meant to fulfill State and federal guidelines, while fulfilling complete
streets and active transportation policies. Table 7 below compares the
physical dimensions of Pacheco Blvd. to the highway design standards
laid out in the current HOM. For most of the criteria listed, Pacheco

Boulevard meets or exceeds these criteria with two exceptions:
shoulder width of 8 feet is desirable for bicycle lane accommodation,
while the current facility only provides 3. and. the radius required for 'u'
turns needs to be 50 feet or greater, but is less than SO feet In most
locations.

Table 1. Design Standards

TWlTl. Width 14' min. 14'

Shoulder Width (bike lane accommodatfon) 8' 3'

NA4" min.Corner8ulb-outs -------_~---_---_____:=_---------------__::_;:;_=_-------

MId-block Pedest"'n CroSSinl signalized None

RoadsIde Trees- more thlln 4"dbh

(PM 18.8-19.6, PM 21.8-22.31] SO 45

Various locations

"'TGb/1! 7 $unltrlftrlzes desllllt smndlmls and is Irttended~ be Q rough guldllfor conJldering roadway design options. For tJ compl/fte discussion 01standords. olternatlve treatment!, and l!)tUptIoM, pfeflse COf/SU1t* (amtedition ofthe H/tlbwav Deslo" Mclltwl.

14



6. Corridor Operations and Management

Overview

Proposed traffic improvements coupled with incident warning
systems are intended to Improve the passage oftrafflc under high
volume conditlons, or to allow effident management of traffic under

adverse conditions such as accidents or poor weather conditions. The
intent is to maintain or reduce existIng traffic congestion and to

improve safety conditlons along the corridor until the Bypass may be

completed.

Benefits from these Improvements can be measured in reductions of
travel time, fuel consumption, air pollutant emissions reduction, and
costs to the users of the system. The specific goals are to

• minimize stops and delays

• minimize queue lengths

• provide adequate crossing time for bikes and pedestrians

• improve the rellabllltv of Interregional travel

• reduce the impact of traffic Incidents

Specific treatments include raised medians, limiting access, facilitating

U-turns, consolidatingcrosswalks, optimizing signal timing. enhancing

walk·abllity for all pedestrians, Identifying alternate bicycle routes, and
incorporating appropriate ITS elements.

Costs estimates for a raised median/intersection widening, if broken up
bv intersection, would be In the range between $280,000 and $1 Million

(Minor A-mid range). Driveway dosure would likely be under $280,000

.'

1S

(Minor B-Iow range), and all driveway Improvements could be combined

Into one single project. CombIning two ormore intersection

improvements along with raised median, project costs would easily rise

into the $1 Million range (Major-high range).

To prioritize the operational improvements from high to low for

effectiveness and cost it is suggested that the highest priority would be
signal timing adjustment to get the most benefit out of the existing

signal system with little to no investment. The next highest priority

would be Installation of raised median combined with Intersection
Widening as they would have to be completed simultaneously. Finally, a

consolidation of driveways would be addressed.

Alexander Skabardonis presented a paper at the 801ll Annual

Transportation Research Board Meetlnlt ITS Benefits: The case a/Traffic

Signal ControlSystems (2001), which found an estimated benefit to cost
ratio of 17:1, from an evaluation of optimizing traffic signal timing plans,

coordinating traffic signal control, and Implementing adaptive signal

control at locations through the State of California. This was done for
the Fuel·Efflcient Traffic Signal Management Program (FETSIM) between

1983 and 1993, and Involved 163 local agencies and 334
projects. Although somewhat dated, the research suggests avery
favorable return on investment for projects of this type, as well as an
average of 7.7 percent drop In travel tIme, 13.8 percent reduction in
delay, 12.5 percent reduction In stops, and 7.8 percent decline in fuel
use.



Proposed Improvements

Roadway Design Elements

District 10 Office of Traffic Operations explored various proposals along

SR 152, within the City, which will help improve traffic operations of
intersections along this route. A range of alternatives have been listed
based on location and range from little or no improvement to inter
section reconstruction. Most of the proposals will help improve traffic

flow by reducing the number of vehicle conflicts at intersections and
driveways and maximizing signal timing throughout the segment. These
include optimizing and coordinating traffic signal timing. modifying
pavement striping, closing/restricting certain driveways that are
redundant, unnecessary, or significantly affect traffic operations,

constructing raised medians, and intersection widening to accom
modate u·turns.

The locations and potential Improvements are listed below:

1. Between Badger Flat Road (PM 18.882) and ».'11"'
Ortigalita Road (PM 19.268)

• Modify the existing pavement marking in the eastbound
direction to convert the eastbound trap lane to a right
turn lane

2. Between 0l11galita Road (PM 19.268) and

West I Street (PM 19.G18)

• Raised median to begin SOO' east of S. Ortigallta Road
(PM 19.364) and end at West I Street.

16

• On the south side (shopping center with 3 existing
driveways), close westerly driveway, convert middle

driveway to right In/out, and exclude left out on
easterly driveway (left In only).

3. West I Street (PM 19.618)

• Widen NW and SE corners to accommodate U·turns
• NE corner, close westerly driveway

4. West IStreet (PM 19.618) to
Maryland Avenue (PMI9.7S1) north sIde T

• Raised median with back-to·back left turns

5. Maryland Avenue (PM i9.7S1) north side T

• Widen NW corner to accommodate U·Turns

6. illinois Avenue (PM 19.970) north sfde T to

Arizona Avenue (PMlO.028) north side T

• Raised median with back-to·back left turns

7. Arizona Avenue (PM20.028) north side T

• Widen NW corner to accommodate U-turns

8. Arizona Avenue (PM20.028) north side T to

Nevada Street (PM20.090) 4 legged

• Raised median with back-to·back left turns



9. Nevada Street (PM 20.090)

• Widen NW corner to accommodate U-turns

10. 4th Street (PM ZO.289)

• Widen SE torner to accommodate U-turns

11. 4th Street (PM 20.289) to 61to Street (PM Za.4Z0)

• Raised median with baclc-to-baclc left turns

12. 6'" Street (PM 20.420)

• Widen NW corner to accommodate U-turns

13. gtlI Street (PM20.749) north side T

• Cul-de-sac, traffic to use J Street

14. Driveway approldmately ZOO feet east of SR-165/1S2 (PM

21.385) to Miller lane (PMZ1.610)

• Construct raised median, left tum Into shopping center
on NE corner to remain

17

15. Miller Lane (PM21.610) north side T

• Widen NW comer to accommodate U-turns

16. Driveway approximately 400 feet west of Ward Road (PM
22.174) to'Ward Road (PM 22.252)

• Convert painted raIsed Island to raised median, left turn
into shopping center on the north, to remain, and left

turn into Rancho Drive to remain.

17. Ward Rd (PM 22.252)

• Allow WB U-turns, currently they are prohIbited



/
'

'ia....e~'"0ac:.S!1l~IiE~Ii;~-11I:

~atc!'"0II»'"!Q
;;

,

1/
I

cwi

1

I,

CD-



Signal Timing Optimization and Coord/notion

Optimization and coordination of the sIgnalized intersection helps

manage the demands ofvehicles and pedestrians In an optimal manner

and 15 the most cost effective way to Improve traffic flow, as no

upgrades are necessary. In addItion, signal coordInation improves the

traffic flow on a corridor by synchronizing the start of the Ngreen light"

so that a group ofvehicles, or platoon, can travel together through a

series of sIgnals with minimal or no stopping. This least restrictive

timing has the following advantages:

• Improves traffic flow through a group of signals

• Reduces the overall delay time at an intersection

• Reduces motorist frustration by reducing stops and delay

• Reduces response time for bus service and emergenc:vvehicles

• lowers air pollution/vehi(;ular emissions

• Reduces gasoline consumption

Access Control and Raised Medians

In addition to signal timing optimization and coordination, there are

access management strategies that can significantly Improve the
operations of the corridor. Avery effective strategy consists of

managing the number and location of access points that cause mainline

traffic flow interruption. A conflict point Is described as the point at

which a roadway user can cross, merge, and diverge with another

roadway user. A four-legged intersection has as many as 32 conflict

points. this numberis greatly reduced by the installation of a raised

median to restrict certain left turn movements. With a lower number of

19

conflict polntsl drivers have less trouble maneuvering through traffIC

and have less difficulty entering the roadway.

Driveway turning movements can be restricted by replacing the existing

TWLTL with a raised median. Driveway restriction Is a proven and

effective way to reduce conflict points and can be done with minimum

disruption to existing access. Managing driveway acc::ess may c::ause

minor inconvenience to a few vehicles, however, it will help reduce the
number of conflict points, whIch in turn improves traffic operations for

the majority of the vehIcles using the facility. In addition, the removal

of unnecessary driveways, espec1allv those that are close to the

influence area of an intersection and other nearby driveways, helps

reduce the numberof decisions a driver must make. This is especially

important as drivers not only need to be aware of other veh1cles, but

also bicyclists and pedestrians. Good access management practices will
help Improve operational performance and improve overall safety.

Based upon the California Manualon Uniform Traffic Control Devices
(CA·MUTCD. 2012 Edition), a condit1on for Installing raised medians to

replace TWlTLs is when average daily traffic (ADT) exceeds 20,000

vehicles. Currently, SR 152 has a capacity at, or higher than, the

threshold. A study conducted in La Grande, Oregon, with an average
annual daily traffic (AADT) of 17,200 (5 lanes), demonstrated that

operations deteriorate as the driveway density increases, which in turn

causes the number of actldents to rise and based on the Transportation

Research Board's (TRB} National Cooperative Highway Research

Program (NCHRP) Report 420, most studiesl and the models derived

from them, also suggest that safety is Improved where physical medians

replace TWlTl's.



Raised medians have a number of advantages over TWlTls:

• reduce the number of head on, angle, left turn and right turn

crashes, as the number of conflict points are reduced

• restrict certain movements into and out of driveways to
improve operations

• raised medians Improve average speeds for through traffic and
have delCiYs similar to TWlTl's

Driveway consolidation is another method of avoiding conflicts on the

corridor reducing the need for drivers to slow down or stop for multiple

entry points, improving overall operations and reducing delay. On

multilane roads, speeds drop 0.25 mph per access point and speeds can

be up to 10 mph lower for every 40 access points per mile.

The removal of driveways is especially important at locations where the

driveway is roeated Within the influence area of a signalized inter

section. Such access points are detrimental to the operation of the

signal, negatively impacting the overall Intersection operation by

disrupting traffic flow, affecting platooning and the overall
synchronization ofthe signal system. As a result, the overall traffic

throUghput is decreased and the removal of such driveways should be a

priority.

The implementation of raised medians Is not possible without providing

U-turns at signalized Intersections. Various intersections have been

identified as good candidates for widening to accommodate U-turns for

segments where raised medians have been proposed. Although a wIder
faeJ1lty is needed to accommoda~e the turning vehicles. and parking

areas may need to be reduced, the provision of U-turns at signalized

20

intersections, along with raised medians, result In improved operations

and lower accident rates than TWlTls and prohibited-left-turn

corridors.

CROSSWALKS

Reducing the number of crosswalks per intersection on SR 152 will help

reduce conflicts and at signalized intersections will allow for more green

time (approximately 30 seconds) to be allocated to vehicles. It is
recommended that crosswalk configuration be modified at the follOWing

intersections:

1. West I Street (PM 19.618), existing crosswalk on an 4 sides

• Remove westerly crosswalk

2. 4'T1l Street {PM 20.289}, eKistlng c:rosswatk on all 4 sides

• Remove easterly or westerly crosswalk

3. 7tt1 St (PM 20.590) existing crosswalk on all 4 sides and
pedestrian overcrossing

• Remove easterly or westerly crosswalk

The safest way to allow connectivity across the highway is with

pedestrian overcrosslngs. These are especially prudent in areas where

there are residential neighborhoods on ene slde of the route and

schools on the other such as 4th and 11th Streets.



Map 4. Proposed Operational Improvements (Crosswalks)

--._-
..... ..,. ...151~_ ....
=.,-._-.._-

a ....

--- ..
".;; .

-:--41
p
!f~l
'-l--.i.

AI 0sL

-- ...,......-------• 1..• ..,.._.._-
~ ,:1__ T

21



Intelligent Transporttltion Systems (ITS)

As traffic volumes increase and congestion becomes more prevalent,
the use of ITS to manage corridors becomes more important. ITS
elements use sensing and communication to send and receive real-time

Information between vehicles, Infrastructure, centralized transportation
operation and management centers. this Information can be used to
develop operational strategies for use on existing transportation

facilities, Upgrading infrastructure can be costly and can affectthe

environment, so emplovlng ITS elements and using existing

Infrastructure is it cost effective way to Improve the transportation
system so that maximum benefit can be attained. ITS elements that
would be beneficial to this segment include:

• Changeable Message Signs (eMS)

• Highway AdVisory Radio (HAR)

• Closed Circuit Television (eCTV)

• 511 Servlce
• Weather Stations
• Traffic Monitoring Stations (TMS)

• ExtingUishable Message Signs (EMS)

• Fiber optic lines
• Maintenance Vehicle Pullouts (MVP)

• Roadside Weather Information System (RWIS)

Specifically, the Traffic Management Branch recommends two eMS
units, two ccrv cameras, two MVPs, eight TMSs, and one RWIS In each
direction on the existing SR 152 corridor Within los Banos. Togetner,
these elements make up an Automated Warning System (AWS)

22

comprised of a total of four CMS units, four cctV cameras, four MVPs,
sixteen TMSs, and two RWISs for both directions. Specific locations of
these elements are to be determined during the project development

process, as the project scope and configurations are defined.

The benefits of implementing these ITS elements are:

1. to provide real-time video feedback of traffic condItions and

weather conditions to our Traffic Management Center (TMe) for
better traffic and roadway monitoring;

2. to provide real-time messaging to the travelling public traffic

and weather conditions allowing system users the ability to

plan accordingly to avoid Incidents or congested areas, reducing
traffic delay or prevent secondary ac:cldents;

3. help TMC respond to incidents and congestion more quickly and

dispatch traffic management (TMn/emergency response
teams, or CHP to remove incident's elements from the roadway

to reduce potential congestion, or shorten congestion time;
4. and to enhance the highway operations to full capac/tv.

Traffic Signal S,stem

There are thirteen signals along SR 152 through los Banos. locations
and configuratIon are listed In Table 8 on the next page. Only the
signals at 4th

, 6th and ?1h streets are coordinated. There are no flxed
time signals on this corridor. All are traffic responsive.



As noted previously, the optimization and coordination of signals Is the
most cost effective way to improve traffic flow, reducing travel time and
emissions on the route. However, coordination onlv works when
vehicle platoons can move with minimal egress and ingress along the

route. A signal engineer visits/observes signals at least once per year to
ensure that the signal timing plans are reflective of current traffic

conditions. At the present time, it appears that there is no consistent
congestion occurring and public complaints are minimal.

Signal timing has been optimized as much as possible through the
corridor, given the existing equipment. In order to maintain

performance, it is essential that all signal loops are working so that

signal controllers can properly detect vehicles. Loop failure due to
various causes Is a ongoing problem In many areas.

Interconnecting the signals via hard-wire/flber-optlc or through a
wireless methods, allows the controllers to synch their doclG
automatically, as the clocks on the signal controllers have a tendency to
drift over time leading to the coordinated signals getting out of sync"'. It

will cost approximately $15 per foot to Install signal interconnect cable
between adjacent signals alang the corridor plus another $5,000 1n
State·furnlshed parts to complete.

In addition, extending system communication to the intersections via
wireless modem or OSl, at a cost of $1,000 to $3,000 per location,

allows remote trouble shooting ofsignal timing ISSUes, enhancing signal
func:tionality and reliability. Installing cameras and communication
equipment at each intersection, at a cost of approximately $9,000 per

23

Intersection, is also recommended to allow for expedient visual review
of reported signal complaints.

In the future, traffic adaptive sIgnal timing may be considered. The CIty

of Stockton is currently testing a traffic-adaptive control system through

a grant from the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) on select
corridors in the City. The pilot study will determine whether the
investment confers appreciable benefits to the corridor under study.

Trafflc-adaptlve systems took to be the future for signal control but are
currently not an option that caltrans has at its disposal. The system is
very costly, uses proprietary software, and must be integrated with
Caltrans~developed signal timing software.

An option may be to utilize ACS lite, a scaled down version of FHWA's
ACS software, designed to monitor and evaluate traffic conditions and
provide refinements to signal timing on a cycle by cycle basis; and is

Intended to be the low cost solution that adjusts traffic signal timing for

real-time traffic conditions In small to medium sized communities.

Synchronizing the corridor will help achieve better traffic flow.
However, signal timing can only do so much. Operational improve
ments recommended by Traffic Operations and Traffic Safety are
essential to enhanced performance. As stated above, H•••modlfying

pavement striping, closing/restricting certain driveways that are
redundant, unnecessary, or significantly affect traffic operations,
constructing raised medians and widening to accommodate u-turns,"
are needed In addition to signal timing to Improve traffic flow.



Table B. Signals and ContlOller Types

II, -
2 MER 152 18.800 Badger Flat Road 2070 Loo

- - --Orti8'8i7to·ROid-- - -~- -~_.... _.-
~-- -

ER 152 19.260 2070 l
4 MFR 152 19.650 West IStreet 1070 Loops

20.330
-~--- ~---, MER 152

6 MER 152 20.450 6th Street 170
--- ----- ~-- - - - -- - ~--

20
8 MER 152 21.058 HStreet and I Street 2070

-
- Me1~ sPd'ijg~ R~d

---
ER 152 21.270 170

10 MER 152 21.650 Miller Lane 170
- -

~---- ---~---.._- - - ........----~
MER 152 21.760 P.laccfioad 170

12 MER 152 21.950 Home DeDot 170
MER 1

ITS ELEMENTS

It Is recommended to deploy the following ITS elements on SR 152 and

SR 165 in order to improve mobility and safely by reducing traveler

delav. improving travel time reliability and reducing collisions:

1. Install two Type 500 Changeable Message Signs (CMS) for

eastbound and westbound traffic. The eMS units should be

placed strategically approximately .~ mire outside the City limits

to take advantage of detour options in case of Incidents. The

system will advise motorists of traffic and weather conditions
that might affect their trip In advance of any unfavorable

corridor traffic conditions within the City.

2. Install eleven Traffic Monitoring Stations (TMS) at half mile

intervals on SR 152 within the limits of the City of Los Banos.

The stations will be used to automate the proposed CMSs via

the Caltrans Automated Warning System (CAWS), collect

valuable traffic volume data for the Traffic Census program. and

report speed data to the Performance Measurement System

(PeMS).

3. Install a Roadside Weather Information System (RWlS) which

utilizes meteorological measurement sensors to detect

conditions such as fog, rain and wind. The RWIS will use this

24



information to automatically trigger the CMSs, through CAWS,

to warn motorists of adverse weather conditions.

4. Install a complete Highway Advisory Radio (HAR) system which
will Include a HAR located at the junction of SR 152 and SR 165

and four Extinguishable Message Signs (EMS). Two EMS units

will be installed on SR 152, one for eastbound traffic, west of
the junction, and one for westbound traffic east of the junction

and two EMS units will be installed on SR 165, one for

northbound traffic south oft"e junction, and one for

southbound traffic north of the junction.

5. Install five Closed CircUit Television rCClV) cameras at one mile

intervals on SR 152. The CCTV cameras will provide real-time

feedback to Traffic ManagementCenter (TMC) operators to

visually verify Incidents detected through TMSs and reported by
CHP or other sources, and monitor the congestion queue

development during incident management. The CCTV cameras

reduce the time that the TMC operators require to verify an

inddent and best determIne/dispatch the type of response

needed.

6. Upgrade thirteen existing signals to current District 10

standard. It s also recommended to repair damaged loop
detectors, install Type 2070 controllers, add CCTV cameras for
surveillance, install interconnect cables between signals for

coordination and Install adaptive system, when approved for
use.

25

TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT

The proposed ITS elements In this corridor will signlficantlv enhance
transportation system operations efflclency and Improve mobility. Real

time speed and weather Information collected via ITS elements is
processed by Performance Measurements Systems and Intelligent

Roadway InformatIon System. This Information is used to automatically

activate Changeable Message Signs to provide motorists with roadway
and travel information. This will assist with incident management or

direct traffic to alternative routes when needed. In addition, ITS

elements provide TMC operators with valuable information to

Immediately dispatch the appropriate response from maintenance

crews, TMT. emergency response teams, and/or the CHP.

For traffic management purposes, the specific recommendations are to

install two CMSS, two CCTV cameras, two maintenance vehicle pullouts

(MVPs), eight TMSs, and one RWIS In each dIrection on the existIng SR

152. The combination of these elements Is called an Automated

Warning System (AWS). AWSs are intended to be utilized during the pre

and post bypass build~ut for the purposes of building an integrated

smart highway system so that the highway system will ultimately

function as a unit to Improve traffic operations to full use or at full

capacity, utilizing the newest ITS devices currently available.

This requires a total of four eMSs. four CCTV cameras, four MVPs,

sixteenTMSs, and two RWISs for both directions. Specific locations of

these elements are to be determined during the project development



processes when project scope and configuration are defined.

The benefits of implementing these ITS elements are:

1. to provide real-time video feedback oftraffic and weather

conditions to our TMC for better traffic and roadway

monitoring;

2. to provide real-time messaging to the travelling public of traffic

and weather conditions so that drivers can plan accordingly to

avoid incidents or congested areas, reducing traffic delay, and

preventing secondary accidents;

3. to help the TMC evaluate and respond to incidents and

congestion events quickly to dispatch CHP, traffic management

or emergency response teams to remove incident's elements

from the roadway, averting potential congestion or reducing

congestion time;

4. and to enhance hlghway operations to full capacity.

Estimated total cost of the improvements would be about $2 million

broken down as follows:

• 4 eMS units (MVPs included) :: $1.2 million

• 4 CCTV cameras:: $80,000

• 16 TMS :: $400,000

• 2 RWIS =$150,000

26

For the elements mentioned previously in this study. the estimates are;

• 1 HAR :: $75,000

• 4 EMS= $100,000

TRAFFIC SAFETY

The latest five year collision history showed that the predominant type

of collisions were rear-ends followed by broadsides. Traffic

investigations identified speeding as the leading primary collision factor

for the rear-end collisions while falling to yield is identified for the

broadsides. Congestion was cited as a contributing factor to the rear·

end collisions. Latest safety and operational improvements included

installation of traffic signals at the intersection with H and I Streets, and

at the Intersection with Miller Lane; and installation of high visibility

crosswalk markings with warning signs for pedestrians.

It is anticipated that the proposed operational Improvements for traffic

flow will reduce the number of collisions by reducing the number of

conflict points and need for drivers to make quick stops. Also, increased

speed limit enforcement would help In reducing not onlv rear-end

collisions but other types as well.



INCIDENT RESPONSE

The Los Banos Police Department handles emergency response issues

on SR 152 through the City. If additional response Is needed from

Caltrans, such as a maintenance crew to clean up a hazardous material

spill, the Police Department will contad the District 10 TMC for

assistance.

During an incident, once the scope and cause of the incident is

determined, a response can be designed and initiated. CCTV can alert

the TMC to the problem and help in determine an appropriate

response. Other ITS elements can alert motorists to avoid the area. The

proposed ITS system improvements work to inform Caltrans of the

severity of the event, plan a proper response, clear the accident and any

residual material quickly, warn driver's of dangerous conditions and

avoidance maneuvers, and to prevent additional accidents. In general.

the system Improves the response time, dosing out the incident safely

and rapidly.

27

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, along with Its

implementing regulations, and the California Government Code Sections

4450 et seq, prescribe that facilities shall be made accessible to persons
with disabilities. Amultimodal roadway network should be able to

accommodate pedestrians and is especially important that access is

prOVided to persons with disabilities.

Existing ADA deficiencies or access barriers are identified in the State's
ADA Transition Plan or recognized through the grievance process.

Access barriers include existing curb ramps lacking a level maneuvering

area or landing, ramps or landings missing a detectable warning surface,
ramp grades exceeding 8.33%. Also included are sidewalks and

driveways which exceed the 2% cross slope required along the

pedestrian path. Signalized Intersections need Accessible Pedestrian

Signals (APS) which enable pedestrians who are blind or visually

impaired to safely cross the lntersettlons.

All sidewalks and curb ramps must be designed in compliance with state

and federal accessibility standards. Minimum sIdewalk clear widths

should be free of utilities. furniture, signs and all other obstructions. It

Is recommended to upgrade the pedestrian facilities along this highway

to current ADA standards.



7. Needs Assessment and Implementation

Overview

The City has identified a number of challenges associated with the SR

152 corridor. Congestion, truck traffic, accidents, and pedestrian

crossings are the major issues at this time and operations will oniy
deteriorate in the future.

No projects are in the pIpeline to address these issues or Increase

capacity of the route. The Bypass was planned to provide for the
increases in Interregional traffic and truck movements that could not be
accommodated in the amount of right of way available through the City

on Pacheco Blvd.. The alternative route would leave the existing

corridor a friendlier place for local residents and shoppers to access by

car, bike or foot.

While this study has suggested a number of improvements to address

these issues, the planning analysis was performed at avery high level,
considering the number of intersections, driveways, traffic volume,

conflicting movements, and concerns relayed by the City. To move

forward) improvements will need to be further refined by additional

analysis and modeling and stakeholders input will be needed to further

define the problem and determine achievable solutions.

28

Critical Needs

As discussed preViously in the document, ways to decrease congestion

need to be implemented in order to facilitate movement both through

the City and in and out of major destinations along, or near, the route.

This must be accomplished while allowing pedestrians to move safely

across the street. Bicycles wlll need to be accommodated with a

separate faCility, as room for a dedicated lane is not available.

Traffic volumes above 20,000 ADT warrant the use of a median ratt'ler

than a TWlU to restrict turning traffic to intersections. Amedian Island

would make it easier for pedestrians to cross as well, as would
pedestrian overcrossings. The numberof access points along the route

add to the congestion creating conflicting movements and slowing
traffic. Some combination of dosing unnecessary driveways and
consolidating adjacent driveways should be considered, as well as

carefully planning new access for future developments.

Although outside the boundaries of this study, non-motorized access to

the Community College should be provided. There is no continuous

sidewalk leading to the entrance and those on foot have to walk on the

dirt shoulder.



Funding

Raised median/intersection widening, if broke" up by Intersectlon,
would be in the range between $280,000 and $1 Million (Minor A-mld
range). Driveway closure would be in the low range, under $280,000

(Minor B)-all driveway Improvements could be combined Into one single
project. To combine two or more intersection Improvements along with

raised median, the project would easlly rise abo"e the $1 Mittion range
(Major- high range).

Table 9 gives a rough estimate of the individual project cost and the
possible funding source. Projects can be programmed through grants,

local general or specIfic funds, federal, State, or regional funds,

depending on availability. Driveway closure or consolidation could be

accomplished through a public/private partnership.

29

When a funding source is offered, projects that are planned and ready
to go generally have a better chance of award. To that end, this study Is

an Important first step In funding needed Improvements, Identifying

feasible candidate projects, reaching agreement with stakeholders,

pursuing funding sources, and outlIning basic needs for further

evaluation.



Table 9. Possible Funding Soutees

1
Badger Flat Rd (PM 18.882) .
Ortigalita Rd (PM 19.268)

ModifV pavement marking to convert the EB
trap lane to a RTL

$15,000 ( ..!trans SHOPP

3

5

West I Stref!t (PM 19.6181

Maryland Ave.(PM19.781) N. sidE' T

~. Widen NW and Sf corners to accommodat~

U-turns
b. NE corner, close W. OW

Widen NW carner to accommodate U-Turns

$425,000

$150,000

Caltrans!Local

caltrans/Locill

SHOPP/CMAQ

SHOI'P/CMAQ

7 Arizona Ave. (PM20.028)N. s:de T Widen NW corner to accommodate U-turns $150,000 Caltrans/Local 5HOPP/CMAQ

9

11

Np.vada St. (PM 20.000l

4T~ St. (PM 20.289) to
611> St. (PM 20.4201

Widen NW cornl~rtoaccoMmodate U-turns

Raised median With back-to-back left turns

$150,000

$275,000

Ca/trans/Local

Caltrans/Local

SHOPP/CMAQ

SHOPP/CMAQ

30



Table 9. Possible FuDdlng Sources {continued}

13 9th Street (PM20.749) N. side T Cul-de-sac, traffic to use J St. $300,000 caltrans/Locat SHOPP!CMAQ.

15 Miller Ln. (PM21.610) N. side T Widen NW corner to accoMmodate U·turns $200,000· Caltrans!Loc:al SHOPP!CMAQ

17

19

Ward Rd (PM 22.2521

Install Accessible Pedestrian
Signal

Allow WB U-tums, currentlv they are
prohibited

ADA

$7,500 Calbdns/Local

Caltrans

SHOPP/CMAQ

SHOPP

·Signanled interseetton, minor slrnal modification will be required

31



Prioritization and Implementation

From an engineering perspective, the hIghest priority improvement
would be signal timing adjustment in order to get the most out of the
existing signal system with little to no investment. The second phase of

projects would entail the Installation of a raised median combined with
intersection widening, at asignificantly higher cost. Many of these
projects would have to be completed simultaneously. For example,
putting In a median would require a lTL and V-turn capabUlty at an
intersection, Involving additional right of way and possible driveway
relocation. The final phase would be the consolidation of driveways.
These proposals would satisfy the goal of improving operations with
Increasing cost of implementation, both In terms of dollars spent and
Inconvenience experienced by the residents and businesses.

32

Conclusion

As each proposal has different costs and benefits to stakeholders, the

City held a public meeting on August 19, 2015 to discuss the suggested
improvements, identify any other critical needs, hlgnllght tne local
Issues to consider, and solidt comments from the attendees, the
majority being business owners along the route. The Staff Report and
subsequent resolution are presented In the Appendix documenting the
presentation and outcome of that meeting.



(,J
.-::is:J

C
c..

0

g
~

ra


a:l
'0

V
t

C
.9

g
'0

u
~
~

._
u

u
"

I
c

x
C'U

:s
t1.O

c
.£

OJ
o

fj
0

.
Q

J
0

.
Q

)

<C
~

00



SUamcT: lm BlIIlOs Stlde FlGuIe 152 C4ll1llll!l\ensllre Optmlional SIUcly

lYP& OF ItI!PDRT: NOll COnsenl Acleftda

""pnmtada!k!'!~
TtIaIIheCityCoutI:II Adajlla II1e Rtwalullon lIPPIOVIrla lIle 'D<e! Ul$ Banos SteIfl RoUllt
1'2 Com$HVIJIJfIBfII& OpereIlomJl SlllClY. c1At$t.1 Jut1e 1, 2D1S. as pmpanlll tJy tile
CaJifomla [lepm\meIJl 01 TraftSPlll18lioll wIIIl1llo lolbf.1ng ~oepliOlll:

1. lha ins\lllla1lOll ftl tile raitlecl rnecflllrllO 115 oulJl~ I~ the dllBl! $1IIlf1' It '101
~ by lIle CIl7 CourlGI

2. AU ;!ntalllldioft W!lIellitlt~ 10 a_madttlll UolUnIS' a.. mit
IIlPrcwed!lY the C1ty Counllil

3. Tile lIlslaftllflon Df • cuMI_an'" 3ImIlI81 tileI~an af SlaIe Rollttl
152and 9"'Strl!etis nol8JlllfOl'8!! IIVhCily COUncil

~. The clOSing of olli$fing dlillewaYlU'tllo SI8l& Ra,rte 1621& /lOt 41PPtOV*! by tile
CItyCoIlllCl1

8V!!p""!!!d:
Cafil/lln;S Deper!ment 01 Tf8I1llIlOl1elIllI'I (Cllllrall8) lias Pl'llIaled II tlm1I Los e.m"
stile Route 1a2 CDlllllhlMII!l¥oOp~ S!IlcIY. ft\lId JUlIet. 2015. TIllS~udY it
Intended 10 Ildllreselh!! 4lIlI1Ili01Dl~ lIfthl& llIlrridor (Pacheeo IlcuIMonl) Ibet
will mMt Ilte 1lIlId8 ol1lle Inlell'ltlCmlf malar. SInI:e \!he t.oe 8e1lOll BYPna IIl1a_n
dlIlSyed dU~ 1o funding llhGl'lIdI. PacllGoo BoUlllv8IllIll '" need cIlell!iJllt opeI3h1lll1
ImlllOvllI'II!IIts to__Ill! lh" dlcleney end 8llfely 0111115 h1gbway 5!!lIrnant

to:

FAOM:

DATE:

tC>sBanos
.•Q

Agenda Staff Report

Mayar & City CouncilM8~

MSI1C ~lIollin. p.E.. PubllclWorb Dirllelllt~iIlIEnllinller

Au;u$t19, 2015

34

11Ie recommllllde4 ImlltaVame~ in lb;. IlIUdV ale iJltended to
• Incnasesatety
• IlI'Iprow~lonBl perfOM;ancs
• SnhBl1Cl!l mobIIilyand convenIence
.. ImproIHlenIIItonmen!ll' outeames
• Bootl praltJdMty

The lItudy hal nroamme~ tlle folfowl"IJ inlpmvementll to llle Stata ~aut. 152
COIl'idor:

1. Sillllal;lmll1lJ $ncI optimization

2. SIgnal upgracle!l

3. Inre\UpntTmnlpOllMiOtl S]lllI!rIl (ITS) QllI1II&tlng of MVen (7) elemelllli
• C1IaJlpablem~e algID
• CIoeed circuit tBI&V!aiOn
• Ma!flt_whicle pullouts

• Tr'II'I!1c monltol'lre etafiCIns
• Rollcl8fde \Wlll:her int'olmation Sy&1l11l'1
• HIghway.lIdIIlllOty radIO
• Exllnguidlallle mOBAge signa

4. Erlll1lllelJan~' oneoa_It at !he fnllllMdlall!l of I SlftIet. 4Jll S1m!t, and 8"
StnIet

6. InstaIIIrllan 0I181sed med'1llII'l1l1ltle folloWing Iocafians:
• Between OAlgalft!1 RoacIand Wall IStNIel
• '«ellt I Slreet III MlfyllWl Allet\Ue
• Illinois Avenue to Arizona Avonue
• Arimna AvellWto Nevad:llWeJ1U9
• 41l SlnleltoBtIIStIMt
• Dri\lO'MlY 200 fet1t east ofSR-185IM~ SJ!'in9S Rd) lD M1111!l' Lane
• DriveWay 400 feet west dWel'll Road 10 WertI Road

6. In!ltlllllnterallCIIOn widening Ill'lproYllments to sccomm_te U-lUmll because
of !he Intttllal10n 01 the llIisetJ medlBml

• 'Nett I$Iteet, wldeo HW alld SE comers
• MaIYIIIId Avenult. Widen NWcotner
• AriZona AYIlftUe. widen tIN eomer
• NeY8da AV&IlIHl, Widon NWCIOm&r
• 4"'~.Wic*1 SE comer



• 6'" SlNel. vJiclen NW CtlII'Ief
• MirletLeJllr. widenttNcome,

7. Between e.e., PIal ~OIII and OltiglIliIa Read. modify slript~ to Clltl'IeIt
B3lllllOlIM lllP IlInll to. right 11ll'll1a11ll

8. DI!IIeway cllll&lrMhllOllffi",*"ona.1Il ll1e ft:Illowl1lg Iol'lItlon8:
• geIWftn 0Ctlg18a ROIiMI alld WItt I $lnMlI. ...-/Iv clII.....lIV._rt middle~ lO!lgflI irlIov!lll'I(lQCIude IeftCUl on el8IeIly

drivllwlly
Weill Street. dase lIIVlllIII1dri\lllWllV atHE_

It. AI" Sbeet. tn.tllll euHI&<nc

10. AdWIIld~. allll'NweBl.bollIld U-tume

11. t1\$1a1t48 ADA oompliBnt Cllrtl rsrnpa

Pil'lI!I!Il9o;
On July 23, 2015. a public meeting M' Ile~ et lI\e C1:nl/llll1l1lw C<mIar to cIIIcu!llllhls
l!Illfl ~ludV. TlIe meaU"lI ..., nCl!klftd OIIlM City's .....~, 11:1 artIllI8wa, ~UllI~lllIln
'lIllnlda to the meeling by lila loe Banot &ntorptlee...It 250 lMIrilIue1 teItft to
b~ IlI\d mldanllllll 8IoI1ll Pac:l1«lO 81llM1olnl WfS8 mall.,.~_~

itlllhltdll9ll1l1ftemllllf IJ1& pU:lliC 1lIeef1llll.

Coan\inO 111& ;"put at Ills IllIGllng WId ~n<o 'BlllIhoQd by .". _ 1&
buIlneas llMllQf~"" lllllelllqlftmlld lhl!lr-... In ~ntII t~ the ClrlIIIll!Jldy.
TIlea.- Ofcanoem- we",:

a) The It>aldalion rI the meed mBdllln WOUld seII!IeIy impact lila
llllllirles&bll ioklIlg PschlltlO~

01 The lntbllallClfl of :I euJ.d&4ae « f!" Slfeet WCIIlkI I!llpad __181
buainesses and Gre81een IIl\lllWQble IOCIl S1nlel nlRc tlll/atbn

cl ThIl 'Illilllln,,;e,n d eJlIstlng~WCllldimptJeI*-to lllIei~&

DuG to !he eiliZen inpullnlllll~t; been ~iYetl tIi tIalf. til. fetQllllllllllallon 1$ tlIlII tile
Cl\y COlJlIClIlIpjl-es the tlndJnG$ln!llll ONIft Los e.- SlaIII Ruute 152~a1
S\uclY. dlllld Jlln91. 2015. WftIIlll8~ UCllIlticlne:

1. The itl9ldathm II. 1M raitri mldlalll as lIulllned Irlllll C118ft .tUlly Is nOl
QIlProved by the City ClIllIIll3

2. All lnIv.-.aelllIn !Niftnilg imp_mlll1!& \l) I.lceommodele U·t1Ima 8ftl Mt
appl'O'led by 111& CltyCouncil

35

a. The inalltlatlOfl of 8 c:okl_ on 91"~ at "" IIllersecllIon t>f S\l!lIe
ReN* 1$2anclot" 51... fa l!llt;lJl\l1'lWed byille CIlyClIlIl\dl

•. '1'h&llIos1lIgofe*ll"llC!~OIIlD Slat" RoUle 152lallatllllPlaII8d llV
UleClly COUncIl

fI!co.' kpwt;
The _rovemeID .. .$18ted In IhII~ S1Udjr lire to be Iullded by ilia SI8!lf HiglM.y
OptAltlont llnt! PIol9CIfon Progl8m (SHOW) IIIld IIlIl CaltgesIloP MlITgatIolI lind (Jk
Quail)/ (CfdAQ) PIllgrllm. ftIlld1ng llPIOlicIIIl_ vI1!l neelt to beI~ 2nd lIHfMdllll
IlICfe$ Will hs..e b~1ll6 ror Iho Qr8IIlt.

ft!'vlt:ntd by;

S~ClI.Il, <:ItVMal1llVllr

""''ibml!lllj
~

Omft Lo. 8IlllOl< Slale Roule 15Z COlllIlrehen&ille Ojllllllllanel study



lQSOWYlO!l NO. "'"

A RES<II.IITlON CV nil CITY COUNCIl. Ol' TIll! CITY 0'
lOll IIA_ Al'PlllMNlJ TltI 'DRAl'T lot lWIOS STA",
'IlPU", 15:1 t::OM1'fIEtf!H8Iw: OPI!RATIORAl. S1VIJY'
DATI!D JUNE 1. ta11. I<SPIlIPARJ!Da., TIl!! caUFOlUU
UEPA1UlillENT OF 1IWlSP'ClftTAllON WITH lIl!
I'OUOW1NO El«:EI"I!OII!h 'THIllllllTaLl.AlIOlt Of' THE
RAISED NEllWl5 ... avnJNIll) INlMr IIIW'T STUDY IS
HOT AJlHQ'JSl lJ't filE clI'Y ecuHCll.; AU.
IIIflJlSllCTlQII W1l1U11NlJ lMPltO'\I8lPTS 'lO
ACGOMIII01lIoTE U·lURNa All! NOT N'MQIIEb tIY litE
CI'rY OOlJNCll.: TIll! 'lInM.LAfiONOl' ACUL~ON
1'"$1'ltW Al'T!e.lNT!M!tillClll 0I'81'Al1!1IOV1I! 162
AHlI .11< IlWUT IA Hat AIIf'lIDYIll l!W 'l1It crn
COUNCU.: AItD 1M£ c;l.OI!IlO OF 0I&1IIlG IIRlWWATS
ONTO STAre ROUl1: ,sa III JeOT AI'l'ttOVED BY THE CITY
COUlICIL

_.1llEClIyd In_CltVeauocJ_.-.. 'OrIII ....___'S1~~IIlllIf__1,2N ..

__"""'_~f/lr...-...... ...
WI....6ftS·I1loCllv..looo_...._ • ..-_-.:on<l
Wll_......... ,."., .. ..., n. 20.1..._lllt MIl

~.d

WIII;JlM.. -... ........__.......... _
~_ ...~ ... 'DIlIII ....__.-.... U2
_______ ..loll _ I. aon; _ ~ 1M ClIIIon*

~"".....-"""'_fdawIIO~
,. __......... _"..O'OlIoIoIlll ....IIlI..-,It ...

"__...u.Cl:y_

:I...aIll_-...~.~.. _lJoalN .....__t11l>1Q1Comd!.
.. ","__d,_""'__I!lI_lIIl!Q1l._

.s.2.... r"~_it -.od.......~~.
.. ",.~« ~__" .... 'M.. OlOl__ '"

...tIll_.

a-=.11lrlU'mllE.~~t.~c:=;:
~ :'::;'::";.,.", Z1S. _.., Ultl~~ ..T__IIool~_

T1le_"'t"'_"'""..... _~1llodJW!lIlllll» .. "'"·_01"'Cllr_·
~'.~"""'~"~~""flGl_ ...v.QJCOotd.

3. _ _ ... .....,.- ...V"SllMlllllN .._or__
.ez "_io..._..,....CJly_

36

4 'IhodDolllltllUlm>td-. ....__ .U ......_'"
''''QlwCGllloll

.............----•• ~l'lNIIlc>of...c:.,_..... Clly _"..,. ....,.._.........2DI.. ..,__~_..m·_lIIl ~_01 .......-""--.....~-,...... l:<MlMif_F"_~ .....,..._
HOE& .....AllIC"'" _

""PIl_n'

~
limn

'f.:--f,
i:i.oiIoL. ..._c..cjO;



LOS Banos
I' t tilt' Cr: ~ ',oad'

Agenda Staff Report

TO: Mayor VillaIta and City Council Members

FROM: Alex Terrazas, City Manager

DATE: July 15,2020

TYPE OF REPORT: Regular

SUBJECT: Continuation of Existence of Local Emergency COVID - 19

RECOMMENDATION

1. Adopt Resolution No. _

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS
CONTINUING THE DECLARATION OF THE EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL
EMERGENCY WITHIN THE CITY OF LOS BANOS (COVID-19)

BACKGROUND

The Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19), a severe acute respiratory illness
caused by a novel (new) coronavirus was first detected in Wuhan, Hubei Province,
People's Republic of China and the first case was reported on December 31, 2019, in
China. Cases of COVID-19 are now being reported internationally outside of China
including the United States.

Coronaviruses are a large group of viruses that are common among animals and
humans. This novel coronavirus that causes CQVID-19 is a newly discovered
coronavirus that has not been previously detected in animals or humans. The source of
this virus is not yet known.



Symptoms of the virus include fever, cough, and shortness of breath, and
infected individuals have experienced a range of outcomes, from mild sickness to
severe illness and death.

There is currently no vaccine to prevent COVID-19. The best way to prevent
illness is to avoid being exposed to this virus. The virus is thought to spread mainly
from person-to-person between people who are in close contact with one another
(within about 6 feet). This occurs through respiratory droplets produced when an
infected person coughs or sneezes. These droplets can land in the mouths or noses of
people who are nearby or possibly be inhaled into the lungs. Older adults and people
who have severe underlying chronic medical conditions like heart or lung disease or
diabetes seem to be at higher risk for developing more serious complications from
COVID-19 illness.

Chronology of events:

• On March 17, 2020 the City Manager as the City's Director of Emergency
Services declared a local emergency.

• On March 18,2020 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 6190 ratifying
and confirming the declaration of a local emergency by the City Manager
as the Director of Emergency Services.

• On April 15, 2020 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 6203 which
extended the proclamation of the existence of a local emergency by the
City's Director of Emergency Services and ratified and confirmed all
actions taken by and orders of the City Manager or designee as the City's
Director of Emergency Services, including Executive Order 2020-01 (face
coverings for covered businesses) and Executive Order 2020-02 (public
meeting times from 7:00p.m. to 4:00 p.m.).

• On June 3, 2020 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 6222 which
extended the proclamation of the existence of a local emergency by the
City's Director of Emergency Services and ratified and confirmed all
actions taken by and orders of the City Manager or designee as the City's
Director of Emergency Services including Executive Order 2020-01 and
Executive Order 2020-02.

• On June 12, 2020 Merced County revised its Stay-at-Home Order into the
Stay Safe Order.

• On June 17, 2020 the City Council rescinded Executive Order 2020-01
and by motion ordered the wearing of face coverings in the city council
chambers and all other city buildings open to the public.



• On June 18, 2020 Governor Gavin Newsom announced a statewide
mandate for face coverings for all individuals while in public.

• As of July 8,2020 there were 1,623 confirmed cases (913 probable active)
of COVID-19 (novel coronavirus) and 11 deaths in Merced County; and
188 confirmed cases in the City of Los Banos; and 277,774 confirmed
cases state wide and 6,448 deaths state-wide. The numbers of confirmed
cases continue to increase in Merced County and surrounding counties
and the State of California.

• Currently, the County of Merced remains under Stay Safe Order issued on
June 12, 2020. The reasons for declaring the local emergency still exist.

DISCUSSION

Staff is recommending that the City Council continue the Proclamation of the City
Manager declaring the existence a local emergency pursuant to California Government
Code Section 8630, in order to ensure appropriate resources and funding are available
to the City in its response to the growing concern of CQVID-19. Section 8630 requires
that the City Council confirm the continuing existence of the local emergency every sixty
(60) days. This recommendation is based on the data that the number of confirmed
cases in Merced County and surrounding counties and the state of California continue
to increase. The proposed resolution reaffirms the local emergency.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact associated with this specific item. However, declaring a
state of emergency may allow state/federal reimbursements as described above.

rr:v
: _

Alex Terrazas, City Manager

Attachments:
Proposed Resolution



ATTACHMENT 1

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS
CONTINUING THE OECLARATION OF THE EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL

EMERGENCY WITHIN THE CITY OF LOS BANOS (COVID-19)

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 8630 provides that a local
emergency may be proclaimed by the governing body of a city; and

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the City Manager as the City's Director of
Emergency Services declared a local emergency, finding that that conditions of extreme
peril to the safety of persons and property have arisen within the City of Los Banos and
that these conditions are or are likely to be beyond the control of the services,
personnel, equipment, and facilities of the City of Los Banos; and,

WHEREAS, on March 18, 2020, the City Council of the City of Los Banos
adopted Resolution No. 6190 ratifying and confirming the aforementioned declaration of
a local emergency by the City Manager as the Director of Emergency Services; and

WHEREAS, on April 15, 2020, the City Council of the City of Los Banos adopted
Resolution No. 6203 ratifying and confirming the aforementioned declaration of a local
emergency by the City Manager as the Director of Emergency Services; and

WHEREAS, on June 3, 2020, the City Council of the City of Los Banos adopted
Resolution No. 6222 ratifying and confirming the aforementioned declaration of a local
emergency by the City Manager as the Director of Emergency Services; and

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 8630 requires that the City Council to
review the need for continuing the local emergency at least every sixty (60) days; and

WHEREAS, the COVID -19 pandemic and associated emergency conditions are
of an ongoing nature warranting the need to continue the declaration of the existence of
a local emergency within the City of Los Banos.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Los Banos, does hereby
resolve as follows:

1 All of the above recitals are true and correct; and

2. The conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property continue
to exist within the City of Los Banos, caused by the effects of COVID-19; and

3. The aforementioned conditions of extreme peril warrant and necessitate the
continuance of the proclamation of the existence of a local emergency by the City's
Director of Emergency Services as ratified and confirmed by the City Council on March
18, 2020; and.



4. The City Council has reviewed the need for continuing the declaration of local
emergency and finds based upon substantial evidence that the public interest and
necessity require the continuance of the proclamation and declaration of local
emergency; and

5. The City Council does hereby proclaim and declare an extension and
continuation of the proclamation of the existence of a local emergency by the City's
Director of Emergency Services as ratified and confirmed by the City Council on March
18, 2020 in accordance with California Government Code Section 8630; and

6. It is hereby further resolved, proclaimed and ordered that all actions taken by
and orders of the City Manager or designee as the City's Director of Emergency
Services and the Fire Chief who is delegated the authority under the Los Banos
Municipal Code, in response to the local emergency as authorized by State law, by local
ordinances, and resolutions and by the City of Los Banos Emergency Operations Plan
are hereby ratified and confirmed; and

7. It is hereby further resolved, proclaimed and ordered that this local emergency
shall be deemed to continue to exist until its termination is declared by the City Council
of the City of Los Banos.

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council
of the City of Los Banos held on the 15th day of July 2020, by Council Member
_____ who moved for its adoption, which motion was duly seconded by
Council Member , and the Resolution was adopted by the following
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Michael Villalta, Mayor
ATTEST:

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk



LOS Banos
L.. (' .• ~ om ~ dIm ni"

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

Agenda Staff Report

Mayor & City Council Members

Lucy Mallonee, MMC~
City Clerk/Human Resources Director

July 15, 2020

SUBJECT: City Commission Appointments and Appointment of Council Members

TYPE OF REPORT:

Recommendation:

Non Consent Agenda

Appoint members to the following City Commission:

Economic Development Advisory Commission - Three (3) Vacancies
Two (2) Unexpired Terms - Expiring December 31,2020

Appoint City Council Members to the following City Commission:

Economic Development Advisory Commission - Two (2) Vacancies
Two (2) Unexpired Terms - Expiring December 31, 2021

Discussion:

Staff advertised the above vacancies, on the City's website; the deadline to apply was
Wednesday, July 1, 2020. Applicants were interviewed by a committee per City policy.
Any remaining vacancies will be advertised again.

Fiscal Impact:

None.



LOS Banos
At the C,.,ssfoads oJCalifornia

COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

Date:

Re:

Proposal:

July 10, 2020

Notice of Public Hearing

Site Plan Review #2020-03 Los Banos Fire Department Training Tower

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a Public Hearing will be held by the Los Banos
Planning Commission to consider a Categorical Exemption from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and Site Plan Review #2020-03 for the Los Banos
Fire Department Training Tower. The project site is located at 333 Seventh Street; more
specifically identified as Assessor's Parcel Numbers: 025-082-004.

A PUBLIC HEARING on this matter will be held at the next scheduled meeting of the
Planning Commission on Wednesday, July 22, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. in the Council
Chambers of Los Banos City Hall located at 520 "J" Street. Questions regarding the
above-referenced item may be directed to Rudy Luquin, Associate Planner at City Hall
or at (209) 827-2432.

All persons are invited to be present at the public hearing. Written and oral testimony is
invited. Notice is hereby further given that if you challenge the above described Project
in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at
the public hearing described in this Notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the
Planning Commission at, or prior to, the public hearing.

Additional information may be obtained from the Community & Economic Development
Department at 520 J Street, Los Banos, California. In compliance with the Americans
with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please
contact the Office of the City Clerk at (209) 827-7000. Notification at least 72 hours
prior to the public hearing will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to
allow participation at this hearing

THE CITY OF LOS BANOS

Rudy Luquin
Associate Planner




